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Pearson at a glance

Financal highlights

oTo read ahour our KPLs go w pt4

Sales

£49bn

O { IMAGE REMOVED
%

IMAGE REMOVED

Adjusted operating profit

(excluding Mus germarket}

£./720m

+ 8 O/O IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Average annual growth in
headline terms 2009-2044

Adjusted earnings per shate

+04%

IMAGE REMOVED

Operaring rash fiow

-6.6%

Owidend

+/.5%

IMAGE REMOVED

Throaghout dus e porigrow thvates 3re stated ona LonitIne exchange rate {CER) basis unfers.armerwaze suated. Where quotes underiyng pr owth razes exclude
both rurency muvements and por tfiohio rhanpes Uniess otfreswise stated sales excude Fengu nand Murger mutker winle adjuste d ope ratng profits mclude

Ponguin Pengum Random House and Merpermarket Conimung operaucas exdudeboth Ponguin and Mergermarist
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Responding to new recommendations and best pi acuice, every effort has
been made to ensure this report s fair, balanced and understandable
Notably, our Responsible business’ sectran has been reshaped around
our *Soaal tmpact’, to reflect a new and broader commutment to malung
a posiuve contribution to society

Finanaal statements

H4 independent auditors report

Together with 'Our business' and ‘Our performance’, these three sectons 122 Group accounts
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Chairman’s introduction

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno
Charmdn

“The most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been
completed... one which has lad
the foundations to strengthen
our posttion as the world’s
largest education company.”

Share price performance

+32.0%

FTSE 100 +2 0%
FTSE Ali Share +2 3%

Pepformance over 12 menths to anoounceinenrol
prehnunary results {cose of 27 February 2015)

Sauree Datastream

Read our full Governance section p57-112©0
LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-65 Q)
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 Q)
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 ©
REMUNERATION p82-106 ©
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES pl07-112Q

Dear shar eholder s,

We continue to malce this report as helpfdl as possible

o our shareholders and everyone interested in our
company We are guided by the IRC and FRC’s principles,
and wherever possibte, we will conunue to move towards
those over the niext few years Ourambition this yedris

to tell a more transparent, concise, and jomned-up story

of the journey we are on 1o create value

in 20{3 we made a seres of commitments designed to
measure and increase the company’s impact on fearming
outcomes around the world In 2014, john Fallon and his
jeadership team have embedded efficacy - the idea that
each product or service we invest in 1s judged by the
outcomes it helps learners achieve — as the defining
principle around which Pearsons orgarised We also,
as an organtsation, reaffirmed the values that we stand
for, which John taiks about in more depth on page 4
This repert s the story of how these commuitments wll
resultin a more sustainable and profitable company

Read rmore about this in our Chief executive’s strategic
overview on p4-9 and our Efficacy secuon on p38-43

Transforming for long-term success

The most difficult phase of our transformation has now
been completed This has been one of the most sigmificant
restructures in our long and varied history, one which has
faid the foundations to strengthen our position as the
world's largest education company The benefits of this
restructure are already being felt as Pearson becomes
more digital, more service driven, and more capable

of mproving education n the world's great economies
They are also visible in the way we are organised, the
strategies behind which we are marshalled, and our
emerging culture This is explained and exemphfied
throughout this report

Transformaucns of this scale cannot succeed without

the commutment of all our stakeholders, and lamvery
grateful to our shai eholders and employees for the
confidence and patience they have ptaced in aur long-term
vision Although in 2014 our share pnee saw some
volatdity at the time { write this (having just announced
our prehminary results) it has recovered significandy
rising 32% overthefast {2 months Over theten yearsto
December 2014 it had almost doubled (89 3%), during
which time the total shareholder return has increased

by 182 6% Morcover, I'm delighted that, for the 23rd
consecutive year we've been able toincrease our dividend
pershare We have confidence that these trends will
contnue, thanics to the steps we have taken in the last
two years
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Share price performance

IMAGES REMOVED

Source DY stastream to 31 e cember 2004

Total shareholder recui n (TSR}

IMAGES REMOVED

Source Darastieam to 3 Docembar 2014

TSR 15 one of our KPis

More onpl4 Q)

Budding a balanced and strong team

Though our mmediate transformation has been
completed, we will of course, contmue to adapt and
IMmprove Lo ensure our chgong success We continue to
build a balanced, experenced team, welcorming Elzabeth
Corley and Tim Score to the board, and a number of
highly regarded industry speciaksts 1o the executive
fmanagement team

This year we have also held our trienmial exter nal board
review, and alongside that we have established a process
for long-term suecesstion planning, which we'll undertake
annually | would like to take this opportumity to thank our
chief finanaial officer, Robin Freestone, for fus enormous
contribution to Pearson over the last ten years We ook
forward to Coram Wilams joming us in that role on

| August 2015 Read more about our board on page 60,
and the executive team on page 9

Looking forward

These are exating tmes for everyone nwvolved at Pearson,
as we begin to see the opportunities created by two

years of very substanual transformanon Ithas beena
challenging journey at ttmes, but worth it We now move
into our next chapter, better prepared than ever to help
people ali over the world progress in their lves through
learming, and i so doing, create a growing sustanable
company for the benefit of our shareholders

IMAGE REMQOVED

Glen Moreno, Chairman
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Chief executive’s strategic overview

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon
Ch el oxgcuine

“For education to really work it needs
to not only provide access, but
ensure progress... by standing at the
intersection of new technology and
good teaching practices, we can help
to make learning more accessible
and more relevant for more people
around the world.”

Short stories of impact

Dear sharehclder s,

Pearson's purpose is to empower pecple to progress n
then lives through learning, and that means we put the
learner at the heat t of everything we do Through this
review, you lf see five stories from students that flustrate
how we've been doing over the last year

Each story demonstrates the commitment and ability
of the young woman involved, each a great source of
mspiration to all of us Each showcases one of Pearson's
most commet cially successful products {MGI, BTEC,
Connections, YWall Street English, MyLabs) of recent
years And they all llustrate that the bigger Pearson’s
social Impact — In improving access 1o good quality
education and ensuning that transfates into meaningful
learning outcomes for far more people — the more we
can create a faster growing and more profitable company,
and do so 1n a sustamable manner

Last October Malala Yousafzai accepted her Nobet Peace
Prize on behalf of the 66 mithion girls around the world
who don t go to schoof In this same sprit I've chosen five
stories that are about the achievements of young women
around the world You'll find more stores reflecung the
ful diversity of what we do at www pearson com

Positioned to make a greater impact

The transformation programme we launched in February
of 2013 s now complete Qver the course of two years
we carried out as much restructuring, n terms of activity
and costs incurred, as we'd carned outin the previous six

Rozanna’s story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Rozainna has beaten overwhelming odds Bornintoa
farmdy i Zimbabwe in which nether parenthad taken
A-levels, let alone attended university, she wasnot a
typical candidate for tigher education {nsecunty, tack
of accoss to technology and fear about personal safety
were some of the barners shefaced Buther thirst

for educauon fed her to enrof i Pearson’s Midrand
Graduate Insutute (MGl) in South Africa Rozanna is
now a third-year psychology major with a drive for
achieverment that has inspired us afl at Pearson She
praises her lecturers and credies much of her success with
the personahsed learning technology she uses at MGl
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That programme has been all about setung Pearson up
to be able to demonstrate the impact of what we doin
education around the world [t1s about enabling us to

do right across Pearson the thing that we have done
mncreasmgly well in many parts of the company, and which
our stores of peaple learmng all help to demonstrate
That!s, we stand at the intersecuon of new technalogy
{wath its ability to engage, personalise and diagnose} and
new, more effectuve, ways of teaching This position allows
us to develop products and services that enable the
benefits of ncher, deeper learning to be more widely felt

We've had to conduct this accelerated programme of
change whilst dealing with cydical and policy refated forces
i our biggest markets, which | described in [ast year's
report, and which continued to hurtus in 2014 In spite

of these challenges, I'm pleased to report thatwe did
meet the financial expectations that we set publidy for
the company at the start of the year Overall atavme

of muchinternal disruption and upheaval, we putina
generally good compettive performance There were

a couple of areas of under-performance, toe, and we're
waorlang hard ta do better m these acavities in 20{5

It wasn't just Pearson's education related businesses that
performed well through this period of change Penguin
Random House, the comipany we own with Bertelsmann,
wrned in a best-selling performance whilst integraung the
two companies And the Financral Times, now part of our
professtonal education business, conunued ro deliver the
world's best news and information 1o s audiences whilst
accelerating its own digital transiion

Short stories of impact

in 2015 we expect Pearson’s prafits to start to grow
agam, as the forces that have been worlang agamstus
over the last two years start to ease, and as we benefit
from the cost savings achieved by our restructurmg and
the revenues gererated by our new investments

A growing global demand

We'l be working hard with our customers to tacde what
we think s one of the most important challenges i the
world today For globalsation and the disruptive powers
of technology mean we live in a *Second Machine Age’

in whuch, as my colieague, Lione! Barber (editor of the
Fnancial Times) puts t, “leverage in the worlcplace 1s best
achieved through knowledge ™ This means that equipping
every globaf ciizen wath what are someomes described as
‘2ist century slalls’ 1s more important than ever In other
wards, for education to really work, it needs to not only
provide access, but ensure progress

To prosper in career and college, all young people need to
{eave school iterate and numerate, with good knowledge
of science, technology and the liberal arts. and being able
to apply that knowledge 1o solve real world problems
They aiso need to be proficientin the kinds of less tangible
slufls that will help them succeed in the workplace - criveal
thinlang adaptability, team-working, and digreat fluency

They need the gnt resthence and deternination to
persevere and succeed — and. most of all, they need
the capaaity to carry onlearning throughout their lives
These are ail thungs that can be taught

Bethany's story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Bethany s a UK student who did not take A-levels, but
nstead went after a BTEC qualificauon She ke so
many recent BTEC applicants, appled to university with
a different skillset, but not with any less determination
or abihity Her hard worl and credenuals weir ¢
recogrised when she was accepted to study Psychology
and Lingurstics at Oxford University Bethany’s story
highlights that a skulls-based qualficauon ke a BTEC 15
not a’lesser credenual but one that can seta student
up for success in higher education and a carecr
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Cluef executive's strategic overview continued

Meeung the need

For the two billon people learning Enghish as a foreign
lariguage, or the 300- 400 rlkon more people enroling in
higher educazon over the ne«t 30 years, and all the other
seudenis of all ages around the world the need for effective
and relevant teaching and learning will continue Lo grow

Ofcourse there are challenges to meeting this need
Fragmented and slloed approaches to education, changes
in government policy and regulanons, and wadely diverse
economic and social conditions, make our worlc and that
of educators worldwide much more complex Butwe

are confident that by standing at the intersecuon of new
technology and good teaching practices, we can help 1o
malce learning more accessible and more refevant for more
people arcund the world

tn 2005, five prioiiues outhned here are guding our work

HMAGE REMOVED

Short stortes of impace

2015 prionines

A business model focused on helping more
people achieve better learning outcomes

OQur efficacy imnatve, first cutlined in last year’s report, is
no longer just a framewoik Efficacy i1s now at the centre
of our business model and a major part of how we create
value This year, we'll embed it even more deeply nto the
fabric of everything we do so that it reaches more products,
influences more people and transforms more processes
As our custemers become ever more focused on achieving
better returns on education related spending, Pearson is at
the forefront of a great global growth opportunity And it
enables us to put our soeral impact at the very heart of our
business This applies to our Project Literacy campaign
(page 54) and the renewed investment in our Pearson
Affordable Learning Fund (page 56) just as it does to the
research and development of new products and services
and the way we engage with our customers each day

ft1s the means by which we ensure that educaton is

more accessible, mpactful and affordable, and delwers
those outcomes to people regardiess oflocation

Ouwr business model

Ou-eflicw y prog e
assessing and improving
the impact i ow

v U ts SO e Lo e
val e ¢ eaton s nadet

IMAGE REMOVED

Zuref's story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Zuriet1s an ambitious [2-year ofd documentary
fitmmaker originally from Nigena, who now lives in
Calforna Shess enrolled in Pearson's enurely onhne
Connecuons Academy, which she says allows her to
"do extracurricular activiives even when wraveling
overseas creatmg documentaries, and interviewing
African leader s,” without mussing important
schoolwork Zurel recenty launched the "SpealcUp,
Stand Up” project to mspire girfs on the Aftican
conunent to *stay in school geta good educanon,
and 4fso to accomplish their dreams ' We can safely
say she isleading by example
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2 New digital products

To further this worl, we'll be launching new global
products to meet the need for much better teariung
outcomes They connect content with assessment and
feedback They use analytics and big data to personalse
learmng ~ malang it a far more collaborative and effecave
experience for students and teachers They all draw on
world-dass research into the science of teaching and
iearning In the end they'll all be mobde first and device
neutrzl And they are all designed to take full account of
just how 'messy’ education can be, how importantitis
to deliver large and complex projects, and how to deal
with ‘lastmile’ issues Our customers all know that the

i eal problem in educauon s not finding a great teacher
or areally good school, but being able to rephcate that
excelience atscale All our new digital products are
focused on meetng that need

Our prionties

3 A more focused company

We re bullding these products i a moedular and scalable
way, and deploying them on a smaller number of global
platforms Thus improves the customer expenence
makes it much easter to share assets and resources across
the whole company, and is also much more cost cffecuve
ltis ane example of how we are stmplifying our company
We've already reduced the number of applications and
systems used across the company by (0%, and we will
continue that work this year We have already sold a
number of businesses where either we lacked scale or
we saw lirmited scope for us to have a more direct tmpact
on learning outcomes This work will continue, as we
focus our resources and energy on the biggest education
challenges we see around the world Itis where we can
make the biggestimpact, and where, by runming Pearson
as one company we see the biggest opportunity

Ouw operating struciure

Bendeoand vrwatsewe s Blended and v
{eqr, Connecuons Educaton: 0 gher educavontewning

Sistemas (v.g COC)

Large sexle astesiment

cen ooy (g, TestNav)

World cass qualficatons
{e § Edexce BTLC)

O guiea! ol ucal sordedo
(e Q Imeracive)

Nuixnt generaron
cOuMsewJre e 5

enVis onl4ATH Pearson
System of Covrses
Reahze:

fenCTN)

Bie wlea and v tira!
Engshlanguazefetnng
te, Wal Streer Englisn)

On e progas we
SIADAEFIMCAL{E E our
partnersho wint Arzont
State Usrversity -
ASUOnre)

Nexy gencranon

senrseware ey RCVEL)

Short stones of impact

Pearcon VUE

Glose! ea e of Engian
and Progresy

Meat peneriuon
coLrsewwe(eg

My Englisn L ELT Wortd
Top Noteh

Wecamaragolal
At v LG en
learne- oo citfer
ages and stages, focally
adapted and delvered
a0 abv ys v i
learv e b gt
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julia’s stary

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Julta 1s fearning English at one of Pearson’s Yall Street
Engiish centres i Shanghal | met wath her during my visit
there and was inspired by her dnve She now bves far
firom her parents' farm in south Ching, and far from

the norms of rurallife jubia's deasion o leave hometo
conanue in higher educanon might have come as a shodk
to her famify, but she 1s determined to improve her
English language capabilines in order to further her career
prospects and. one day, find work wath a global company
She likes to engage on social media with fiends she's met
virtually around the world —and she wants to use her
Enghish language slils to spread the word that, as she
puts it, “there's more to my country than air polluzon ™
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Chief executive's strategic overview continued

My [UFTVINN
A mare consistently hugh
performing culture

At 1ts best, Pearson has always championed high
performance, we're now talung a whole series of

actions (induding how we recruit, appraise and reward
everyone who works lor Pearsen) to make this a feature
of everyrhing we do We've reaffirmed, and amplified,
our long held values of 'brave, imaginative and decent’,
which are particularly impon tant at a ume of great change
(Of the top 100 executves in the company, 70 are. in the
last two years, new to their roles or 1 the company )
VWe've also added ‘accountable’ as a fourth core value
Thus 1s important to ensure that, n our new more ‘matrix’
style orgarusation, we all actively help each other to
achieve our collective goals [t also recogniseshow
importantitis to be accountable to the public trust

for all we do in education around the world

IMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of iImpact

5 A stronger brand

Ttus accountability extends to our willingness to engage
in the public debate Education s ene of the most
jrapot tant areas of public ife and evekes strong
emotions and optmions in a field where data and
evidence as to ‘what works’ can be difficult to come

by Ourfocus on educatonal impact and learming
outcomes — and our openness and transparency in
holding ourselves to account in achteving these goals —
1s vital to address these concerns Today, public
awareness of Pearson as the world's leading tearring
company, is stll relatively imsted fwe are going to
achreve our full potential, we need to buld Pearson,

as a global educauon brand that 1s known for our work
in empawering more people to progress in their ives
through learning This means, for example, that we
need to be much less muted i our engagement in the
crca 78 million-voice strong ‘global conversatian’ that
our research tells us s currently taking pface at ound the
topics of ‘education” and ‘learning’ And we also need
to orgamse our product marketing so that we posttion
Pearson, especially onhine and through social media,

in a much more coherent way

Taylor's story

IMAGE REMOVED

MAGE
REMOVED

Taylor s a student at the Univer siey of North Texas
who was not thrilled that Statstics was a required
course for her major She facked confidence m math
and nearly ter that fear cause her to change course
and quit her degree programime aftogether ‘f thought
| didn't have the abidity to do maths,’ she told us
Taylor was then mntroduced to Pearson'’s MyStatsLab
and decided to push through her fear Instead of fadure,
she found success through using the tool to reinforce
learning and pracuce in difficult areas She completed
her Staustcs class with the highest possible grade
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Loolang ahead

tn accepting her Nobel Peace Prize, Malala Yousafzai sad
‘tammany [am notrasag rmy volce, itis the voice of
those 66 million girfs At the same event her fellow
recipient, Kadash Satyarthe set us alf the task of
‘urnversalising knowledge'

Al 40,000 Pearson cofleagues are tackling these priotities
tn that sprritof | am many " working with each other and
with the miflions of students, teachers and schools we
serve We'll grow by helping more of our fellow citizens
to grow, by universalising the knowledge (and the skills)
they'll need to succeed in this increasmgly human capital
driven world Workeng with the cornrmunities in which
we operate we'll combine new technology and new
teaching to enable the world ta earn a far greater return
on the §5 trillion and more that is spent on educatcen
each year Aswe succeed, we'll grow our market
opporwnity and help many more people make progress
in their lives through fearning As a result, we'll startto
grow agamin 2015, and mere importantly iwwill setus
up to be afaster growing leaner, more profitable and
cash-genet ative company for yeat s 1o come We'libe a
company depioymg less capital. and capable of earning
higher returns

My executive team

| thank all my cofleagues for their hard work and
commitment And i thank ourshareholders for their
support and patience We are alieady better placed to
fhielp more learners around the world to achieve thew
own personal aspiranons

IMAGE REMOVED

jobhn Fallon Chief executive

Lines of Business

Doug Kubach, Plesident, Schoot

1w Bozlk, President, Higher Cducanon
Jatw Ridding President, Professional

Geogt aphies

Con Kilburn, President, Nordr Amenca
Rod Brnstow President, Core

Tamara Minck-Scolalo, President, Growth

Enabling functions

Rabin Freestane, Chref financial officer

Coramn Withains, Clief financial officer from (st Augse 2015

tichael Barber Chiel education adviser

Kate James Clvel corporate offan s officer

Luyen Chou, Chief produce officer

Adbert Hireheodd, Chiefinformation officer

Melmda Wolfe Chief luman: esources officer

Phill toffman Chief corporate finance & straregte deveinpmen officer
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Financial overview

IMAGE REMOVED

Rabin freesiane Chief financal officer

Sales tat CLR)
Adjusted earnings per share
Operatng cash flow

Dividend per share

+6%

“In 2014, revenues were up 2% at

constant exchange rates to £4.9bn,
and level in underlying terms, but

dedined 4% in headline terms due to

the negative impact of exchange rates.”

Business perfosmance 13_':- mc':» ”cfp?é’&i?ﬁ cao-;-rEg UN%E:oLw:g
Sales 4874 5069 (4% 2% 0%
Adjusted ape aung profit

{excluding Mergermarker) 720 710 1% 8% %
Adjusted operaung profit 722 736 ()% 5% 5%
Adjusted earntngs

per share 667p 701p (5)%

Operating cash flow 649 588 10%

Free cash flow 413 269 54%

Free cash flow pershaie S0% 333 53%

Return oninvested capital 56% 54% 02%pls

Net debt 1,639 (379 {19)%

Statutory results

Sales 4874 5,069 (4)%

Operating profit 398 458 {13)%

Profit befo e tax 305 382 {(200%

Basic earmings per share 58 ip 666p {13y%

Cash generated in

operations 704 684 3%

Drwidend per share 510p 480p 6%

Note

1) G owilrrutes are stated on acontianl exchange st (CER ) Basis vn es5 athcraise stased Where
quot d Lndertyng g own rates excivde both oy Diovemenss wd porrfoho cianges Un'ess
othe Pevise ~tated sales excludt Penpun snd Mer pevmary et w ote ad usted opeanng, prefics ntiude
Pengumn Peagum Rander House and Merpera skt Copunming cperanens exe lude bot Pengins

and Merge rovier

b The Bus pees ot -om ance measures are nto GAAR metspres and re contiiat o5 o the ¢ qu v Fene
starnenn y head #p wader (FRS areuniudndin notes tothe coneaidazed hnsncal stuenenrs 2 6 7 8
el 34 and the corparare 1d ORerADE MPA 1IeS

e)Fo1 Lomparibday g poses we hasmdrded an addiio 1! ack usted i rating prof me sare that
exciudes 1he resu tr of Merpe s ket but i fudes those of Pengu . (n 2014 Mergermasiesr cong Luwted
only pive month of arc fit (£2m) win bt cominnuted afeflyear in 208 (€ 26mm Alhough Pungunisa
drrotinsed buness the results are poa sifger vely ncluded witun our aesocate shve of PRH
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Profit & loss statemenct

Restructuring

In 2014, Pearson sales dedined £095m, 4% in headline
terms, to £4 9bn Total adjusted operating m ofit felf
£14m 2% n headline terms, to £722m after £44m of
net restructurng charges (2013 £135m)

Currency movements, primarily from the strength of
Sterling relative to the US Diollar during the year, reduced
sales by £272m and operatung profits by £49m At
constant exchange rates (ie stripping out the impact of
those currency movements), our sales and adjusted
operatng profit grevy 2% and 5%, respectively

Acquisiuons and disposals contributed £79m to sales and
a net zero to operating profits at constant exchange rates
This ndudes integration costs and nvestments related

to our newly-acquired companies, which we expense
Pengunt Random House was reported post tax for the

full yearn 2014, compared to only the second halfin 2013
following the combination of Penguin with Random House
on | July 2013, and resulted in a £7m reduction n the
contribution to operating ncome with an equat benefit

1o our tax charge

Stripping out the wmpact of portfolio changes. Pengumn
Random House and the impact of curt ency movements,
revenues were level in underlying terms while adjusted
operaung profit {excluding Mergermarket) grew by 5%

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, compared 1o
£72min 2013 This decrease s manly due to the impact
of foreign exchange translanon and additonal interest
recevable on cash balances held overseas which offset
the effect of higher average net debt levels in the period

Our taxrate in 2014 was 179% compared to 14 6% "
2013 reflecung tax settlements in 2013

Adjusted earnings per share were 66 7p (2013 70 ip)

MNet resrructuring charges were £44m (2013 £135m)

and included portiolio, utle, marketing and technology
rationahsation in North America, the consolidanion and
integration of our operauons in cer tain Growth markets
and a move 1o a distrbutor modelin South Korea, the

exit of non-strategic business hines m certam Core and
Growth markets, and, across all of our businesses,
technology platform and operanons simplification and the
ongoing transformaton of our supply chain and customer
contact operations Gross restructuring costs were £84m
in 2014 {2013 £176m) offset by esumated net benefits
in-year of £40m (2013 £41m)

Cash generauon

Headline operaung cash flowincreased by £6imto
£649m benefitng from improved working capttal from
deferred revenue growth and an ncreased dividend

from Penguin Random House, partly offset by increased
investment levels and ongoing restructunng charges

Free cash flow increased by £144m to £413m, additionally
reflecung lower tax payments Our average worlung
capital to sales ratio improved by a further | | percentage
points to 12 3% helped by lower inventory levels and the
absence of Penguin

Return on invested capital

Ouwr retuim on average invested capital was 5 6% (2013
54%) Despite lower reported profit ROIC benefited
from lower cash tax pasd We expect ROIC tostartto
improve again 1 2015
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Financial overview continued

Statutory 1esults

tn 2014 our statutory operaung profic was £398m aftera
£77m witte down of the batance sheetvalue of intangrbles
in ourindian business a £38m loss on disposal of our
stake in Nook Media and a £40m gain on the disposal

of our stake in Safari Books Online and CourseSmart
Qur statutory earmings were £470m, induding a £198m
gain from the disposal of Mergermarlet and a £29m
adjustment to the Penguin disposal, primarily in refaton
o pensions

tn 2043, our statutory operating profit was £458m
Our stawutory earnings were £539m, including a £217m
gan from the disposal of Penguin

Balance sheet

Our net debtincreased to £1.63%m (£1.379min 2013)
primartly reflecung the strengthening of the US dollar
relative to Sterling and the acquisition of Grupo Mult
partly offser by the disposal of Mergermarket, fewer
restructuring charges, improved worlang capital, the
growth m deferred revenue and an increased dividend
from Penguin Random House Pearson’s net debt/
EBITDA rato increased from | 6xin 2013 1o | 9x1n 2014
and our nterest cover increased from 0 2xto H 3x

Dividend

The board 1s proposing a dividend increase of 6% to 51 Op,
subject wo shareholder approval 2014 will be Pearsons
23rd straight year of increasing our dvidend above the
rate of inflagon Over the past ten years we have
increased our dividend at a compound annual rate of

7%, returning more than £2 9bn to shareholders We
have a progressive dvidend policy we intend to build

our dmvdend cover to around 2 Ox over the long term,
increasing our dividend more in fine with earnings growth
from then

2015 outlock

in 2014, we completed the maor restructuring and
product investment programme, iniated in 2013,
designed to accelerate Pearson's shift towards significant
growth opportunities in digital, services and fast-growing
economues We believe this will provide Pearson with a
significanty larger market opportunity, a sharper focus
on the fastest-growing markets and stronger financial
returns in 2015, we are returning to more normal levels
of restructuring expenditure

Based on 21 fanuary 2015 exchange rates, we expectto
report adjusted earnings per share of between 75p and
80pin 2015 The major factors behund this guidance are
as follows

Trading conditions

We continue to expect that cychical and policy related
factors stabilise in 2015

InNorth America out fargest mariet, we expect growth
in online higher education services and VUE and, with
more stable college enrolments and a sfower new edition
year learning services to be broadly level In school,
while the possibiity of further polcy related disruption
remamns, we expect greater stabiity in fearmng services
and assessments with growth in virtual schools

In our Core markets (which nclude the UK italy and
Australia), we expect trading condiions to stabifise 1n the
UK growth n mside services to broadly offset declines in
learning services in Australia, and sustaned share in Raly
following share gains in 2014 We expect the Finanaal
Tines to conunge to benefit from, and mvestin, its

digial ransition
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In our Growth markets {which include Brazid, China, india
and South Afi ica), we expect good growth in China in
our English Language Learning aduit and test preparation
busmesses and continued stabiity in learnmg services, in
Brazl, we expect a better year in our Sisternas business
and good growth i our English Language Learning
franchises, and in South Africa we expect a more stable
year in learming services with modest growth i lugher
education direct delivery

Portfolio changes

We benefited for many years from the synergies

created by integrating Penguin mto our shared services
operations Following the transittan of Penguin from
Pearson services during 2014, some shared services

costs remain with Pearson without assaciated 1 evenues
WWe estmate these shared services costs at approximately
£30m We can reduce this somewhat over time which
will be captui ed in cur normat levels of restructuring

Pearson has iniuated a process to explore a possible safe
of PowerSchool and our other Student Information
Systems businesses including PowerSchool SMS,
Gradespeed. and eSIS Forms This process is at an early
stage and there isno certanty thatit wifl lead to a
transacuon n 2004, PowerSchoo! contributed $97m of
revenues and $20m of operaung income Our guidance
assumes ownership of PowerSchool for all of 2015
Pearson has appomted Evercore to advise on the process

Currency movements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of its sales n the
US A five cent move in the average £ § exchange rate for
the full year (wiich in 2014 was £1 ${ 65) has animpact of
approximately | 3p on adjusted earnings per share

The benefit from the weakening of Sterling aganst the
US dollar on our reported operatng income will be
partly offset by the strength of Sterling aganst arange of
non-US dollar curvencies, includmg the euro, Australian
dollar and certam emerging markets cur encies, and a
higher interest charge as Sterfing weakness against the
US dollar mereases the Sterling value of our US doliar
denominated debt and merest payments

Restructuring

We will benefit from the absence of £44m of exceptional
net restructurtng charges expensed n 2014 and we still
expect to generate £45m of mcremental cost savings
2015

These benefits will be partly offset by normal levels of net
restructuning of approximately £30mm 2015

Interest and tax

We expect our intere st charge to be fugher than 2014,
reflecung hugher aver age net debt levels, primarily as a
result of the strength of the US dollar against Sterling

We expect a tax rate of approxmately 17% on our total
profit before tax (which inciudes the post-tax cont bution
from Penguin Random House)
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Key performance indicators
Five-year performance

Finanaat objecnves Kei Performance
H : Sales 3 70/
Malntaln Sales rose 2% at CER i 2014 and have grown oves the last + . (o
ng- five years at an average annual rate of over 3% reflecung
IO g term good long term gmv?th m dimtat and services busthesses and Learnmore aboutiink to

growth

avqussitions i the global education inark et pat ually offset by a
shift 1o subscrption revenues, 1 ecent cychical and policy facrors
and adverse exchange rate movements

remunel auon on pBe

Total adjusted opet aarg profit

Total adjusted oper ating profit 1 ose 5% m 2014 at CER and has
fallen a1 a compound annual 1 ate of 3 4% since 20091 eflectung
good long-term growth n digital & services offset by the sale of
businesses exceptional restructunng costs in 2014, recent cycheal
and policy factors and adver se exchange rate movements

-34%

Deliver
sustamnable
returns

Total adjusted eanings

Total adjusted earmings per shai e 1s down 5% yeat-on year
2014 reflecung porticho changes, exchange rate movements
and a higher tax rate Over five years EPS has grown at an

aves age annual rate of 0 4% reflecung good long term growth

wn pur dignal and services businesses offset by declnes i print,
por tolio changes (ecent exceptional 1 estructul ing costs, cycheal
and pohcy factors and adverse exchange rate imovements

+04%

L earn mot ¢ abouibink to
Temune un on pBG

Retwr i on invested capital

ROMC grow 0 2% to 5 6% 10 2014 and was affecied by lower
reported profit and A higher tax charge ROIC has falten from

B 9% 1n 2009 We expect ROIC 1o starttoimprove againin 2015

-3.3

pet reitage pomts

Learnmorc out ink o
remuneraion on pBe

Total shareholder setin

TSRn 2014 was 7% whih compares 1o a 1% return onthe
FTSE {00 Index of large UX listed compames Over five years,
Pearson has returned approxmately 62%, well ahead of the
rewrn on the FISE 100 index of 45% over the same perrod

+61.9%

tearn more about lnk 1o
remuneraton on pBé

Dividends per share

We inct eased dvidends in respect of 2014 by 6% to 51p ouw
23rd straight year of mereasing oul dividend above the rate
of inflauion

+7.5%

Manage our
cash position
effectively

Qperating cash fiow

Oper aung cash flow 1 0se Lo £64%ma 20E4 up more than [0%
benehung from lower testructurng charges, inpraved working
capital, deferred revenue growth and anincreased drndend from
Pengun Randomi House, partly offset Ly meveased invesument
{evels Over five years operanng cash flow has dechined af an
average annuali ate of over 6% per annum reflecung good fong
tevm growthin our digital and services businesses offset by dednes
i print por toha changes, recert excepuonal restructuring costs,
cydical and policy factors and adverse exchange 1 ate movements

-6.6%

Learnmore about hnle 1o
remuit raucn on pBo
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Strategic objectives

Dara/Progress

Transform Revenue share
to digitat and zg—réseﬁ £3 O b "
services n .
2014 - 62 1%
Gr‘ow Revemui shate
2010 - 10 9%
presence in £459¢m £79 4
emerglng 2004-163%
markets

MNoa financial measures

Review programme ontrack
DE’IVE r + Plans o 1eport first pilotimpacr
measu r‘ab'e tesults in 2046 on target
AT EVIEWS
impact e i
¢E flicacy) 200
Dehver Gender dweraty
d MEN WOMEN
gen er Board 7 0% 3 30%
bal ance Semor managers
{exd executive
board dil ectors) &4 65% _}5__ ,35}‘;
All employees 17064 42% 23470 58%
Global GHG
Reduce our M:"lt:c:onne:ggs‘fns
carbon 204
footprint 129,742 -11%
2043
(45716
Maintan
community
investment IMAGE REMOVED

SSANISNE dNO |

Q
[
-
-
m
e
-
O
ol
X
>
prd
]

LOVdWI TYID0S ¥NO

FANYNYIAQD l

SINFHILVLS IVIDNENIY i



Operating
performance
overview




Section Z e perferrane

Developing for access, delivering for outcomes

Cur strategy centres on a significant and exaing
long-term opportunity the sustaned and growing
global demand for greater affordabiity, access, and
achievernent in education. We can meet this demand
by accelerating our shift to digital, to services and to
fast-growing economies, and committing to deliver
measurably improved learning outcomes through
our efficacy framework.

Our primary segments for management reporting
are Geographies (North America, Core and
Growth) as this Is how we drive business
performance. This is how we reach learners, through
content and digital services in Individual classrooms:
through broad partnerships with public and private
education institutions and, N certain markets, by
directly expanding capacity through our own schools
and colleges.

This geographical structure 1s wholly dependent upon
a parallel product development strategy, in which we
organise by learning ages and stages — School, Higher
Fducation and Professional.

By focusing our product development around the
needs of the learner, we are able to centre evidence
and expertise where it can be best applied to
improving outcomes for people
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Operatng performanee wonunued

Geagraphy

North
America

$5INISNG dNO

Sales Adjusted operanng profit

£3.0bn £464m

Revenues declined 3% in headiine terms, due
to the strengthening of sterling against the
US dollar, but increased by 2% at both CER
and in underlying terms. Revenue growth in
Connections Educaton, VUE, Clinical and
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IMAGE REMOVED Higher Education was partaily offset by

dechines in School learning services and State 9
Assessments Adjusted operating profits =
declined 2% n headiine terms due to currency A
movements, but grew 5% at both CER and ;
underlying, reflecting revenue mix, lower 2
m
returns provision, reduced US pension costs -
and lower restructunng charges
In our statutory results, we recognised a £38m
loss on disposal of our 5% stake in Nook Media =
and a £40m gain on the disposal of our stakes 2
in Safart Books Onfine and CourseSmart z
A
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Operating performance continued

North America
continued

School

in Schoel, good growth i Connectons Education, our
virtual schools business, was offset by declines nour
State Assessments business due to theimpact of legistatve
changes in Texas and Calforma, and infearning services,
due to some loss of market share (as reported at the half
year), revenue deferral on blended programmes and
softness n the Open Ternitories

Connections Education served over 62,000 Full Time
Equivalent students during 204 through full-ume wirtual
and blended programmes, up more than 15% from 2013
Three new full-ume virtual pubhc schools were launched in
2014 and 2n addivonal one will faunchin 2015 Atfull-tme
virtual schools supported by Connections Educauon,
students consistently outperform then virtual school
peers on state standardised tests Students at College
Park Academy ablended school in Mat yland using the
Connecrons Education curnculum scored significantly
tugher than therr in-state peers in reading and math in

the Maryland Schoot Assessment (MSA) for 6thand

7th Grades

In State and National Assessments, hugh stakes online test
volumes grew strongly, up 40% on 2013 to 11 million, as
customers transitoned to computer-based testing Paper-
based high stakes test volumes dedined 7% to 32 mithon,
in part due to the growth of computer-based testing, but

IMAGE REMOVED

Connecuons Egusation served over 62,000 (+1535} full ame
equivatent students duning 2014 chrough full-ume virtual and
blended prog) ammes At full ume vi tual schools suppor ted
by Connrcrons Edurauon students consistently outperform
thew vistual school peers on state standrrdised tests

Leam more 4t connecoensedusauon com

also the impact of legistative changes n Texas and Califorma
We were awarded contr acts to adnnister Partnerstup for
Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC)
assessments in F states and extended our contracts

to admunister Virginia Standards of Leat ning (SOL)
Assessiments and the Maryland High School Assessment
We will continue to administer the Flonda Comprehensive
Assessment Test (FCAT) untl summer 2016

Climcal Assessment grew strongly, benefiungfrom the
launch of the fifth ediion of the Wechsler ntelligence Scale
for Children (WISC-V} and strong growth in Q-interacuve,
where early studies are showing good improvements in
menta! health professional productivity and student
engagement levels

PowerSchool supported almost |3 nullion students (in
more than 70 countries), broadly level with 2013, while
licehsed Schoolnet student counts rose more than 10% to
over 10million In New Jersey we launched Schoclnetin 27
school districts, with 4 more implementauons in progress,
and have delivered over 400,000 assessments since faunch

Learmng services revenues declined due to the impact of
revenue deferrals from blended digital programmes and
aloss of market share, with a weaker performance n
Grades 6-8 Science and Math in Texas, and Grades 6-12
Literature and Grades 6-8 Math in Florida only partly
offset by a stronger performance in K-6 Math in Texas.
Grades 6-12 Sooal Studies in Tennessee and Grades

I-6 Math in Cahformia We won an estmated 25% of
the total new adopuons market (of $310m i 2014)
enVisionMATH, which now has the targest installed base
of elernentary students in the US, contmues to dnve
sigmficant improvernents n student computauon and
probliem solving

tMAGE REMOVED
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Higher Education

i Higher Educaton, total college enrolments fell, as
expected, by | 3% Careorenrofments in two-year public
{community) and four-year for-profit colleges dedined
3%, with rising employmient rates and regulatory change
affecting the for-profit and developrmental fearmng sectors

earning services grew modesdy, primarily due to mariet
share gains, conunued growth in digital courseware
registrations, a stronger new edition cycle and less
pronounced seasonality MyLab registrations i North
America grew 3% to almost || milion Lecturer generated
case studies mndicate that the use of MyLab programmes,
as part of abroader course redesign, can support
improvementsin student test scores (http //pear sn/
IZxLE) Welaunched REVEL, which combines trusted
content with interactive videos, quizzes, a mobile user
interface study tools assignment calendar and
performance dashboard for (7 humarives and socal
sciences subjects Thelaunch of REVEL is the first of
numerous product lines talking advantage of our new
cloud-based, mobile-ready and data analytics capabibues
New edrmions launched m 2014 included Tro The Structures
and Prapertes of Chermistry, Acermoglu, Laibson and List,
Econones, and Pearson Whiter, an apphcation bult for
mobile devices that helps students in developing wriing
skills We pubhshed a range of digital tides for The Boy
Scouts of America and mplemented a new digital
curnculum incorporating enhanced Merit Badge
programmes in subjects including Roboucs Digital
Technology and First Asd for the organisauon's 2 7 milllon
youth members

IMAGE REMOVED

in 2014 we launched REVEL combumng trusted content
wizh rich mteractivity and content across 17 humamties
and socwl saences subjects REVEL s the first of our
produc ines Laking full advantage of our new cloud based
mobide ready and data analytres capabifiue s

Learn more ar pearsanfughered com/ evel

Pearson On Line Services where we run fully orline

undet graduate and graduate learning p1 ogramnies and
carn cet tain revenues based on the success of the students
and the insutution, grew course enrolments by 22% during
the year with conunued strong growth m programmes

at Arizona State University Online and University of
Horda Online We signed new programmes with

Bradley University, to create five online graduate degree
programmes in nursing and counseling, and University of
Texas at Austin, Dana Center where we are partnerng for
the web delivery of math courses for its New Mathways
Project (INMP), which will become part of a state-wade
reform inuative in a collaboration between Dana Ceniter
and the Texas Association of Community Colleges

We expanded our collabor auon with the American
Health Informatton Management Association (AHIMA)

to administer 1ts online education business, which serves
AHIMA’s 71,000 members ncluding 10,000 higher
educaton students each year We now provide our
learrung management system hosting 100 courses based
on AHIMA content, technical support, a next generation
Virtual Lab Product, and are launching a Coding Basics
cotrrse combining AHIMA and Pearson content

Professionat

AtVUE, global test volumes grew 9% year-on-year to
almost [3 mifion boosted by continued growth in IT,
State Regulatory and Professional cerufications

New contracts nclude a deal to admunister the Microsoft
Cernfied Professional {(MCP) Program globally, which
significantly expands our exisung partner ship with
Microsoft through Certport’s Microsoft Office Speaalist
(MOS) and Micr osoft Technology Associate (MTA) exams

IMAGE REMOVED

M L b registrauons in North America
y d grew 3% to almost [ mithon
Leroarer penerited case studies indicate that

the vse of Mylab programmes can support
IMPLOVAMENLs M 85 SCoTe:

Learnmote it pearsonmylabandimssrermg com
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Operating performarke conwued

Geography

Core

Sales Adjusied operatng profit

£1.2bn  £152m

Revenues declined by 8% in headline terms and
by 5% at both CER and in underlying terms
Modest growth n Italy and good growth at
VUE was offset by declines in UK assessment
revenues, due to the impact of policy changes
on our UK school qualifications business, and
reduction in partner market revenues, due to
dvestments and a move to distnbutor models
implemented in 2013 FT revenues were
broadly level at CER, with digital content
growth offset by declines i print content and
advertising Adjusted operating profit (excluding
Mergermarket) increased by £32m to £152m,
driven by the benefits of restructuring actions
taken over the last two years in all markets and
by profitgrowth at the FT

tMAGE REMOVED

Our new operating and reporung structure

Core Lhp bggest Cepgmukets meths LN Austral 1 Goimane
Frante benetux iod italy Addinenalhy we have grouns 100 parne
rarlee s v e we Lo ot have stale ver sefves, so A collboiate
[FEAL% e AL

Learn more about Our aperatng structure on p7°
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Operating performance contmued

Core continued

IMAGE REMOVED

We conbnue to snvest to build Pearson College in the
UK, and graduated cur firsc 32 stsdents during the year
Pearson College was one of only fout privare colleges 1o
pars Quality Assurance Agency (QAA) review first ume

Learn more J€ pearsoncofiege com

School

In the UK, qualfications have been wmpacted by
government policy, where changes to accountability
measures and a shift to end of course assessments in
GCSE have ted to a 21% dechine in BTECs and 11% dedme
in General Qualfications i the year We marked almost
four enilhon National Curriculum Tests, up 24% on 2013
QOur contract to adrmunster the Nauonal Curniculum Test
(NCT) was extended ta 2017 More than 4,600 schools,
with almost 850,000 children, now subscribe to at Jeast
one of the Bug Club services, our primary school blended
reading programme

In Australia, we benefited from a stronger adoption year
and the launch of the locaity standardised version of the
Wechsler Pre and Primary Scales of Intelhgence (fourth
edwon) In ltaly, we gamned share in both primary and
secondary with new utles combined with professional
development and online cross-curricula support

in primary, we developed Top Secret and adapted

Our Dhscovery Isfand English Language Learning
programimes Insecondary we extended our market
leadership in the Humantties

Revenues dechned sigmficantly in our pa: ther markets due
to challenging market condittons in Africa and Scandinavia
and the move to a distibutor model in certam markets
We disposed of ourlocal schoofs hists n the Carbbean

as we contnue to focus on our fargest global geographic
opportunities

Higher Education

Inthe UK our learning services revenues dedined,
primarily due to enrolment contracuon following policy
changes in the vocational markets We continue o
wwest to build Pearson College and graduated our first

IMAGE REMOVED

More than 4,600 schools in the UK, with
almost 850,000 chddren now sibseribe
1o at least one of the Bug Club services,
ow pnmiry school reading programme

Learn more at bugclub co uk
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32 students during the year Peal son College was one
of onfy four private colleges to pass Quality Assurance
Agency {QAA} 1 eview first ume

In Australia, learning services revenues grew modestly
benefiung from growth in cot e subjects, such as Biology,
and direct-to-insutucton sales of digitalfearrung products
offset by our exit from vocauonal publishing Monash
Oniine, our collaboranon with Monash University,
contnues to show good growth and will launch additsonal
courses in the second half of 2015 [n addition we
collaborated with another leading university in Australia
to provide course development, recruitment, enrolment,
and student support services for post-graduate courses

Professional

At VUE, test volumes grew strongly following the
successful faunch of a new contract with CPA Austraha
to deliver Professional level exams and conunued good
growth in UK Driving Theory test volumes VWewill
continue to delver our UK contract to admemister the
Drving Theory test for the DVSA untd September 2016
VUE entered into ten year partnersiups with the
Chartered [nstitute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
and the Assoctation of Charter ed Cerufied Accountants
(ACCA) in the UK to ransform a selection of thewr exams
from pen and paper to computer-based tesung

The contrbution from The Economist Group was lower
due to a dedine in advertsing revenue, a weaker US dollar
and lower profits at CQ Roll Call The arculation of The
Economist remains robust at [ 6 mifkon, with anincrease
of 23% in digital subscripuons The Economist’s new daily
app. Espresso, was downloaded almost 400,000 vmes
The Group's content marketing services continue to

g1 ow, with revenue increasmg by 20% at CER

Financial Times Group

At the Financial Times Group, the FT grew its total
arculation by (0% year-on yearto a record high of
nearly 720,000 across prnntand ontine Digital
subscriptions increased 21% year-on-year to almost
504,000 and now represent 70% of the F1's total
paying audience The strong digital circulation growth
offset continued su uctural declines in print content
and advertising, where the FT cantinues to take
market share

Productinnovation and launches, including an FT
Weekend app daily FirstF T briefing with editors’
selecton of essental news and comment from across
the web, ‘follow the author’ alerts and a new FT
Androtd App conunue to resultin steady growthiin
mobile usage and ume spent on FTcom Mobileis
the fastest grawing channel We launched the FT {IE
Corpordte Learning Alhance a jomt ventu e with IE
Business School, which provides premium custom
learning to business leaders around the globe The
partnership connects the acadermic excellence of
praminent business schools with the FT's award-
winnuing journalism and insight into real world and
real-ume business challenges

IMAGE REMOVED

Franciof Times’ product innovatans
incfude the FT Weelend web app,
and frstfT a dady email bnieling

of must-reads {rontits website and
other sources

Learn mutre atft com

FT dgial subscrpnons
mereased

+21%

504,000
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Operatmig performan e continued

Growth

Sales Adjusted operatmg profit

£746m £35m

Revenues grew 1% in headline terms, despite the strength of
sterling aganst key emerging market currencies, grew by 1% at
CER, benefiting from the acquisiton of Grupo Muly; and were
down 1% in underlying terms, primarily due to the phasing of
purchasing and a stronger School textbook adoption in South
Africa in 2013 Growing English Language Learning enrolments in
China and college enrolments in Saudi Arabia and South Africa
were offset by a smaller School textbook mariket in South Africa,
and lower revenues i Brazil from Sistemas, and ELT and Higher
Education textbooks Excluding the textbook impact in South
Africa, revenues grew 4% in underlying terms Adjusted operating
profit declined by £3m to £35m reflecting a benefit from the
acquisiion of Grupo Mult offset by a slower adoption year in
South Afnca, launch costs associated with our new vocational
colleges and a contract provision i Saudi Arabia, and weaker
revenues and restructuring costs in Brazil

In our statutory results, we wrote down the balance sheet value of
our indian business by £77m largely reflecting the reduced value of
online tutonng which was primarly focused on the US market

IMAGE REMOVED

Our new operating and reporong structure

Growth QO gt vihirpurkets ave made vpof Braml Sontl Afe Clhena inciear d et
fast-grewng coonortes Aroa wd onethed of ok U hners o W intheoe ceuni g

Learn more abaut Qur apel abng structure on pl °
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Operating performance conttnued

GFS\XEh continued

School

Professional

in South Africa, we performed well, competitively
maintaming our market share of the School textbook
market, but volumes declined sigmificantly to more normal
levels following a targe adoption year, and significant share
gains,in 2013

In Brazil, enrolments in our Sistemas were down 3% to
481,000 with growth in our public Stistemas (NAME)
offset by declirnes in our private Sistemas as we combined
our three sales forces into one 72% of the mumicipahues
that adopted NAME for lower secondat y education
showed improvement in their IDEB score, Brazl's
federally established measure of educationaf quahity

in India, DigiClass, our multimedia reactung solution 1s
now mistalled mn more than 26,000 classrooms, up more
than 10% on 2013 We partnered with {BM to further
accelerate our deployment across the country

Higher Educauon

In South Africa, student enrolments in CTI/MGI our
private network of tigher educaton insututions, grew
by 15% to 13400 across {3 campuses

In Mexico, our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, increased the number of students
enrofled from under 5,000 last year to more than 2,000
in 2014 as a result of improved consumer marketing
efforts and better student retention

In India, Higher Education revenues deciined due to
high levels of returns

IMAGE REMOVED

DigClass, our muitimedra teaching sofugion s
now installed m more than 26,000 dassiooms
inindia up more than 10% on 2043

Learn miore at digidass i

In Pearson Enghsh, good growth in direct delivery n
China and inside services in Braal due to the acquisition
of Grupo Muln was partly offset by declines nlearnmg
services N Brazil and Mexico

Global student registrauions for MyEnglishLab grew
15% to more than 460,000 with strong growthin
Latin America

We launched the Global Scale of English {GSE), a new
global standard for scoring Enghsh fanguage proficiency
on a prease, numeric, universal scale for businesses,
governments and academic institutions The scale is being
embedded into all Pearson English products and services

in China, English direct delivery enrolments grew at
both Wall Street English (WSE), up 2% to 66,000, and
Global Educatsion up 7% to 117,000 To suppor tiong-
ter m growth, we consolidated our ERP systems in Ciuna
and deployed a Salesforce com CRM systern in WSE
We divested ou online vocattanal training operatons

{n Brazl, we completed the acquisiton of Grupe Muln,
the largest provider of private language schaols m
Brazl We successfully integrated the business despite
challenging market conditions and disruption caused
by the World Cup and Presidental electons

IMAGE REMOVED

Student enrolments n CTUMGI, our
prvate network of ugher educanon
insuuons 2cross South Afes grew

by 15% o 13400 acrass |3 campuses

Eetrn more at ot ac.za and img ac 23
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Penguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer boole publishing company Penguin
Random House was reported post-tax for the fult yearin
2014, compared to only the second halfin 2013 following
the combination of Pengum with Random House on

[ July 2013, which resulted in a £7m reducuon in the
contribution to operaung income with an equal benefit
to our tax charge

Penguin Random House performed wellin 2044,
benefiung parucularly from a strong publishing
performance in Children'’s around the world and
muiu-mihon-copy film and television tie ins

The USbusiness published 760 New York Tirmes print and
ebook bestsellers in 2014 (2013 full year pro forma 7903,
enjoying exceptional success m children’s publishing with
John Green's The Fault i our Stars (29 weels acnumber
one on the New York Times bestsellers list and nearly eight
milkon copies sold) and four million copres of tus backlist
tites, ue-in udes from Disney's Frozen film (more than

|7 milkon copres sold), Dashner’s The Maze Runner.
Forman's If ! Stay and continued strong sales ol LEGO®
mowie e-in utles Notable Adult utles mcluded Grisham's
Gray Mountain, Chitd's Personal, Monk Kidd's The lvention
of Wings. Follett's Edge of Eterntty, Bush’s 41 A Portrart of
My Father, along with strong film and television te-ns,
such as Flynn's Gone Gird, Hillenbrand s Unbroken, and
Maruns's Song of fire and Ice novels The UK business

pubhshed 206 Sundoy Tines bestsellers (2013 pro forma
207). also enjoying outstanding sales of john Green
along with the continued strength of Kinney s Wimpy
Kid franchise Key Adult utles induded Brow's Inferno,
Olwver's farrie’s Comfort Food and Girl Online by YouTube
sensation Zoella, which became the fastest-sefling debut
UK novel ever

Penguin Randem House has a strong publishing
programme for 2015, ncluding new utles from john
Grisham Jamie Clver, Tont Morrison, James Patterson,
Sylvia Day, Lee Chdd, Nick Hornby Harlan Coben,
Danielle Steel, john Sandford, Janet Evanovich, Gayle
Forman, Enuly Giffin and Nora Roberts, as well as film
tie-tns for 50 Shades of Grey, john Green's Paper Towns,
the sequel to James Dasher's The Maze Runner, and

Star Wars

The integration of the two businesses 1s progressing

well and 15 on track to deliver net benefits in 2015 and
beyond Organisatonal structures have been aligned,
systems itegrabon s well underway and conschidauon
of North Ametican warehousing will be completed in
the first half of 2015 inMarch 2014 Penguin Random
House acquired Santilana Ediciones Generales, a leading
wade baok publsher in Spain, Portugal and across

Latin America, consohdatng its leadership in Spanish
language publishing

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

(MAGE REMOVED

We launched Global Scale of English, a new
global standard for scoring English (anguage
profinency 1o be enbedded inwe all Pea son
enghsh products and services

Learn more at enghsh comsgse

Student enrolments at Wall Street Enghish
m Chma grew to 66,000 (+2%)

Lewrn more at waliseetenghsh com

We completed the acquisition of
Grupo Mulor the largest provider of
private language schools m Biasft
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Other financial information

Net finance costs

All figures in £ midhons IOI; 012
Net mterest_gayapf__ . (7
Finance income/{costs)

i respect of employee

benefit plans [ (3)
Other net finance costs {30 ()]
Total net finance costs (93) (76)

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, compar ed to
£72min 2013

Although our fixed rate pohcy reduces the impact of
changes in mar ket interest rates, we were stilf able to
benefit from low average US dollar and sterling interest
rates during the year Year-on-year, average three-month
LIBOR (weighted for the Group’s net borrowings in US
doltars and sterling at each year end) fell by 0 1% 10 0 2%
This decrease in floating market interest rates, along with
the impact of foreign exchange transtanon and additional
interest receivable on cash balances held overseas, more
than offset the effect of higher levels of average net debt
in the periad These factors contmbuted to the overall
decrease inthe Group's average netmterest payable
from 4 8% to 3 6% The Group's average netdebt rose
by £260m, largely as a result of net acquisition actvity
and the transiation of our predonunantly US doflar debt

Finance income and costs refating to retirement benefits
have been excluded from our adjusted earmings as we
believe the ncome statement presentauon does not
reflect the economic substance of the underlying assets
and habilities Also mcluded in the statutory definition of
net finance costs {but notin our adjusted measure) are
finance costs on put options and deferred consideratton
associated with acquisirons, foreign exchange and
other gains and losses Finance costs for put opuons
and deferred constderation are excluded from adjusted
earnings as they refate to the future potential acquisiuon

of non-controiling interests and don'treflect cash
expended Foregn exchange and other gains and losses
are exduded from adjusted earnings as they represent
short-term fluctuatons in market value and ar e subject
to sigruficant volathity Other pains and losses may not
be realised in due course as it s normally the mtenton
1o hold the refated instruments to maturity

I 2014, the total of these wems excluded from adjusted
earnings was a foss of £29m compared to aloss of £4m

m 2013 Both the losses in 2014 and 2013 mainly refate to
foreign exchange differences on un-hedged cash and cash
equivalents and other financial instruments

Funding position and hiquid resources

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of cash
flows frorm operations, short-term borrowings from
banlks and commercial paper markets, and longer-term
loans from banks and capital markets Our objective is

to secure continuity of funding at a reasonable cost from
diverse sources and with varymg maturives The Group
docs not use off balance sheet special purpose entities as
asource of hquidity or for any other financmg pur poses
The net debt position of the Group 15 set out below

Alfigures in £ mdirons 014 W13
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729

Mkeabesscrees 18 e
Net d-envatwe assets o 40 7€

Bonds Qi73)  (2.168)
Bank loans and overdrafts (4 (47)
Francoleases _ (10) __ (II)

Netdebt {1639 (145
Net cash classified as
held for sal_g_ N - 36

Total net debt (1639)  (1379)
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Net acquisiaon acuwvity and foreign exchange rate
mavements are the fargest contributors to the tncrease

in the Group’s net debt Reflecting the geographical and
cuwrrency spht of our business, alarge proportion of owr
debt is denommated in US dollars (see note {9 for our
policy} The strengtheming of the US dolfar against sterfing
during 2044 (from $1 66 to $ 56 £1) ncreases the sterhing
equivalent value of our reported net debt

The Group's a edit raungs remained unchanged dunng
the year The long-term ratings are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term
ratings are P2 and A2 respecuvely In January 2014,
Moody's changed the outlook on its short-term and
long-term ratings from 'Stable’ to ‘Negative” In May 2014,
the Group accessed the capitat markets, raising €500m
through the sale of notes maturing in May 2021 and
bearing nterest at | B75% The notes were swapped

to floaung rate in US dollars to conform with the

pohcy descrbed innote 19 The Group has a $1,750m
committed revolving credit facility which was

refinanced i August 2044 and matures in August 2019

Ax 3t December 2044 this facifity was undrawn The
facikty s used for short-term drawings and providing
refinancing capabilities, ncluding acting as a back-up for
our US commeraal paper programme This programme
1s primarily used to finance our US working capital
requirements, in partcular our US educauonal businesses
which have a peak borrowing requirement ini june

At 31 December 20(4, no commercial paper was
outstanding The Group also maintains other committed
and uncommitted facilites to finance short-term worlang
capital requirements in the ordinary course of business
Further details of the Group's approach to the
management of financial nisks are set outn note |9

to the financial statements

Taxation

The effecuve tax rate on adjusted earmngs n 2014 was
179% as compared to an effecuve rate of 14 6% in 2013
Our overseas profits which arise manly in the US, are
largely subject to tax atfugher rates than thatin the UK
(which had an effective statutory rate of 21 5% 2014
and 23 25% in 2013) These tugher tax rates were largely
offset by amorusation-related tax deductions and by
adjustrnents ansing from settlements with tax authontes
Both these tems were less significant 0 2014 than they
had been in 2013

The reported tax charge on a statutory basis n 2014 was
£63m (20 7%) compared to acharge of £87m (22 8%) in
2013 The decrease in the statutory rate 1s mainly due to
tax benefits ansing on the increase inintangible charges
only partly offset by the factors affectung the adjusted rate
as described above

Tax paid in 2014 was £163m compared to £246min 2013
Tax pad in 2013 was unusually mgh as aresult of the
permitted deferral of US tax payments in 2012 following
Hurrcane Sandy These payments were subsequently
made in 2013 and were accompanied by additional
payments arsing from setdements with tax avthorities,
including £55m relating 1o prior year disposals

Disconunued operations

in October 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann announced
an agreement to create a new consumer pubhishung
business by combining Penguin and Random House
The transacuon completed on | July 2013 and from that
potnt, Pearson no longer controlled the Penguin Group
of companies and has equity accounted forits 47%
assocate interest in the new Penguin Random House
(PRH) venture
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Other financat information continued

The loss of conu of resulted in the Penguin business being
classified as held for sale on the Pearson balance sheet at
30 june 2013 and a subsequent gain on sale of £202Zmwas
reported m the second half of 2013 Included n the gain
reported m 2013 was a provision for amounts payable to
Bertelsmann upon setdement of the transfer of pension
habitrues to PRH Duning 2014, t was deaided that this
transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have
been credited back n the £29m gamn reported aganst the
disposal n 2014

The results for Penguin in the first half of 2013 and the
gains repot ted in both 2013 and 2014 have been included
in discontinued operations The share of results from the
assaciate mnterestin the PR venture arising in the second
half of 2013 and in 2014 has beenincluded n operating
profitm continuing operations

Addinonally, on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale of the Mergermarket Group to BC Par tners
The sale was completed on 4 February 2014 and resuited
i a gain of £198m after tax The Mergermarket business
was classified as held for sale on the balance sheet at

31 December 2013 and the gan and the results for both
2013 and 2014 to the date of sale have been included in
discontinued operations

Non-controlling interest

There are non-controfing interests in the Group's
businesses in South Africa, China and india although none
of these are matenal to Group numbers Durning 2013
some of the mmortties n South Afrea and India were
bought out. further reducing the impact of these interests
w2014

Orther comprehensive iIncome

indluded in other comprehensive Income are the net
exchange differences on transiauon of foreign operations
The gain on translauon of £175min 2014 compares toa
toss in 2013 of £217m and s principally due to movements
in the US dollar A significant proportion of the Group's
operations are based in the US and the US dollar
strengthened m 2014 from an operung rate of £1 $t 66

to a closing rate at the end of 20{4 of £1 $1 56 Attheend
of 2013 the US dollar had weakened in comparnison to the
opening rate mowing from £1 $1 63 to £1 $ 66

Also included 1n other comprehensive mcome in 201415
an actuanal gan of £8m (after offsetting a £15mlossin
respect of assocates) n relauon to post-retirement plans
This gan ar sses from changes in the assumptions used 1o
value the habrhtes and from retuimns on plan assets that are
in excess of the discount rate The gan compares to an
actuarral ganin 2043 of £79m

Dwidends

The dividend accounted for in our 2014 financial
statements totalling £397m repr esents the final dvidend
in respect of 2013 (32 Op) and the nterm dividend for
2014 (17 0p) We are proposing a final dindend for 2014
of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and payable in respect
of 2014 to 51 Op, a 6% increase on 2013 Ths finat 2014
dividend which was approved by the board in February
2015 is subject to approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and will be charged against 2015 profits
For 2014, the dwidend s covered | 3 umes by adjusted
earmngs

We seek to mantam a balance between the requirements
of our shareholders for a nsing stream of dwvidend income
and the remvestrnent opportuniues which we identfy
around the Group and through acquisitions The board
expects to raise the dwvidend above inflation, more mlmne
with earnings growth, thereby maintaining dividend cover
at around two tmes earrings ta the long term

Post-retrrement benefits

Pearson operates a vaniety of pension and post-
retrement plans Qur UK Group penston plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some

smaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada but,

outside the UK, most of our companies operate defined
contrbunon plans In additon to pension plans we aiso
operate post-retrement medical benefit plans (PRMBs),
the most significant of whichis in the US In 2014 we
amended the eligibiity eriteria for the US PRMB plan
This amendment resulted in a curtadlmert gam and a
reducuon in the ongoing service cost of the plan
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The charge to prafitin respect of worldwide pensicns and
reurement benefits for conunting operatons amounted
to £83min 2014 (2013 £96m) of which a charge of £84m
{2013 £93m) was reported in adjusted operaung profic
and anincome of £1m {2013 char ge £3m) was repor ted
agamst other netfinance costs The reduced ¢frarge n
2014 s part due to the US PRMB curtalment gain

and also to a reduction i costs refating to our defined
contribution plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£86m at the end of 2013 has increased to a surplus of
£190m at the end of 2014 The movement has ansen
princpally due to conunuing asset returns and defiat
funding which was only partally offset by an unfavourable
movement in the discount rate used to value the habilties
In total our worldwide deficicin respect of pensions and
other post retirement benefits dea eased fi om anet
deficit of £56m at the end of 2013 to a net asset of £27m
at the end of 2014

Acquisiens and disposals

The acguisinon of Grupo Mult, Brazil's leading adult
English language traintng company, for £437m {plus £49m
in pet debt assumed) was announced in December 2013
and completed on [| February 2014 There were no
ather significant acguisiions in the year We recorded
£240m of goodwill on the Grupo Mulu transaction
together with £254m of intangibles refauing to trade
names, content. franchises and technology Intotal,
acquisions completed in the year contributed an
addiional £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted
operatng profit

The sale of the Mergermarket group of companes to

BC Partners for £375m was completed on 4 February
2014 and realised a profit before tax of £244m In addion
our North America business disposed of its joint venture
nrerests in Safar Books Online and CourseSmatrt,
reabsing a profit before tax of £40m and its investment

in Nook Media, realising a loss before tax of £38m

Retut n on invested capital (ROIC)

Our ROIC 15 calculated as total adjusted operatng profic
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average gross
nvested capital ROIC increased from 5 4% 1n 2043 to

5 6% n 2014 Increased profit and 1 educed tax payments
are the main reasons for the movement

Related party transactions

Transacuons with related parties are shown it note 37
of the financial statements

Post balance sheet events

There were no significant post balance sheet events

S$SINRSNE dNO

9]
C
3
h
m
o>
"
o]
x5
x4
>
z
(Al
m

LO¥dWI TVIZO0S ¥N0

IDNVYNYIACD l

SINAWILYLS TVIONYNIL i

.




34 Peai son ple Annuist reptn T ane scooortg £of

Principal risks and uncertainties

{dentfying and assessing risk

Our prinepal nsks and uncertanues are outined below
These are the most significant nisks that rmay adversely
affect our business strategy, finanaal posiuon or future
performance The risk assessiment process evaluates the
probability of the risk materiafising and the hnancial or
strategic impact of the sk Those nisks whichhave a
fugher probability and significant impact on strategy.
reputation or operations, or a financal impact greater
than £40m are idenufied as principal risks

The nsk assessment and reporting critena are designed

to provide the board with a consistent, Group-wide
perspective of the key risks The reports to the board,
which are submitted twice per year; include an assessment
of the probability and impact of risks materiahising, as welt
as risk mitigation initatives and theur effectiveness

The dentification of the principal Group risks 15 nformed
by discussions with each Line of Business, Geography and
key enabling funcuons, idenufying key risks and assessing
the adequacy of mitigating controls

The Pearson executive members have over sight of risks
relevant to each of thew- areas of responsibiity This s now
mcluded in their goals and objectives

The audit cornmittee provides oversight and reassurance
to the board with regar d to the procedures for the
identficaton, assessment and reporung of nsk See page
7t for the committee’s risk-refated acavizes during 2014,
including decp dives into selected prninaipal nsks

Management s responsible for considering and executing
the appropriate action to mitigate these risks whenever
possible It is not possible to idenufy every nsk that coutd
affect our businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the
risks described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a sk wilfl not marenalise and/or adversely affect our
business or financal performance

Risk appetite There are certain areas where we do not
have any appetite to take risks, such as complying with
laws on anu-bribery and corruption or the safety and
security of learners In other areas, such as strategy and
change, we recognise the importance of managed risk-
taking in order to achieve business objectives and goals
During 2015, further work s being done to define risk
appeute and toferance and 1o embed this more formalty
into decision- making and day-to-day business acuvities

OUR PRIMNCIPAL GROUP RISKS

Outhned here are the most significant
risks that may affect our future. We
assess the probability of the risk
materialising and the financial or
strategic impact of the risk The risks
with greatest potenual Impact are
identified as principal risks

Learn more about Principal risks
and vincet tanves on p36-37 8

@ Government regulation and decisions

o Digital and services evolution and mai ket forces

o Acquisiuons, divestments and joint ventures

o Business cransformation and change

© Talent

STRATEGY AND
CHANGE

© Customer facing systems
0 Tesung falui e
© Safery, safeguarding and protecnon

RISKS

o Tax

RISKS

@ intellectual property
) Data puvacy and cybes security
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Qur principal nisks

Rusk categortes To aid in the idenufication of risks and
development of assoaated mitiganng actons, risks are
categorised into four mam areas strategy and change,
operanonal, financial, and legal and compliance

Key changes to Group risks n 2014 As set outin the ‘our
performance’ section, 2014 was a year of considerable
change across the Group These changes provide the
foundation for sigmificant rittgation of strategic and
market nisks, including the shift to digtal and services

But with change there can be anincrease i risk in the
short-term Addwonal governance and oversight was
put in place to metigate these change-related risks As the
new organisation structure stabilised, there was resulting
clarity in roles and responsibilives This, together with the
appointment of management and staff to ey positons,
assisted in mitigating risk in a number of key areas

Sectton 2 Cha jro foomane s 35

With the increased focus on growing our direct delvery
business actties, there has been a need to improve

the effectve management of related operationa rislcs

This includes the safety and security of our learners, which
ts reflected as a new principat risk Speaific roles have been
¢t eated and filled to ensure there 1s expertse o deal

with these areas and this will continue to be afocus area

n 2015

With the acceleraung shift to digital products, we

conunue to look at ways that we can improve our
customers’ experience of our products and services

Thus 1s particutarly the case for products where there are
pertods of peak demand on our systems, such as ‘back to
school’ umes A dedicated cross-business task force has
been putin place to ensure thatroot causes are addressed
and improvements implemented

Learn more about Risk Governance on p76 @

RISK ASSESSMENT

IMPACT
1hnehcial, FEpUratonat strategie operatonal)

PROBABILITY
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Principat risks and uncertainties continued

STRATEGIC & CHANGE RISKS

Rusk

Mitdgation

Government regufatian and decsions
Changesinfunding palicy and/or reputatons
impactbusiness model and/or content
deasions across afl rrankets

In the US we actively monior changes through parucpation in adwisary
boards and 1 epresentaton on standard setting commuttees Qur customet
refationshup teams have detaled knowledge of each state market We work
through our owii corpot ate affars team and our industry rade assocuans
including the Assoaation of Amencan Publisher s We ate also monitol ing
muniapal funding and the impact an ow education recevables

In the UK we mamtain refationships with those government departments and
agencies that are responsible for policy and funding We work proactvely
wath them L ensure our programmes meet existing and new goverrment
objectves at the right quahity tevel

Acy oss all of our other marieets, local management monstot and 1 espond
to potential and actual changes in regulatons, supported by our global
corporate affars team This includes Gt owth markets of China Inda,
Brazil and South Africa

Digial and services evolunon and marke!
forces Fallure to successfully investinand
delven the right products and serwices

Our global educauon strategy will drve a faster move 1o digial and services
recogrusing that this s a sgrificant opportunity for Pearson as weilasa
potential tisk We are transformingeur products and services for the
chgnal emironment along with managing oul print Inventones

Our content 1s beng adapted to new technologies across our businesses
and s priced to ditve demand We develop new distribution channels by
adapung our product offering and investing n new formats

As setout on page 38-43 our focus on efficacy 4 driving our decisions on
how and where we invest in products and services

Acguishions divestments and joint veniures
Falure to generate antcipated revenve
growil, synergres and/or cost savings from
acqusitions mergers and other business
combinations could lead 1o goodwill and
mrangible asset umpar ments

Wae perform pre transacuon due diigence and closely monitor actual
performante 16 ensul e we are meetung operauonal and financal targets

Any dvergence fi om these plans will resuttin management acton 1o Improve
pet formance and rinimise the risk of any impae ments Executve management
and the board | ecewve regular reports on 1he status of acquisitions and

me: ger s with a formal review once pen year

Busmess transformauan and change

The pace and scope of ourbusiness
transformaticn irinatves increase the
execuuon nsk that benefits may not be fully
realised costs of these changes may ini ease,
or that own business as usual actviues do hot
perform i line with expectavons

As noted in the Charrman s inrroducuon the most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been completed There remain a number of
tmportant change nanves in progress such as the Enabling Programme,
which will deliver sustainable improvements in finance human resources and
operations Inaddiuon 1o usual good pracuces n place for project and change
management there s enhanced governance monitormg and reporting n place
fon these mostsignificant change intiatives

Talent Fafure to attract, retam and develop
staff incfuding adapting to new skl sets
required to nen the business

QPERATIONAL RISKS
Ruske

Through the changes during 2013 and 2014 we have been successfulm
promaung our best nternal talent and recruring mdividirats who are global
leaders in their speaific field

As part of our transformation we have made and contnue to make
improvements in a number of areas that are key 10 mitigating talent risk
These nclude dear employee objecuves and development plans an afl
employee engagement survey with achon plans as appropriate, succession
planning and talem managerment, and compeutive remuneration plans

See page 65 for derads of the board's talent review

Mingation

Customer facng systems Fadure Lo mamtain
and support customer facng services
sysiems, and platforms including quabiny

and umely execution of new products

and enhancements

Effecuve project management disaphines are in place to ensure that
enhancements and new products meet the required standards Real-ume
momtol mg and repot ung of oper atonal performance is used to Wentfy
any 1ssues ind direct appropnate responses

A Quahty Task loree (QTF) 1510 place to oversee improvements to ensure
our customers e<pertence is one thatis expected from a dignal business
This initcaave has al eady detiver ed sigrificant tacal improveiments and

is dnving longer term strategic unipravements
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Mingztion

Tesung falure A control breakdown or
service faiure n our school assessment
and qualifications businesses could resuh
in financial loss and reputanonal damage

Qur professional services and school
assessment businesses involve compler
contractual refationships with both
government agencies andg commercial
customars for the prowsion of varous
testing set vices Our finanoal results
growth prospects and/or reputation may
be adversely affected if these contracts
and relatonships are poorly managed

We seek to minnmise the nsk of abrealadown in our student markung with the use
of 1obust quality assurance procedut es and controls and oversight of contrace
performance combmed with out investrment in technology project management
«nd slalfs development of our people

Inaddition to the inter nal business procedures and controls implentented to
ensure we successfutly defiver on our contractual commitments we also seek

to develop and mantan good 1 efanonships with our customers to minmise
assouiated risks

We also look to diversify our por tfolio to nunimise reliance on any angle
coniract

Safety, safeguarding and protecuon
fature 1o adequately protect children
and learners particularly in our dwect
dehvery businesses

FINANCEAL RISKS
Risk

Recognising the importance of managmg evolving risks assodiated with our din ect
delivery business models, we created and filled the role of ahead of safeguarding
and protection See page 49 for further details

Mitigacton

Tax Risk that changes in tax law or
perceptions on tax planning strategies
lead to hugher effective tax rate or
negiuve reputanonal impact

LEGAL RISKS
Rusk

Qur tax sirategy reflects our business strategy and the focations and financing
needs of our operauons In commaon with many companies, we seek to manage
our tax zffairs to protect value for our shareholders :n hne with our broader
fiducary duties We are commutied to complying with afi statutory obhgations
12 undel take full disclosure 10 1ax authot les and to follow agieed polices and
procedures with regard to tax planning and strategy

Oversight of tax straregy is within the rermit of the audit committee, winch
receves a report on this topic atleast once a year Allof the audit convmutiee
members are independent non-executive drector s The chieffinancial officer 1s
responstbie for tax strategy 1he conductof our tax affars and the management
of tax nsk are delegated 1o s global team of tax professionais

Mitigation

fnieltectual property [fwedo not
adequately protect our inteflectunl
ptoperty and propnetat y rights cur
compeutive positton and results may be
adversely afecied and imit our abifity
10 grow

We seelc to mingate this type of nsk thr ough general vigilance, co-operaton
with other publishers and trade asscqations advances in technology as well

as recourse to law as necessary Digital nghts management standa ds and
morstenng programmes have been developed VWe have a piracy task force

to denufy weaknesses and remediate breaches YVe monitor activinies and
regulavons in each market for developments m copyright/inteflectual proper ty
law and enforcement and take legal acton where necessary

Data privacy and cyber secunity Faldure to
comply with data pr ivacy regulations and
standards or weakness in m‘ormation
secunity mcluding a falure to prevent or
detect a malicious attack on our systems
could resuit i amyor data privacy breach
causinp reputatonal damage to ourbrands
and finanoaf loss

Through ou global enterprise informauon secunty and compliance pr ogramme
we have established a governance model secunty and privacy framework and
policies a global secunty and privacy organisauonal model and standard based
wformation security and privacy controls and practices

We canstantly test and re evaluate our data security procedur es and controls
across aff o busnesses with the am of ensurng personal data s secured and
we comply with relevantlegislaton and contractual requirements We pursue
appropriate prvacy accrediations e g TRUSTe Privacy and Sx'e Harbor Seal
We regularly monitor regulauon changes to assess the inpact on existing
ptacesses and programmes Wa have established a global secunty operations
cenu e thar provides ongowng monitoring of potental malioous attacks on our
wfrastructure and systerms

Anu buibery and corruption Fadure to
effectively manage 11sks assocated wath
compliance 1o global and local ABC legslotion

Our ABC compliance programme was rolted outin 2061 to support compliance
wath UK Bnbery Act inline with adequate procedures’ giedance Our zero
tolerance appi oach s also designed to comply vwath all ather global and ol
ABC [aws anc i egulanions VWehave a risk oased programme of trairning (onhne
and lace to-face) Qur ABC policy s communcated to third parttes and foims
part of gur contractual terms for higher nsk thrd parues

SSANISNE 4NOC

o]
[
-
-
m
-
.
0
=
=4
>
Z
s
[z2]

LOVdWI 1YID08 ¥N0

IINVNYIACD 1

SLNIWBLYLS TYinny NI |



ki:3 Peaison plc i slrepot antsooon 85 231

Efficacy

| Introduction

“A deceptively simple but incredibly
powerful idea. that every product
we sell can be measured and judged
by the outcomes it helps the learner
to achieve.” |ohn Fallon, Cluefl executive

Measuring outcomes

At the ume of witting last year's Annual report we had
just announced a new commitment to what the company
calls efficacy The goal was simple, but afso incredibly
challenging we would move to define measurable learner
outcomes for Pearson products and services, and 10
report publicly on the learner outcomes delivered by

our products in earty 2018

We were also extremely aware that efficacy neducationis
not a challenge we can tackle alone We will need to share
what we are finding out, and be prepared to listen to zll

the feedback And we will need 1o be wilhing to learn from
others as they pursue then own methods YWe reman
absolutely committed to this community approach

Review process and resuft

Whenwe began efficacy was merely a conceptand a
{ofty goal We had developed aframework wiuch could
evaluate the likelihood that a product or serwice will deliver
its intended outcomes, and had designed a process o
apply the framework within: the Lines of Business via
efficacy reviews Since 2012, we have completed 200
reviews This process has provided snapshots of the state
of efficacy in different parts of Pearson as well as what
investments we need to make in order to move towards
greater efficacy, at a product and service level

Reporung on efficacy progress

2. Making the change

Developing our strategy

The commitment to efficacy has emerged as the contral
theme to Pearson’s strategy and culture Our employees
are driven by the mission of helping learners male progress
i their lives, it provides meaning to our work There isalso
a dlear business and commercial case for the learner-centne
approach we are now taking to run our company Pearsen’s
scale means we are in the strongest posttion in the global
market to evaluate the effectiveness of different educational
products across many popufations, and to develop and
implement new evidence-based models We are the first

w1 the market 1o commut to reporting on product efficacy.
and the first to engage outside partners who wil
independently validate the rigour and objectivity of o
efficacy measurement. This feedback loop will make our
products better and strengthen our relationships with
customers and end learners and will yield meaningful
resuls for the business in the corning years Ve also hope
that through this approach we will influence the educaton
sectormore broadly

Embadding efficacy

Culture We atso know that our commitment to efficacy is
rnuch more than a strategy — to be truly effective tneeds to
become a way of worlng for every one of our employees
To make this happen we have putn place a giobal efficacy
network of Pearson experts who are dedicated, most of
them full-ume, to embedding efficacy into the way we do
business as a company Thenrefforts wall ensure all aur
employees are driven by the mission of helping learners
o make progress in their hves The team s matched o
Pearson’s new organisational structure, we have efficacy
leaders in each giobal Line of Business as well as the

Malang the change n 2014

We are commaied to reporung onlearner outcomes by 2018
Pubilished 1 2013 The incomiplete guide to defiver nig leamer ootcomes
expianed the programme and its iy ansformauve potenuial Therssponse
wat overwheimengty positive from internal and exvernal stakeholders
and over the pastyear we ve msde further stndes Alongside this Al
roport we are publishing On the rood to defvermg
fearier outLonms wiveh reporis
s progess

Read the reports onfine at
officacy pearson com

200

Efficacy reviews

20,150

Erwluyees bave engigedin efficacy traming

88

ELacy leaders auross Pearson
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Geographies, working cross-funcuornally to impact global
and focal product development and the way we market,
sell and measure our products and services

Traming Efficacy depends on the commitment of every
employee — not only those occupying these new posittons
So we have also rolled our broadscale efficacy trainmg on
the topic throughout the company We have created an
onhne course on efficacy, which was added to the new
hire orientation paclkage and is available to everycone in
the company via our internal learning portal Over 20,000
employees have taken the course Inaddivon efficacy
leaders are runiung workshops and trainings in person

all over the world to build awai eness and understanding

External engagement We know that going this alone is
not anoption The solutions to the efficacy challenge wall
emerge from many corners, from different professions,
and also from different sectors That's why we have
conunued out public engagements, to help play our part

i this global community of changemakers We partnered
with the RSA in the UK on a series about learner
outcomes, and contributed to the Shared Value Instative’s
conference on the Role of Business i Educauon We have
emphasised efficacy in our presence at innovation events
such as New School Venture Fund's annual conference
and SXSWedu Efficacy s also a central part of cur
commitment to the Global Partnership for Education,

of which Pearson is the only corporate member; we will
be offering n-lund workshops and efficacy reviews to
member countries, and giving GPE members access to
our growing body of research on learner outcomes

LEADERSHIP: SVNCACY [HPIRIS

“Efficacy is the reason why | work in education —long
before I'd ever even heard of that word AsaSouth
African, | ive in one of the most wonderful but also
one of the most unequal countries in the world
Everyday | am confronted with examples of how
people have either benefited from a strong educaton
or been severely disadvantaged by the lack of one
Through offering good quality educauon,

with measurable simprovement of

teat ner outcomes we can hefp bring

about change "

iMAGE REMCVED

Marian Smaltbones
L5 cuty deecion, Schao

“To me, efficacy means that we care enough about the
custormer experience and the wrust they place inus,
that we're willing to reorganise our company to make
sure we deliver the outcomes we're pronusing it
means being personally accountable for my actions,
and asking myself each day, “How can|

make a difference to students and

teachers today’"

IMAGE REMOVED

Karen Mullane

Voo presdae  Ricas rosuls
FPogrosn Mordl &Lireiica

Learn about our operating st ucture on p7 @

4

Before hearing about efficacy,

| thought my job was just to drive,
| thought, isn't it the same to

be a truck driver who delivers
books and a truck driver

“. Now | realise my job has to do with
education lam a part of the educational
process in my country. My chiddren,
and even my grandchildren, will be
benefited by the job [ do.”

who delivers alcoholic

drinks or tobacco?...” IMAGEREMOVED

Juan Hernandez aPearson trudde dnverwho partapated
m a workshop cafled Fficaciapara todos fachrated by
Varonica Valces Efficacy manager Laun AmencaHub
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Efficacy continued

3. Efficacy in action

Efficacy 1s changing the way we
operate and develop our business,
alongside our employees, customers,
and the broader education market
WWe have early evidence of the
tmpact of the products and services
we deliver to customers.

Efficacy approach and activities

Efficacy reviews, studies and implementauon

Ou efficacy review process provides a Ngorous way Lo
evaluate whether a given product or ser vice 1s positioned
to deliver learner outcomes and to identify how it should
bemproved ltisbeing used in every Line of Business

(see frameworl beiow) Efficacy swdies evaluate the
efficacy of a product or service in the market, conducted
n partnership with customers, learnel s, and increasingly
third-party academic msututions We are starting to work
with customers to ensure that Pearson products and
services are used and implemented in ways that maximise
their efficacy based on this research

Efficacy in the product lifecycle

Drefine intended learner qutcomes

Review products to ensure they are postioned to
deliver on those outcomes, and put n place efficacy
Improvement programmes

Conduct research to measure the efficacy of products
and feed insights back into product development

Support customers to effectively implement the
products to get the best outcomes possible

Starung from outcomes

I 2014 we further defined the standards for these
assessments of our products, creating a more detailed
description of the outcomes Pearson products and services
defiver as well as the relative strengths of different types
of evidence used In our studies The table opposite shows
our proposed framewaork for the types of cutcomes that
customers desire

Efficacy review framework

Our efficacy framework examines different
aspects of our product performance

' Qutcomes 2 Ewvidence

Planrung and

4 Capaaty to dehver
irnplementaton

Our efficacy fr uneworde s tso beng used by others {with our supper 1)
and thetr ferdbalk has heiped to refine t View our onbne wol as
efficacy pearson com/ou -path-to-efficacy/how o review

Pear son products at all stages of maturity will be
incorporanng efficacy nto ther development viaa formal
global product kecycle which 1s bemng rolled out across
the business New products or features will need to be
justfied by educational research supporung their design,
products n growth mode will be gathering ncreasingly
robust evidence that the product is improving learnes
outcomes and evolve accordingly Mature products

will continue to sustain and monitor efficacy ewidence
alongside financial metrics Further, efficacy requirements
are now Incorporated into our acquisitions and
investments processes, from the Pearson Affordable
Learning Fund to traditional M&A

Shaping Pearson products

In addiuon to the huge strides on culture and processes
described above, we have a plan in place to quiddy impact
arange of Pearson products and to prepare the company
to report publicly on efficacy in 2018

Making the change in 2014

“We are enthusiastic supporters
of the efficacy approach.
{n 2014 tbecame the
way we work and plan.
It's not a review
process, t1s a way
of doing business.”

IMAGE
REMOVED

Caspar de Bono
Muragnzouscis Fianool Time: B28
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EFFICACY: TYPLE OF QUT

COMES

Category

Lavei of aspiration
and value

Definntien

Example outcomes

Access

The learner access
and experience

Uity

The degree o which tearners can
access a product (B g access to
technology and socio economic
access)

The fevel of fearner sausfacuon

The level of motivation and
confidence that the learner gains

Afllearners can access digital
tearning matetals froma
personal computer tablet
o smart phone at anytime

{earnet s have aposttive
learmng exper ience

Completion

The umehiness
of compleuon

Usage rhythm
as designed

The progress that the leal ner
makes through the course

T he time taken to achieve the
standard or competence

Leas ners complete course of
work within one semester

Achievement

The standard of achuevement
or level of competence

Competencies
and skilis
aclyeved

Quahficauon gained

The level of performance ona
standardised test

Course-specific competencies
demonstrated

The acquisinon of specific stlls

Leat ner earns a bachefor's
degree

The learner wili be able to
demonstrate mastery of
the Enghish course matenal

Progression

Learner progression

Malang the change in 2014

'Door
unlocked'

Ability of learner to progress to
next cout se of study baining
or employment

Learnei gets ganful
employment in field of study

“A key chent was delighted to hearabout our interest in
helping tum focus on achieving the outcomes he had set
Altfrough he wasn't used to having such a conversation
with 2 publisher (fus admission] he was very open about
what they need ro do with the vanious schiools and
programmes they ranage T hrough the course of our
conversanon, he made it clear that hie wanted to buld a
new ‘preruer’ partnership with us What really struck
me 15 how a conversation on efficacy and outcomes
created an almost kid-in-a-candy-store response from
such a seasoned executive "

“What really struck me
1s how a conversation
on efficacy and outcomes

created an almost
lad-in-a-candy-store
response ”

IMAGE
Bruce Bergwall REMOVED

Bueress d efopren, de e
bighver Cducators
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Efficacy continued

4. Early impact in 2014

The first wave

in 2014 we denufied a ‘fit st wave' of praducts with

which to ipate our work n efficacy The st was chosen
based on a set of business and efficacy criteria, ncluding
market position, product and data matunity, strategic
importance, and the scale of customer base and revenue
The products and services represent a mix of geographies
and target learner populations They will be the focus of
the first externally-audited efficacy report n 2018

Key achievements so far

We ve achieved the following milestones in our tmeline for
impacung the full range of Pearson products and services

All of the ‘first wave' products have defined the iearner
outcomes they are positioned to deliver, as well as the
metincs they will use to measur e those outcomes

Pearson products in all categories are steadily progressing
through efficacy reviews, we are developing mecharisms
for classifying and trackeng products progress on efficacy
thraughout the company next year

A majority of the products which have undergone efficacy
reviews are on the path to efficacy, mearing they are
contnually working to complete the acuons denufied
during efficacy reviews to increase the efficacy of the
product are demonstrating progress on gathering
efficacy evidence, and are refining therr efficacy plans
through follaw-on reviews and dialogue with customers

Each Line of Business has ateast one “first wave' product
thats in a position to report on efficacy impact waith a
view towards external reporung in 2018 We are sharing
these publicly alongside this Annual report

Learn about purLines of Business i
our aperatmg structure on p7 €

EFFICACY: PRODUCT PROC

As evidence of the progress we have made, we are
publicly sharing detadls of efficacy progress for five of
our products on an onfine site This data s prelimmnary,
we do not yet have fufly vahidated evidence of outcomes
with custorners, because of the lead time that ngorous
studies require We are eager, however, 1o test early
results with our customers and other stakeholders to
inform the development of our research and reporting
processes Ve invite you to read the full repor ts at
efficacy pearson com/progress

enVisionmath 2 0 is 2 comprehen.ive next generayon elomentary
mathematics curricidum that has research tased msu ucsional
ptactices and 15 hased on the highly successful enVisionMATH that
reachies over six million learners enVisionMATH users achweve
sipmuficantly greater frowth m math proficiency compared to othe:
progiammes as eadenced by an independent randomised controf traf

Wall Street Enghish prowdes premmm Enghsh langunge pragranimes
for young professicnals In aepth efficacy 1 eviews of operations were
earried outn four countries and have led 1o a varety of smprovements
from helping learners to better define their goals to measueing thes
progress agamst these

MyEnghshlLab provides learners in secandary schaol and higher
education with interactive onhine pracuce, homewor k and
assessments, and teachers with a range of diagnosnic tools for English
language blended-iearmng p1 ogrammes More than 450 000 new
Jearners in 25 countries used MyEnghshiabs in 2014 The efficacy
review has led to a variery of improvements from UX to currtcutum
design Efficacy studies were 2lso complered with more than

25 inststyrons around che world

MasterngChemistry for General Chermustry is an online homewat k
turonal and assessiment programme serang up to 250 000 learners
annually o the Ursted States with 30 00D learners annvally across

4G other countries Tor seven years, our product team and the efficacy
results tearn in North Amcrica have worked with edutators to eollect
evidence about the impact of MasterngChermistry on learming and
have generated 17 sets of user genaratedresults naddition several
mdependent peer 1 eviewed academic wriicles bave documented the
s.ficacy of MastenngChemustry bothin and outmde the US We are

m rtrhsing a wider sat of efficacy achvives i 2015 10 support furthe

pt oduct ampeovements and documnentampact anlex aer outcoimes
acrass o broader setof geographies

CTl and MG provide padhiways for the emcr gent mddle. dass 1o gan
aceess to higher educauon in South Africa and the econeniic and
personai advancement opportunities thatths provides Currenty
they serve 14 000 stwdents aaoss 12 CThand [3MGEcampuses Our
cficacy efforts provide abjecove evdence of these oppo twpities 1o
date and sur ongong efficacy programme 1s focused en constanty
P oving oppo! tunities for our stidents and graduares
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5. Momentum

Maintamning progress through 2015

A global rescarch programme

We take the view that 20[51s a criucal year for malang
progress on operattonahsing efficacy Our prionty will
be on delvering efficacy in our strategic products, from
end toend

Key aims for 2015

The ‘first wave’ of products will continue to make
aemonstrable progress on the path to efficacy

WWe are continually working to complete the actions
identified durmg efficacy reviews to inct ease the
efficacy of the product, demonstraung progress

on gathering efficacy evidence, and refining their
efficacy plans through follow on reviews and
dialogue with customers

Read the fil streports onkne at
efficacy peat son com/progress

We will idenufy the next set of products o
be the focus for efficacy efforts

This will be the 'second wave', and the 1 elevant teams
will have identified clear outcomes to be delivered

by their products, as well as having gone through
efficacy reviews

We wili have evidence of increased awareness
and adopuon of efficacy internally

This will cover afl functions and geographies, and we
will have reworked major internal processes to align
with the efficacy agenda (including, for example
partnerships acquisittons and product strategy)

We will continue to increase the external
awareness of efficacy

through our ongoing work with stakehalders, and to
p1omote the adoption of outcomes-based approaches
to educauon in the market

A successful future for Pearson hinges on insightnto - and
response to - fundamental questions in education For
that reason, we are building global research capabiives
This will enable us to parucipate deeply in the worldwide
conversation about learner ouicomes, and to inform
business leader s of effecuve educational practices

in addition to efficacy studies and market research, which
are based in bustness units, our new research capabiiues
will iook into broad and global education themes, that
could in turn drive specific product innovatiens

The global research team will aim to uncover clear and

replicable findings to esght key unanswered questions in
education, ranging from the micro (how children learn)
to the macro (how educauon systems work effectively)

Learn more atresearch pearson com

IMAGE REMOVED-
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Our socal
impact
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The single most important contribution that Pearson can
rake to society 1s to equip people with the access and
skills they need to progress Our commitment to efficacy,
(p38) 1s the means through which we will achieve this

Learning empowers people, and it defines our company
purpose. Acting responsibly 1s central to achieving this
purpose and to our business strategy, and how we deliver
is as mportant as what we achieve.

it shapes the deasions we make, the culture and vaiues
we promote and sustan, the relationships we foster,
and the ways we treat our planet. Ultimately, operating
responsbly helps us to better deliver outcomes for
people, and to better meet the expectations of al

of socety.

IMAGE REMOVED

Rob:n Freestone Chiefl financial officer
{+nd be w d nomiber responsible for cotporate responsibdny)

Our social impact strategy

{n 2014 we review ed and redefined our social impact swategy
We have idenmficd three o1 gamsing ideas that struclure gur reportng

Standards Impact Innovation

Cur standards worl sees We plan 1o mai c a significant Through mnovation we will
LS LONTINLE 1O INVESE N OUT contrbution through pariner to help find solirions
pecple and 10 work hard 1o Fampaiging and programame e some of the biggestunmet
reduc: qur & nvirotmen.at acowity wih a par uculat fows educanonal needy

forpnnt onhteracy
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Overview

Standards

Our commercial success is
dependent on us operating in a
responsible way. We report our
approach and the progress we
are making across five areas:

Standards

I Our responsbiiity Seepd7 ©
2 Curvalues and behaviour See p48 @
3 Qur refationshups See p49 @
4 Qur planet Seep52 Q)
5 Qur performance SeepS3 @

Also uy this section

impact Project Liveracy Sec p54 @)
Social mnovason See p56 @

We will report on our prog ess in all these areas
in our 2014 Socal impact report avadable on
pearson comy/scaal-impact

. Our responsibility

Definiuons

Pearson has adopted a broad definiuon of responsible
business and has estabhistred a setof commitments
across a range of sodial, community and hurman rights
principles to

Ensure that our preducts and services are inclusive,
appropriate \n content to the age, locaton and abiiity
of the [earner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect how we use and share data
entrusted to us by learners and our customers

Inform, support and equip colleagues to work
collaborauvely

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing talent
and creating a culture where aff are able to realise ther
indmvidural potental

Prowide a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
and the fearners of all ages we directly serve

Extend our commitments o labour standards, human
rights and environmental responsibility to mdude our
supphiers and business partners

Provide opportuntes for Pearson people to be good
atizens and to get involved mn thewr local communities

Deliver against our targets on our response to cimate
change and to make more efficent use of rescurces

Responsibilcy at Pearson

Environment and supply chain

Climate change

Responsible resource use

Responsible pt ocuremient

Orange — part of our rsk and cornplance agenda

Seep7l @
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Based on these comnutments, the broad ‘responsible
business’ issue map for Pearson is set out below itreflects
a sertes of priorities that are common across many sectors
and indvidual comparies These are the issues that we
focus on when tunking about responsible business

Some of these 1ssues are central to our business success,
others may be small based on our commerciat operations
but have the potenual to significantly affect our impact
and reputation The prionties m orange already form
part of our risk and comphance agenda described on p71
The relauve significance of 1ssues vares based on country
operatonal, poliucal and regulatory environments as well
as learner expectations The premise of our sooal impact
strategy 1s that, in moving towards a single operating
company model, this is underpinned by <lear, consistent,
global policies and standards across the entire responsible
business agenda

Governance

Corporate responsibility cannot be separated from
our business and reputatton Our board of directors
has ulsmate responsibility for considering issues of
responstbility as part of setung business strategy

The reputation & responsibility comnittee, a for mal
committee of the board provides ongoing oversight,
scrutiny and challenge across the entre responsible
business agenda Inaddition, the board considered a
detaded review of the corporate responsibility strategy
at the junie 2014 meeting Learn more onp78 Q)

The Pearson executive drives implementation of business
strategy, inciuding our response to the ey issues and
opportumbes we face

This year we established a single responstble business
leadership business councii to oversee the development
and implementation of our overarching responsibie
business strategy on behalf of the board ltis chaired by
our chief corporate affairs officer and compnises senior
executives from across the global business

Stakeholders

Pubirc and private sector customers regularly seelc
mformation from us about how we go about our business,
while many learners and employees want to understand
our approach to sustainability Socally responsible
nvestors, and non-governmental organisations look
atissues such as supply chain standards and ethics

Cur approach to responsible business is informed by

the pnionties and views of our many stakeholders

Peaple Learners

Cotporatecuiture and values | Affordabdity and pricing

Communities Values and

governance

Actve ciizenship [ Tax

Editoral independence
and integnity

Dhversity and incfusion

Educal conduct

Campaigns and parmerships
{Code of Conduct)

e e | —— e |

Peoplerecrutment and Appropriateness and Poliical engagement Combattng corruption
development accessibility of content {Antt bribery and corruption}
Remuneration and Safeguarding and protection

compensation

Health & safety Dara privacy and secunty l
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Standards continued

2. Our values and behaviour

Pearson employee survey

Pearson employee survey Qur people told us

ir 2014, Pearson puttn place anew organisational structure
for the company that reflects our aim 1o shift from a
portfolio of businesses towards a single operatng modet
waith standard systems, clear accountability, a flateer,

more meritocrauc culture and quicker deaision-making

Change can be both exhilaraung and inspiring, but

alse brings operauonal risk. We recogrised this and
throughout the year we conunually tracked reaction to
change to understand how best to support our people

Most notably, we asked colleagues to tell us how they
felt about working at Pearson, and over 24 000 peopte
completed the engagement survey VWe then shared
the findings The ey messages are outined in the
next cofumin

Code of Conduct

Qur values are remforced by our Code of Conduct that
covers among other things, mdmduat conduct, learners
employees, communily the environment and our socal
obligations We make sure everyone 1s aware of the Code
and this forms part of the induction process This year, we
started a process to review the Code to make sure that
prowides the level of guidance and case study support that
our employees need to hve by the standards we set for
ourselves The updated Cade will be arculated early in
2015 to everyone workg at Pearson and they wilt be
aslced to confirm they have read it, understand it and
prowvide a check that the company comphes with it

Issues and cancerns

We operate a free, confidenual telephone helpline and
website for anyone who wants to ratse a concern and we
have a clear non -retahation policy i place to encourage
people to share the issues they have In2014 we had 112
concemns raised through the ethics reportng pracess
These were mvesugated and where possible the outcome
shared with the whistleblower This year, as i most years,
the majonty of the concerns related to HR pracuces
Material concerns raised are reported to the Pearson
audit comrmittee

That our purpose to empower human prog ess

through learning was dlear and compeling, and
that our focus on efficacy 1s tmproving our products
and services Over 90% of our ermployees agreed that
the work of Pearson to improve the lives of others was
important to them But, we could do more to be
clearer about how we achieve that purpose and how it
wranstates into every day planming and investment

That values and behaviour are critical to our

success We responded to feedback from the
survey through a global programme of focus groups
and consultation with the executive team to loolk at
our current vatues to be brave, imaginative and decent
in hght of our organisational structure Our aim was to
understand how we could help our people to apply,
bring alive and extend the values as the touchstone
on how we behave, act and work together

That in this time of change, our leaders and

mianagers could do mare to communicate more
often and more clearly their expectations of working
togetherin amore joined-up way We will seta
performance goal for each Pearson executive member
to improve on the results of the 2014 survey and will
continue to support teams and supportleaders o be
role models for our values and behaviours as they
embed new ways of worling, Our performance
assessment process has been identfied as a means o
embed our values and behaviours and help peopie
create clear career paths

More work is needed to express how the new
structure works and to challenge thatit
is helping deliver for tearners Consequently, we are
doing more work on the Pearson brand to clanfy
who we are and how our products are effective
at improving learning in ways that promote
[wuman progress
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3. Our relationships

Helping learners to learn and
progress Is both the focus of our
business strategy and the single
mostimportant contribution
we can make to society.

Learners and customers

Qursection on efficacy descrbes the commitments and
progress we are making on our responsibthiies towards
the learner A global challenge 1s to extend access to
affordable quality education

Animportant new way of worling mtroduced this year 1s
the Pearson product lifecyde framework for managing all
Pearson products, services and platforms This ntroduces
a comman tanguage and vocabulary to help us take a view
on investing in our products This 1s part of a wider focus
on product and customer expenence that will aflow us

to better hsten and respond to what our learners and
customers need As part of this approach, we introduced
the Net Promoter Score system into Pearson, one of the
most recogrvsed methods for measunng custoimet loyalty
We used this to assess how customers viewed some of
aur most important products, along with a global brand
survey through which we will measure ourselves annually

As we ncreasingly own and operate learning insotutions,
50 we are active in serving learners of all ages including
children, young people and vulnerable adults This
introduces new responsibilities to safeguard and protect

Anzona State University ~ Starbucks — Pearson

the best interests of our learners — providing a safe,
supportive and age-appropriate learming environment
whether in a classroom or online This year, we adopted
a global policy on safeguarding and protecuon and
appotnted a new head of safeguarding to lead this
important new area of work

Our people

We conunued our focus on our broader responsibiliues
as an employer During the year

We introduced for the first uime 2 single global

approach to perfotmance assessment Thisis
designed to help our employees know what 1s expected
of them and to incentivise people to act consistently with
our values and business strategy We cascaded goals fram
the top down with the executive team sharing their 2014
objectives with alt employees

We consolidated the use of Milo as owr single platform
to deliver vraining, to provide access to learning and
development, and to support performance assessment
This 1s the first ume that Pearson has used a smgle
platform for these acuvities

Ermployees completed approximately {10,000 courses,
with the new ‘ane Pearson - Explonng how we work'
being the most popular Through Milo we delivered a
new global employee inducuon called "Welcome to
Pearson’, popular programmes on 'Efficacy for Everyone,
and a suite of management modules on performance
conversations Employees and managers also used Milo
to record their individual goals, monitor therr progress.
and assess thewr performance

in June, ASU and Starbucks
announced a unique partnership to
offer opportunities for the more than
100,000 Starbucks employees to
access affordable higher education

IMAGE REMOVED

ASU online offers Starbucks employces who worlfcmore .han
20 hours a weel affordable access to over 40 undecgraduate
degree programmes in 4 service povier ed by Pearson

IMAGE REMOVED ‘]

40

Lindergraduare
degrer programmes

100,000

Starbucks employees
«{ acress affordable
tugher education
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Standards continued

3. Our relationships continued

As part of our commitment to helping our employees
be safe, resiltent and productive, we ntroduced a
commen globa! incident reporting system for health
& safety Our overall goal s to achieve zero harm to
employees working hard through trarung and
cormmumcaton to prevent incidents before they occur
Qur perfor mance 1s reviewed by the audit committee

We made sure that our people understand how we

a1 e dong as a company, nduding how world and
sector trends might affect them and the business We
provide comprehensive, relevant information including
presentations, messages and webmnars with senior
executives and consult where appropriate so that we
can learn and take into account the perspectives of our
people Indeveloping our brand strategy, we opened a
survey to all our employees with 13,000 sharing their
views on the direction we should take

Diversity and snclusion

We are commutted to attracung, retaining engaging and
developing the best people We know that creatng and
sustaning an inclustve work environment is cniucally
important, offering equal opportunity from the
boardraom down regardless of race, gender, gender
identity or reassignment, age, disability, rehigion or
sexual orientation

On gender diversity, we continue to seek to support
women to advance i management and senior roles
We rematn an enthusiastic supporter of the 30% Club
which brings together chairs and CEOs who work to

Diversity performance {as at 31 December 2014)

encourage a better gender balance across thew
companies During 2014, we actuvely supported the
Mentos mg Programme set up by the 30% Club which
provides talented rmid-career women access 1o cross-
company, cross-sector mentoring At board level, Pear son
appointed Elizabeth Corley as a non-executve director
and has exceeded the target to have at least 25% female
directors ahead of the 2015 umeframe sei by Lord Davies

We also supplemented the diversity tooliat taunch last
year by launching Women in Learning and Leadership
(WILL) aglobal employee network in Pearson To date,
over 2,000 employers have joined as members of
WILL chapters around the world The ambiuon of the
12 chapter s established in 2014 1s to proacuvely drive
change in support of women at Pearson

At the end of 2014, 58% of our global workforce was
fermale Women represent 35% of our sentor leaderstup
team The gender balance based an our orgamsatonal
structure can be seenn the table below

We continued to progress on supporung the Lesbran,
Gay, Brsexual and Transgender (LGBT) commurity at
Pearson During 2014, Spectrum was launched asa
global employee resource network dedicated to support
the advancement of LGBT colleagues across Pearson
Pearson agamn received a perfect score of 100% in the
2014 Corporate Equahity Index recogrusing exceltence

In corporate policies and practice in supporting LGBT
employees 1 the US, adnuristered by the Human Rights
Campaign tn the UK, we are members of the Stonewall
Dwversity Champions programme

Community Investment

WomeninPearson (%) 2043 2014
B 1rd of Dwrectors 2% 30%
Seniol leadershup team
(ewerrepor sng hnes i om) the CEO) 3N 35%
All emnployees 57% 88%
Employees by gender (number) Men Women
Bord of Chrectors 7 3
Sentar leadersiip team fiwo reportng imes
1t om CEQ exchiding Exewutve Board Directors) 64 35

All employces 17064 23,470

IMAGE REMOVED
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Drsability forms part of our wider coramitment to equal
opportuntty We work to ensure that appropriate
polices, procedures, training and support are available
for people with disabilibies to ensure fair access to career
opportunities to realise their talent

Supgply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued at over
£2bn each year This total includes our investment i
research and development of new digital products and
services as well as advances to authors Pearson was a
founder signatory to the UN Global Compact in 2000
We were clear from the outset that we would use our
influence with our suppliers to improve standards for their
employees and the communities m which they operate
Ever since, we have monitored our performance agamnst
both the Global Compact principles and a set of
commitments we made to them, reporting annually on
our progress The scape of the UN Giobal Compact
covers labour standards and human nghts, combatting
corruption as well as environmental responsibiity Speaific
clauses refating to these standards are an integral part of
our contracts for key supphers These standards include
the rejecuon of forced and compulsory fabour, arespect
for diversity a minimunn age to worl on Pearson projects
and comphance with employment laws and regulauons

Communities

MNot for profit partners help us to extend our reach and
impact helping further learmng —especially for the most
disadvantaged or hard to reach —in ways thatare
complementary to our business objectives We therefore
partner with a number of charitable orgarusations and for
a decade, the Pearson Charitable Foundation has been
the [argest of these

During 2014, we reviewed our community investment
actvity and concfuded that we could greatly increase our
impact by adopting a mot e integrated approach that
places socral iImpact at the heart of the business model
The Pearson boar d approved in June 2014 a new strategy
which established increasing literacy rates worldwide as
our anchor social impact campaign 1ssue for the next five
years Qur section on Project Literacy explamns more
about our new strategy in 2014, our community
snvestment was £14 4m, or 2% of pre-tax profits

As part of this review, we assessed our existing charity
partrers and thewr fit with our new approach and strategy
A number of these, most notably, the Pearson Chantable
Foundauon, no longer ahgn with our approach Therefore,
as of 2015, Pearson adwised it woutd no fonger fund the
Faundation as the primary vehicle for its philanthropie and
community activiies Havingbeen informed of this change
i 1ts funding, n November the Foundauon board of
directors passed z 1 esolution to wind down its operations
and to close at the end of 2014 Pearson worked with the
charity o ensure that new partners were found wherever
possible for the Foundation programmes
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Standards continued

4. Our planet

We believe that better education

is crucial to building a better world.
To be passionate about a better
world goes further and we recognise
a shared responsibility to protect
the natural resources needed to
deliver learning today.

Chimate change

Pearson continues to be chmate nautral for our directly
controlled operations, a commitment we first achreved
tn 2009 and have maintained ever since Ve have set
ambitious targets to reduce our operational ernissions
by the end of 2020 and we work with employees and
suppliers to measure and reduce carbon emissions n
our value chain — from sourcing of raw materrals to the
wransport and distribution of our products

We continue to mantatn our commitment to climate
neutrahty through carbon reduction, purchase of
renewable energy, renewable energy generation at our
sites and the purchase of carbon offsers We have also
started worlang on a carbon footprint analysis of our
bool publishing i the US and UK to help us target the
most effecuve reductions

Envrronment hughlights

Highhights of our activitses include

Pear son retained global cer uficavon against the Carbon
Trust Standard Ve were the second ever organisauon
to secure the standard which recognises leaderstup

In measunng, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emissions

We mantaned our record of purchasing {00% of the
glectricity we use from green power That represented
over 186,000 Mwh of electricity n 2014

We opened a new solar installation at our distribution
centre in South Africa We now have rrvested in
renewable energy generation at five sites and have

2 6 Megawatts of wind and solar assets installed

Pearson s cerufied agamnst ISO14001 in the UK and
Australa Our Hudson Street offices in New Yorlk
became the latest to secure LEED cerufication, an
internatanally recogised mark of environmental
excellence in fachities managament Pearson occupies
740,000 square feet in LEED cerafied buldings

Pearson mvests in forest-based carbon offsets forany
part of our chmate footprint we cannot reduce or avard
through other means Since 2009, this programme has
seen over {000 hectares of forest protected in Canada,
Colombia, Costa Rica the US and the UK

Our approach to managing cther materially important
emissions — such as embedded carbon dioxide in
purchased raw materials as well as business travel by air -
are detaded n our 2014 Environment report

Green power

N 22%

Our target was to reduce ourope ational enussions
Ly 20% the end of 2015 basced on a 200% base year
We aclueved a 22% reducuon v 204, mpartdue 1o
the aeaton of Pengusn Random House

[SO14001

Peatson is ceratfred agamst (5014001
in the UK and Auwsralia

|00%

We mantamned o recerdof
punhasing (00% of the electrury
we use from g esn power

IMAGE REMOVED
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Material use forests Our social impact ranking pA
As a purchaser of paper and newsprint for our books, One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible
magaznes and newspapers, security and sustainabifity business 1s to mantam our position n key indices and
of supply arc very important to us Paper use remains benchmarks of social responsibility
a priority environmental issue and we conunue 1o focus e emn m et ————— w rmrme mn p——
on sustamability sourcing and being more efficentin how Indexdyear 201 202 013 2014
we use paper We Dow Jonas Global Guld Stlver Bronze o B
Sustanabibty Sector Class Class Class <
Furst adopted and publidly disclosed our paper Indices teado =
environmenital sourcing policy n 2003 BITC Corporate Plaunum  Planum  Platiourn  Platinum 2
Responsibihty index {retaned) {retamed) 2
Collect and map data on the forest of origin, certficatron inclusion z
nciviion in
systems applicable and recycled content for the papers FTSE4Good Yos Yos You Yes E

we purchase

Talk about our gusdelines with our key paper suppliers
when we meet and as part of our contract discussions

Discuss our approach to paper purchastng with
customers, environmental groups, investor analysts and
otherinterested parties

Hold Forest Stewardstip Council (FSC) chain of custody
certficaton aflowing books to carry the FSC fabel for our
businesses in North America

Are members of industry bodies dedicated to responsible
forest management We have been members of the
WWYF forest and trade networl for over a decade and
arc afounder member of PREPS — the pubhshers database
for responsible environmental paper sourcing - which we
use across our global business

Vistt pearson com/environment to learn more @

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions data (Metric tonnes of CO,e)

Calendaryewr Calendy year

Pearson continues to score highly in the Dow Jones
Sustainabidity Indices raung For the last decade, we have
been included in the DJSI World index which includes only
the top 10% of companves m each industry and our bronze
dass raung recognises compartes within 10% of the
sector leader

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
peter hughes@pearson com with any quesuons
orideas you may have

Catendar year  Calendar year

Ermssions from 2043 2014 Intensity ratios 2013 2014
Combucuonof fusd and operution of 30170 25027 Seaupes | and 2 {tonnes CO e/ 281 266
factlities {GHG Protocol scope ) 17% sales rovenwe £ (nkhons) 59,
Elactnary heat steam wnd cootng 115 548 104.715 Scopes | and 2 nonnes CO e} /FTE 319 347
purchased fol own use (GHG Protocol % na chamze
scopt 2) mrm e o = s e e e s —
Totat 145,718 129,742

1%

Carhionenissans Tive scope | ind scope 2 carbon entsnons are cahou ieed
Aceor g The Gre ot G s Protuco’ Conpnrite Accaunimg and
Reooriog Standard (Reveed Edwont togethe r witn medatost emvssionfactos
froy wrecoprsedsnurces ncudin, butuotim tad o DEFRA me fneroarong!
Energy Agency andthe US Ervvomne aa! Prorecr onAgerdy I mater 3l seese
| o fnoe 2 poisnons Five bostexc Ldec fror tie regur 1o GHG amuss one
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lmpact:

Introducing our flagship campaign

Project Literacy

Pearson 1s committed to maximising
our impact through community
investment. In 2014 we reviewed our
approach and believe that we can
make more of a difference by focusing
and campaigning on a single issue that
has the potential to transform lives.

A clear focus will allow us to mspire our people to get
mvolved, to harnass our products and expertise and
to build partnerships and programmes that make a
measurable difference

in June 2014, the Pearson board approved increasing
Irteracy rates worldwide as our anchor sooal tmpact
campaign issue for the next five years

Why literacy?

As wefight to end poverty, lteracy 1s criucal With words
we can make sense of the world around us pursue life-
changing opportunities and stand up for the nghts of
others todo the same

Despite rapid progress i the decade prior, illiteracy rates
for adults and children worldwide have hovered at around
800 rnillion since 2000, with 781 million people literate
roday Ofthose, 123 million are young people under the
age of 24

Global demand far iteracy

We lnow too that bastc iteracy 1s only part of the story
The skiils that inchviduals and economies need to progress
and to pr osper grow increasingly complex in the face

of technology Functionaliliteracy costs the world

$1 19 tnliion per year - equivalent to the GDP of South
Korea or Mexico

Campaign goals

Project Literacy sets out to help make this the fast
generation to be held back by poor iteracy The new
Sustanable Development Goals, due to be sighed at the
United Nations General Assembly in September 2015,
will set ambittous goals for education for the next {5 years
We beheve that itis withm reach to ensure that by 2030,
every child born can grow up to be a literate adudt
Furthermore, achieving this will be core to the success

of the other development goals

Pearson's contribution

Literacy 1s an area of need where we see clear overlap
betweern the opportunity for impact and Pearson’s
products, expertise and networks YWe have significant
experience in providing resources to comimunities around
the world that help improve reading and wnting slls
Ourlongstanding heritage in publistung and the hustory

of our community investment makes ending giobal
ihteracy stand out for Pearson as an area in which we

can contrtbute a mix of product, content employee time,
encrgy and interest to drive ympact

IMAGE REMOVED
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We envisage Pearson’s contnibution in three broad
categones

We have a rote 1o play in energising the debate

around fiteracy VWe will act to idenufy, celebrate
and support good practice to scale, invest in research
to uncover new opportumities and to increase the
prominence of literacy in natuonal and internatonal
pohcy discourse

We have a responsibility to activate our own business
assets and influence towards the themauc and
geographic areas wlhiere we see opporiunity to improve
Iiteracy VWe will place an emphasis on supporting our
employees to parucipate and contnbute 1o lteracy
sitiatives around the world, with the aim of launching
a number of these opportumues nidway into 2015

We will mvestin partnerships that pursue new

innovauons in hteracy Where relevant, our product
deveiopment will aiso tale account of and seek to address
barriers presented by poor literacy

Progress in 2014

Our Project Literacy campaign lacked off in late
September with a glabal listening and awareness raising
exerase hosted on projecthiteracy com Weinvited
individuals and organisations already warking to
improve fiteracy to highlight publicly on the website

the programmes and projects which inspire them

Taking iteracy to the next level

We also asked that they share issues wher e ncreased
action 1s needed and contribute 1o our goals by issutng
achallenge tous To date, we've received 181 insping
hteracy submuissions via the website

These projects and challenges are fundamental to
mforming the new activittes, mvestments and partrerships
which we will be announcing in the course of 2015 and
beyond Over ume, projectiiteracy comwill act as the
one-stop shop for the campaign as a whole - sharing
research, partnerships and reporung on impact

Inlate 2014, we kicked off a first partnershup with GOOD
ts GOOD The partnership has begun by issuing literacy
related stores and engaging non-profit organsations who
understand the challenges of literacy lvwall also bring
together Pearson employees and local communities in
volunteer worl

Literacy 1s anissue on which many different not for profi,
community and commercial organisations are afready
worlang hard to make a difference As part of this
campaign we will bring the private and pubhc sectors
together with a singte ambition to acceferate progress
and test new ideas

Visit projecthiteracy com totearn more @

Our new socal impact campaign —
Project Literacy - builds on existung
community activity

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

furmpstart s Read for 1he Record spw more
than 2 3 mithon adults and cluldrenjom
together 10 read Bunny Cakes by besiseling
atzhor and Hustrator Rosemary Welis

IMAGE REMOVED

Read for my Schoo! doubied its partiipanon
vates on the prevous year with 212 000 pupis
across England together readmg 876 000
books The compention encourages pupts

1o read as many houks as possible in a rwo
month period drawing from an onfine free
lbrary otbod offered by Pearson and

Pengun Random House

For 2015 we will review how we reper ton our comiriualy parinersivg th ight of our new approach

We helped Book Aid Internanonal support
the development of kbrares in schools and
commumues ac: oss sub Saharan Alnca
We were the largest donor gvang a thud of
e | midlion bools supplied by the chanty
this year
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Social innovation

Extending access to quality education o the poorest and
most marginalised families 1s a challenge, partcularly in
the most deprived countries of the world Pearsonis
commutted 10 playing our partand 1s active in helping
shape and inform the global debate around educauon
and fearning poficy Ve represent the private sector
and chantable foundavons on the board of the
Global Partnership for Education (GPE) Along with
representatves from developing countries and donor
governments, the GPE aims to strengthen educauon
systems in developing countries YWe also continue to
chamption the role of the private sector In education
as a founder member of the Global Business Coalition
for Education

Learn more about these activities at

© www globalpartnership org

© wwwgbc-education org

Key to our social innovauon approach s our belief that
commeraal solutions can accelerate access to quaty
education Uncovenng, developing and scaling solutions,
especially in places whet e educaton standards fal

well behind the best in the world, can require usto
challenge the way we think about our business

Pearson Affordable Learning Fund (PALF)

Commeraat solutons rightinvolve new business models,
mvesting in new technology, or testng innovative
parmerships or distnbution channels

Social nnovatien in practice ~ the Pearson Affordable
Learrung Fund

The Fund launched in 2012 with $15 mulfion of capital

It supports education for students from the poorest

ang most marginalised farmbes, and sets inprovements

in learmng outcomes and market-based returns as

condinons of continued mvestment The Fund has already ‘
irvested in innovative education start-ups in South Afiica, !
Ghana, India, and the Phittppines Half of the Fund 1s

currenty mvested in companies with female CEOs

In january 2015 we announced a new $50 million
investment, through which we expect to reach milfions
of addizenal students and young people by 2020

{n addition - by prowiding finanaiaf backing, good
governance, and operational support to education
entrepreneurs - the Fund ams to fostet and scale
nnovation throughout Africa, Asiz and Laun Amenica

It is also enabhing innovation from which governments
canlearn, the cost per student in the schools in the Fund
portiolio s generally lower than i government schools

in December 2013 the Pearson Affordable
Leacning Fund made a $300,000 invesiment
n Avants Counded in 2010 Avanu belps

o prepai e students fiom lew income
backgrounds n india (those with an annwad
farmly income. of $5 000 a1 below} for college
entrance exam- locusing on the highy
compentive Lareal paths of engmeering and
medicme Avantis approach emphasises peer
leas ning which takes the form of smait group
wark 1nd concept tests Alongside ourfmancial
investment we have supported Avana by
reviewang shen curntaudurn and content wacher

{rarm more at avantfelfows org o

traung znd helping to appont a nev board
and snple et a new gover nance stuciure
The results thus far hve been extremely
unpressive - over 407 of Avanu’s students
placed i the top 1% on the iIT JEE exaninatian
1 2013 and 2014, with {00% placingin the tofp
20% The T entrance exam s considered the
world z mest rompetitive wath over 500 000
students tal iy the ovam cach vear for a
univer sity systemn wath only {0000 annual
seats Avant costs are less than 25% of those
tradinonal classes with students charged only
%30 per month

iMAGE REMOVED
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Governance overview

from Glen Moreno, Charman

IMAGE REMOVED

Clear board roles and governance
processes offer balance and
experience to our strong, focused
executive team, helping to drive
strategic and performance progress.

in this Governance section

LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 Q@
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 ©
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 ©
REMUNERATION p82-106 @
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES pl07-112©

Dear shareholders,

As you may have already seen clsewhere in this report,
2014 was a year in which we completed the restructure of
Pearson, laymg the foundations to strengthen our positon
as the world's largest education company and embedding
eflicacy to all we do T would hie to take this opportunity
to share with you some insights as to how our board

and governance framework has operated and evalved
throughout the year to complement our transformation
Learn more about our Transformation on p4-9 @)

Goves nance principles

Our role and actwvities As a board we arganise aur worl
around four major thermes where we belleve we can add
value governance, strategy, business performance and
people Our board calendar and agenda provide ample
time to focus on these themes and we have set out some
examples of the business considered by the board, as well
as the governance practices to which we adhere, on the
pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings and
actvities on p63 ©

UK Corporate Governance Code Ths year, asisrequied,
we are reporting aganst the 2012 edition of the UK
Corporate Gover nance Code (the Code) The board
beheves that during 2014 the company was in full
complance with the Code See page 73 for our position
on audit tendering and rotation A detalled account of the
provisions of the Code can be found on the FRC's website
at www fre org uk and we encourage readers to view

our compliance schedule on the company website at
WWW Pearson com/governance

Board and management

The Pearson board consists of senior executive
management alongside a strong team of non-executive
directors drawn from successful intermational bustnesses
and education institutions with expenence of corporate
surategy. education emerging markets, technology and
consumer markeung

Board changes As 1s best pracuce, we contnually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we mantan an
appropriale balance and diversity of slulls and expenence
We will soon bid farewell to two trusted adwisers,

Dawvid Arculus and Ken Hydon, who have signalled




thewr intentions to stand down from the board at the
upcoming Annual General Meetng (AGM), having each
served the company for nine years Ve will miss their
wise counsel and rigour as chairmen of the remuneraton
and audit committees respectively, and we thank them
for ther service to Pearson

Durmg the past year we have also welcomed two new
non-executive directors to ourboard Ehzabeth Corley
joined us in May 2014 and in January 2015 we welcomed
Tim Score | am delighted to say that Elizabeth and Tim
are ta be appainted as our new remuneratton and audit
commuttee chairmen respectively, following the AGM in
Aprd 2015 Between them, Elizabeth and Timbringa
wealth of business finance and technology expenence
to Pearson’s board, and will no doubt contribute fresh
perspectives to the board's deiiberatons Learn more
about our Board of directors an p60-61 @

Boar d and executive struceus e and batance Our board
consists primanily of non-executive directors, who

bring a strong independent viewpont, complementtng
the executive perspectives of John Fallon and Robin
Freestone Inaddition, we invite the Pearson executive o
attend a number of the board's sessions to bring insights
and thoughts from acrass the busmess Learn mare about
the Pearson executive on p% '+ ]

Board evaluation During 2014 we undertooican
extemnally-facilitated board evaluation process As always,
this assists us in identifying opportunities to refine our
processes but the overall findings reflected a board which
funcuons well, s fit for purpose and which has a strong
sense of collegiahty and support — something which has
served us well through our two-year transformation

Lear nmot e about the Board evaluation on p67 @

Accountability See full secuon on p70-77 Q)

Throughout our transformanion, our audit committee
has played a vital role in overseeing both risk and
reporting matters Qur refocused business has seen the
introducton of a new financial reporuing structure along
the tines of our pnimary geographic marleets, and our
shuft towards digital, services and emerging mariets

has brought new opportumties and risks - strategc,
operanonal and finanaal Learn more about our Principal
nsks and uncertanues on p34 @

Section 4 Go v nunee 59

Engagement See full section on p78-81 ©

Engagement with sharehoiders and socety as a whole 15
key to Pearson’'s mission to help people make progress in
therr ives through learming Durning the year. recogmsing
tis, we formalised our reputatton & responsitnlity
commuttee, headed by Vivienne Cox, whase focus
includes our reputation with stakehotders (including
investors and the education commurity) and ovet sight
of Pearson's public comrmitments to soaety Wealso
welcomed a number of shareholders to our Annual
General Meeting which, as always, was a valuable
opportunity for our board and semor management to
respond to shareholders’ views and questions

Remuneranion See full section on p82-106 )

Our remuneration pokcy was reviewed last year to ahgn
with the company's strategy and orgarisaucn and was
approved by sharehoiders at the 2014 AGM We continue
to operate executive remunerauon in hne with the
approved policy and at present do not anticipate seelang
shareholder approval for our policy agan unul required to
do 50 at the 2017 AGM

Thus year's report on directors’ remuneration refers to
the changes we made in line with policy in 2014 to better
ahign executive director compensation with the interests
of our shareholders and, to put cur reportuinto context
contains a summary of the approved directors’
remuneraton policy report from 2013 wiich s not
subject to a vate The reportalso deals with the significant
minority vote aganst the 2013 annual remuneration
report which the company recetved at the 2014 AGM

Conclusion

{ hope this report clearty sets out how your comparny is
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questions or comments from shareholders,
erther via our website {(www pearson com) orin persen
at our Annual General Meetng

IMAGE REMOVED
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| eadership & effectiveness

Board of directors

Chairman

Executive Dii ectors

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Charman
aged 71, appointed | Ociober 2005

Chau man of the nomination corminittee and
member of the remuneraton comamittee

Ghenhas more than fou decades of
experence in business and finance and

1s currently non-executive director and
chairman designate of Virgmn Money Holdings
{iUK) plec and non executive director of
Fidelity Internauonal Lunoed Heisalsoa
senar adviser to HSBC and charman of

the Global Leadership and Technology
Evchange leaderstap board Previously

Glen was deputy rhatman uf The Financin
Reporung Councif Limsted inthe UK

depury charman and semor independent,
director at Lioyds Bankwg Group pic senior
independent director of Man Group ple and
acung chan man of UK Fimancnl investments
Linited the company set up by B Treasury
to manage the government s sharcholduys
in LJK banks

{MAGE REMOVED

John Faflon Chief executive
aged 52 appointed 3 October 2012

john became Pea son s dhief executive on

{ january 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the company s cducauon
businesses outside Morth America and
amember of the Pearson management
committee He jomed Pearsonin §997

as director of commumic auons and was
appomted president of Pearson Ine arole
he combmed with bis communications
rusponsibilinies @ 2000 In 2003 be was
appomted CEQ of Pearson s educational
publishing businesses for Europe Middle

Fast & Africa {LMA) and gradunlly took on
abi oader internationat education brief

Prior 10 joiming Pearson Johnwas director of
corporate affairs at Powergen plc. where he
was also amamber of the company s executive
coramiiiee Carlerntus career folnhield
semor public policy and commumcations rolcs
n LY local government. He s an advisory
board member of the Global Business
Coalinon for Educanon

Non-executive Directors

IMAGE REMOVED

Robtn Frecstone Chief financial officer
aged 56, apponted §2 June 2006

Robin s expenience in managementand
accounting ncludes a previous role as group
financal controller of Amersham ple (now
part of General Electric) and sentor financial
postuons wath (Cl pit. Zeneca and Henkel

UK He was also a non-executive direcior and
founder shareholder af eChem Limited unil
May 2014 when the company was sold Robin
sjomed Pearson in 2004 as deputy chieffinaneal
officer and hecame chicd finanoal officer
nJune 2006 He qualified asa chartered
accolmant with Touche Ross (now Deloitre),
and currently wits on the Advisory Gioup of
the MCAEWs Financml Reporting Facutty and
was untf Decernber 2044 charman of The
Hundred Group of Finance Directors Heat:o
sits onthe CBis Econonuc Growth board

Pearson board members
bring a wide range of
expenence, skills

and backgrounds which

IMAGE REMOVED

Ken Hydon Non-executive director
aged 70 appownted 28 February 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

Josh Lewns Non-cxecuuve director
aged 52 apponted | March20it

complement our strategy.
Digital expenence
50% IMAGE

o REMOVED
Emerging market
experience lMAGE
25% REMOVED
Educationflearning [——‘ 7
sector experience IMAGE
50% REMOVED

Note Graphic fustrates experience
oinon executve directors

Chairman of the audit commitree and
member of the nomination and remunerapion
comminees

Kens expenence in finance and business
mcludes workmpg in the electronics etail
consumer products and healthcare tectors
He 1s non executwe direcior of Reclant
Bendiser Group ple one of the world =
{eading b anded consumer goods Lompanies
inheatth hygiene andhome Heisalioanon
execunve director of Merhn Enterzamments
plc the world s second largest waiton
atracucnoperato From 200410 20/3 he
wias anon execunve director of Tesco ple
Previousiy Ken was chief financal nificer

of Vodafone Gi aup ple, the mulunancnal
wlecornmunications company and financial
diector of subsidianes of Racal Electronies

Member of the horrenauon and remuneranon
commitiees

Josh £ experience spans finance educanon
and the development of digriaf enterpnses

He 15 the founder of Salmon River Capuiral LLC,
a New Yoib based privite equnty/vente e
capita fir t focused on rechnology enabled
busnesses i educanon finangal sernces

and othersectors QOvera s year caresrio
active princpal mvestng he has been involved
tn a broad range of successful companies
including several ploneering enterprses

w1 the educanon sector [naddinon hehas
tong been acnve m the non profit educavon
sector with assocrnions incudmg New
Leaders New Classrooms and the Bill &
Melinda Gates Foundauon Heis also apon
executive director of eVesiment and Axioma
both financal data/technology compames

and Parchment an educanon credentials
managemeantLompany




MNon-execotive Directors
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IMAGE REMOVED

Dawid Arculus Non-execuuve director
aged 68, apponted 28 February 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

Ehzabeth Corley, CBE Non-executive directos
aged 5B appointed | May 2044

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Senior independent dwector
2ged 55 appronter | January 2012

Chairman of the reruneration colntrtice
and member of the audit and nomunayon
commttens

Daved lhas experie nee in banking
telecommunicanans and publishing w a long
tareermn busmess Currently heis charrman of
Energy UK and Hassiumn Asset Management
and 15 amember of councd of Cranfield
University Dawid s previous 1 oles inchude the
chan manship of Atde: more Bank plc Nurmis
Corporanonple O2 ple Severn Tremt ple
IPC Group and the adwisory board of the
Brinsh Library 15 well as chuef operaning
officer of United Business Media ple group
managng director of EMAP pir and a non-
erecunve diecta of Tefelonica § A David
st ved from 2002 10 2006 as chan mian of the
i povernment s Better Regulon Task
Force whichworked oneduang burdens
on busingss

Member of the nommation and 1 emumerdanon
conmmitiees

Ehzabeth s chief execunve officer of Allianz
Globilinvestors ane ofthe world™ leading
nvestment orgamsations She was previously
3t Mernilt Lynch Investment Managers and
Coopers & Lybrand Elizabeth s amember

ot the board of the fvestment Acsuciation
amemher of the Etropean Securities and
Markets Authority s stakeholdergroup an
advisory counaifmember ef TheCnyUK and

15 hon executve dwrecior of the Hinancial
Reporting Counclm the UK Shesalsoa
maernber of the management commitiee of the
Forum of Furopean Asset Managers a member
of the CFA Futuie of Finance Counciband a
member of the Comimitiee of 200 Elzabetds
was appornted Commander of the Order of
the Bringh Empire (CBE}Y nthe 2015 New Yoar
Honouw s for services to the finanoal secion
She s aboa folfow of the Royal Society of Arts
and an accomplished crime ficnon author

Charman of the reputauon & responsibilicy
eomuimittee and member of the audit
AOMINAtoN and FRMUNeraton commiltees

Vivienne hay wide experience in energy
natul al tesources and busmess nnovaton
She worked for BP plc for 28 years, in Brizain
and Continental Eurape mposts nduding
evecutive vice president and chief executive
of BP s gas power andrenewables business
and ris alternative energy unit Shets non-
cxecunve director of Stena dnternational

1nd of enes gy company BG Group ple

and chairman of the supervisory beard of
Vallouree which supplies tubdar systems
forthe energy mdustry Sheis alsolead
mdepondent director at the UKD partmaent
for International Development Vivienne s a
commissionas of the Airpor ts Commiussion,
which was setup by Ue UK government o
exwnine any regui ements for additional UK
Arport capacity

IMAGE REMOVED

Linda Lormer Non-executive director
aged 62, appointed | July 2013

IMAGE REMQVED

Hansh Manwani Non-executive directar
aged 6! appomted { October 2013

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Score Non-executive director
aped 54 apposnted | fanvary 2015

Member of the audit, nominaton and
repuiation & responsibility commitlees

Member of the norunation and reputation &
responsibdity commitiees

Member of the audit and nonunanon
commitiees

Linda has adeep backgroumnd in educauun
stategy edrmimistraton and public affans Sheis
vire president for Global & Stratege Innauves
at Yale University where her dunes mdude
oaraughof Yaie s Office of internanonal
Affairs and Office of Digtal Dirsemmaton
Over a 3G year careerinbugher educauon

she has beent esponsible for many of Yale s
admimstraive servives mcluding the umver sy s
public communeations alumnerelations and
Office. of Sustanatnliny Previotsly Linda served
as president of Randolph Macon Womans
Cullege in Vingiua and had earlier worked at
Yale uy severad senior roles including associote
provost. She s anon execunve director of Save
the Clildien (US) and was char of the board
of the Asseaation of Amenican Cofleges and
Lhwversiaes

Fansh has an eviensive background n emerging
rarkets and senior experence i a successful
gliobal orgarsation He was previousty chief
vperaung oficer of consumer products
company Umtever havng jomed the company
n 197625 a markeung management rnnee
wilndia and hetd sertor managerment roles
around the world induding Nor th America
Latn America, Europe Africasnd Ame Hews
non executive charman of Hindustan Undlever
Linvtedmnindia and serves on the boards of
Wirlpool Cotporaten Qualrommine and
MNiefsen NV He s also on the board of the
Indwan School of Business and the Economuc
Development Board (EDB) of Singapore

Tams has been chef finuncial off cer of

ARM Hofdings ple the world s leading

s huconduciortP company {or 13 pears
with extensive expericnce ol 1the technology
= ctor andin both devetope d and emarging
mizrkets parncarly Cluna Hesan
experenced non exeoutve directer and
currently sits on the board of The Brtish
Land Company plc He served onthe boird
of Mananal Express Group ple fi ora 2005 1o
2014 induding e as intenin charmzn and
s1x ye ars as the sensorindependen- direcior
Eartierintus career Tun held semor finarice
rofes with Rebus Group, Wiham Bard

BTR pic and othars
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| eadership & effectiveness

Board governance

Board of directors

Composinon of the board The board currently consists
of the chairman, Glen Moreno two executive directors
including the chief executive, John Fallon and eight
independent non-executive directors Followng the
2015 AGM, the board will consist of six independent
non-executive directors, following the retirement of
Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon

Chairman and chief executive There s a defined spln

of responsibiliies between the chairman and the chief
executive Theroles and responsibiiies of the charrman
and chief executive are clearty defined, set out Inwritng
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Chait man's significant commitments During the course
of 2014, the chairman stepped down from his positon as
deputy chan man of the Finanaial Reporting Council, and
wath effect from | January 2015 has been appointed as a
non executive director and chairman designate of Virgin
Money Holdings (UK} plc

Independence of du ectors All of the non-executive
directars who served during 2014 were considered by the
board to be independent for the purposes of the Code

The board reviews the independence of each of the non
executive directors annually This mcludes reviewng thewr
external appontments and any potental conficts of
interest as well as assessing thewr ndividual crcumstances
i order to ensure that there are no relationships or
ewrcumstances hkely to affect thewr character or judgement
In addton to this review, each of the non-executive
directors is asked annually to complete an indepandence
guestionnawe to sansfy requirements ansing from
Pearson's UShsung

The board has in particular considerad the independence
of Dawid Arculus and ien Hydon who have each now
served for nme years [tis the mtention of both David

and Ken to retit e as directors at the 2015 AGM, but
nevertheless the board believes that both directors
continue ta provide sufficient challenge to the
deliberatnons of the board as a whaole, and that they are
sufficiently mdependent in character and judgement to
continue to serve as ndependent non-executive directors
for the remainder of their terms

Kay roles

ROLE NAME RESPONSIBILITY

Chawman Glen Moreno The chawman is prmarily responsible for the leadership of the board and
ensunngits effectiveness

Chyef John Fallon The chief executive is responsible for the operatonal management of the

executive business and for the development and implementation of the company’s
strategy as agreed by the board and the Pearson executive

Semor Vivienne Cox The seror independent director's role includes meeung regulat y with

independent the chatrman and chief executive to discuss specific Issues, as well as being

director avallable to shareholders generally if they should have concerns that have

Gender spht of the board

. Men 7 B Under dyers 1 IMAG

| Woimen 3 REIMAGE R3wbyevs z REM OVE
MOVED MOVED

Fipures 2 w 31 Dr cember 2014 W 7 vears ar more 2

Forlowrng 2005 AGM splirwillbe o 3

not been addressed through the normat channels

The senior independent director has responsibility for appraising the
performance of the chairman, including in relauon to the effectiveness

of the nommation comnutzee, as pal t of the annual board evaluation
process The senior independent director would be expected to charr
the norunation comnuttes in the event that it was considering succession
to the role of charman of the board

Length of renw e
of non-execunve directors

Fyures as at 31 Erecembar 2004
Fouwvweng 2005 AGEL vttowil be 4.2 €




Conflicts of interest Under the Companies Act 2006

(the Act), directors have 2 statstory duty to avoid conflicts
of interest with the company The company’s artcles of
assocation (Articles) allow the directors to authorise

Secuon 4 Lacrtant + 63

scheduled meetng The 1 elevant director cannot vote on
an authorisation resolution, or be counted i the quorum
in relation to the resolunon relating to fus/her confict or
potentaf confict The board reviews any authonsations

conflicts of interest. The company has established a
procedure to dentfy actual and potental confhicts of
nterest, including all directorships or other appointments
to, ot refatonships with, compames which are notpart
of the Pearson Group and which could give nse to actual
or potential conflicts of interest Once noufied to the
chatrman or company secretary such potential conflicts
are considered for authonisation by the board atits next

Board meenngs during the year 2014

granted on anannual basis

Board meetings

The board held six full schedufed meetings in 2014, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
issues facing the company Major items covered by the
board in 2014 at e shown in the table below

Feb 2014

London

Apr 2014

Landon

jun 2014

Washington DC

Oct 2014

Jul 2014

l.ohdon London

Dec 2014

New York
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»yAnnuai review »Focus on T »Brand reputatiun » Update on »Approvalof
of autho~sed fortheoning ALM z and US Pearson commirtee tems
canficts of ndreview of « povernment policy Foundation of reference
nterest shareholder swes = Rerdmore unp?8 » Emerpnse nisk
» Review of division E management
of tcsponsbiiimes = roview
berween charrman s 3 Approvat of
and chief executive » schedule of
authanty limtts
STRATEGY
» 2014 operaung » Update onnew 3y Overview of »Stratemc Su atepe offsite ) Pengumt Random
plan orgamsanionn and LIS busmes. plan update meeting focusing House roview
> Review of product strategy 3 Systems supply on > Business porifolio
ansformation approach chain and > Geographies and and ransacuon
10 dare and plang 3 Pearson pracuretnent Lines of Business updaic
for 2014 Technology ~view SErategic revicws
from naw chiel including post
in‘ormat.on officet 4cquisimon
reviews

»Focus sesstoris
Fuanceal Tivves

and UK educauen
+ Technology
deep dive
PERFORMANCE
¥ 2013 repor: > Rewiew ol wivestor > nserme esedts and » Tradmgupdate T ading update
and 2ccounts refaucns strategy dendend approvit and prelimmary
and dindend and share price view of 2015
vecammendaton performance
» T wding update
PEOPLL
) Review »Resing Suars » Organisatiomal > Rising Stars ' Takent revew
remunerstion brealefast deagnand breakfast
comumilltee Read more structure Read more
1 etommendations onpbld onp6s

I additoncons sxform st me etngs the board beld onefurrher meeting 1o Feliuary 2004 10 kpprove the 2013 prelrmary rew'tsand to meg s deterniraton that
the 2043 Annual report was Tar bafanced and understandable Th board aiso undertous, discussions i ougnauitee year asrequred 1o cons-derthe progrss and

terms of corporate transactines
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

The rale and business of the board

The boa d s deeply engaged in developing and measuring
the company s long-term strategy, performance and
value We believe that it adds a valuable and diverse set
of external perspectives and that robust open debate
about significant business issues brings a valuable
additional disaphne to major decsions

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval 15 avalable on our website, at
Www PEarson com/governance

The board receives umely, regular and necessary finanaal,
management and other nformaton to fulfil its duties
Comprehensive board papers are crculated to the board
and committee members at least one week in advance
of each meeting and the board receives regular reports
from the chief executive In addinon to meeting papers,

a library of current and histaric corporate informaton 15
made avallable to directors electronically to support the
board's deasion- malang process Oirectors can obtain
ndependent professionat advice, at the company’s
expense, in the performance of their duties as directors
All directors have access 1o the advice and services of the
company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with locaf semior
management every ume board and committee meeungs
are held at the locations of operatng companies, such

as dunng the board's 2014 tnp to Washington, DC

Thus aflows the non-executive directors to share their
expenence and expertise with senior managers as well
as allowing thern to better understand the abiltes and
motvations of serior management, which i trn wall
help them assess the company’s prospects and plans

for succession

Standing commuittee

A standing commurtee of the board has been established
to approve certain ardinary course of business items such
as banking matters guarantces, intra- Group ransacuons
and routne matters relating to employee share plans

The comuttee has written terms of reference reviewed
and approved each year, which clearly set out.ts authority
and duties These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/governance

Culture and values of the board

As part of 1ts annual evaluation, the board considered its
own culture and dynamics, and how these have evolved
alongside the wider transfor mation

The board agreed that it has a real sense of collegiality,
with an open and transpar ent approach where diversity
of opmnion and challenge are encouraged and welcomed
As awhole and at an indwadual level, the board feels
wholly commutted to Pearson's values and mission, and
throughout 2014 has recerved regular updates on the
transformation as it has progressed |earn more about
our Board evaluation on p67 @

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the company's
directors at scheduled board meeungs during 2014

Board
meetings
attended

Chairman

Glen Mol enc 6/6

Executive directors

John Falion 6/6

Robin Freestone 6/6
Non-executive diectors

Dawvid Arculus 6/6

Elizabeth Cortey™ 4/4

Vivienne Cox 6/6

Ken Hydon 6/6

josh Lewis 6/6

Linda Lorimer 6/6
Harish Manwan: 6/6

* Apprevied on § May 1014




Successton planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning —
not only at board and executive management fevel but
for all key positions throughout the business —as one of
iLs prime responsibiliies At boai d level, the primary
focus inthe latter part of the year has been to identfy

‘suitable candidates for the role of chvef financal officer

The company has formal conungency plans in place for
temporary absence of the chief execunve for health or
otherieasons The matter of chief executive succession
15 a standing rrem for discussion and review by the
chawman and chief executve annually Succession
planning for the board and chair are also undertaken
annually

Talent review

The board dedicated part of its December 2014
meeting to reviewing chief execuuve succession and the
leadershp talent pipelne at Pearson In preparation for
that, the Pearson executive teamn undertook a rigorous
talent review programme, assessing performance and
potential of its top 100 executves (their directreports)
as well as the strength of the succession pipeline for ther
ownroles and thewr team's roles

All members of the executive team also took partina
multi-rater feedback process (360 feedback process),
recemng feedback from direct reports, colleagues
and the chief executive on key leadership traits and
behaviours

A¢ the board meeung, the board discussed chuef
executive successton and together they reviewed
the 360 summary reports for the executives, as
well as overall themes from the 2014 employee
engagement survey

Thus discussion was followed by a session on the

broader talent process, looking inte succession for each
executive role, analysing diversity staustics and discussing
key capabilities that will be crtical for the effective

dehver y of our strategy (pedagogy, technology and
product management)

As a result of s process, we are desigiing structured
development plans for the top 100 executives in the
organisation and starting a deeper assessment of our
capabiliies in the areas of pedagogy. technology and
product management

Section 4 Qo hunge 65

RISING STARS

In addition to the board’s
established succession planning and
talent review process for senior
roles throughout the business,

it was decided in 2014 to initiate

a series of Rising Stars sessions

The first of these sessions took place over informal
brealfasts durnng each of the board's offsite meetngs
in Washington, DC and Londen The purpose of the
se5s10n5 15 to provide the board with the opportunity
to meet a cross-section of junior or rmd-level
colleagues from the host country who have been
identified by senior executives as showing

real promise The board’s feedback on these
sesstans in 2014 was overwhelmingly posiuve -

they valued the opportunity to meet and

hear from colleagues from all fevels,

finding the sessions rich and

interesting, and talkung away a

clearer sense of Pearson’s

workang culture

Rusing Sears
gender sphit

IMAGE REMOVED

- Ml 477
W Fo nale 532
as ar 31 Decembe 1014

“The Rising Stars offered the directors
incredible insights into the workings of the
company's enterprises These men and
women are a key part of the future of the
company, and we were impressed by their
sagacity and by their passion for the mission
of Pearson -- and by their good ideas for our
collective future.” )

Linda Lotimer Non-execuuve director
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Leaderstup & effectiveness
Board governance continued

Directors’ traming and induction

Board committees

Directors recetve a significant bespoke induction
programme and a range of mformation about Pearson
when they jorn the board This includes background
nformation on Peai son and details of board procedures,
directors' responsibiities and vanous governance related
issues, including pr ocedures for deating in Pearson shares
and therr legal obligations as directers The inducgon
also includes a series of meetngs with members of the
board, the Pearson executive and senior management,
presentanons regarding the business from seivor
executives and a briefing on Pearson’s nvestor relations
programme The induction programmes for Elizabeth
Corley and Tim Score are ongoing, taltored to thewr
spectfic interests, and refevant to the board commuttees
they have joined

All directors receive traming in the form of presentations
about the company's aperations through board meetings
held at operational locanions and by encouraging the
directors to visit local operations and management as and
when therr schedule allows ncluding if they are u avelling
to a country o1 region on non-Pearson busmess The
company sea etary and general counsel, in conjuncuon
with the Group's advisers, monitor legal and governance
developments and update the board on such matters as
agreed with the charman Dwectors can also make use of
externat courses

Dwrectors' indemnities

In accordance with secuon 232 of the Act the company
grants an ndemnity to all of its directors The indemnity
relates to costs incurred by them in defending any avit or
crirminal proceedings and in connection with an application
for relief under sections 661(3) and (4) or secuons |{57(1)-
(3) ofthe Act, so fong as montes are repaid not later than
when the outcome becomes final if

{1} they are convicted in the proceedings
{1t judgment s given against them or
(m} the coul trefuses to grant the relief sought

As permitted by Peat son's articles of assoctauon, the
diwectors have the benefit of an ndemnity whichiis a
qualifying third party indemnity prowision as defined
by section 234 of the Act The indemnity was inforce
throughout the last financial period and is cun ently

in force

The company has purchased and mantans dwectors’ and
officers’ insurance cover against certan legal fiabiinies and
costs for claims in connection with any act or ormission by
such directors and officers n the execution of their duties

The board has established four formal comnutiees

the audit committee, the nemination committee,

the 1 emuneration committee and the reputation &
responsibility commuttee, which was formally consututed
in 2014 having operated on an mformal basis during 203
The chairmen and members of these committees are
appotnted by the board on the recommendaton

(where appropniate} of the norination committee and
i consultauon with each relevant committee chairman
In addwon to these formal board committees, the
standing committee also operates with board level Input

More committee infformatton

AUDIT COMMITTEE p70 @
NOMINATION COMMITTEE p68 Q)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE p82
REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE 72 0
STANDING COMMITTEE p64

The approach adopted by the board 15 for comnuteees to
focus on their own areas of expertise, enabling the board
meetngs to focus on governance, sirategy. performance
and people, thereby making the best use of the board’s
ume together as a whole The commuttee charmen
report to the full board at each meeting immediately
following their sessians, ensuring a good commiumication
flow whilst retaining the ability to escalate items to the full
board's agenda if appropriate

Board commrttee attendance

The following table shows attendance by directors at
commutiee meetings throughout 2014

Reputavion &

Audic Remuncration MNomnavon  responsthiiy

Glen Morenc - 4/4 6/6 -
John Faflon - - 6/6 -
Dawid Arculus 575 4/4 6/6 -
Elizabeth Corley’ - ¥4 4/4 -
Vivienne Cox 5/% 4/4 6/6 3/3
iCen Hydon 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
josh Lews - 4/4 6/6 -
Linda Lonimer 5/5 - 6/6 3/3
Hansh Manwant___ - - b6 33

* [o ned nominaucn commttes on { May 2004 And 7 EMURErILON O tee
on | August 2001




BCARD EVALUATION

A formal evaluauon of the board, its commuttees and
individual directors’ performance was completed at
the end of 20{4

it s recommended by the Code that this process is
faclitated by a third party every three years This
effecuveness review was conducted by external
evaluator, JCA Group Inaddition to fachtating this
review, JCA Group provided benchmariang and due
diligence services in connection with the appomntment
of Elizabeth Corley as a non-executive director

JCA Group has no other connectron to Peat son
apart from in relation to board evaluaton and search
consultancy services

EVALUATION PROCESS

OnJCA Group's recommendation, the process forr
the evaluarion was as follows

Inutsat briefing An initial briefing on the
company to provide context and msights
into the strategic priotities for the business
as well as any 1ssues or concerns to address
more specifically

N
Discussion guideline Development of a
‘discussion gurdehine’ which was shared with
the partapants ahead of one to-one meeungs,
to address key topics but not imit the
discusston 1o only these, such topics induded
the organisation of the board, board and chawr
succession, judgement of the strategy and
busmness performance, the dynanucs and
compositon of the board and feedback on
the committees and mdvidual directors

N
One-to-one meetings One-to-one meetngs
with each board member, both executive
and non-executive, these conversauons
were conducted on a confidental,
un-attributable basis

NV
Effecaveness report A full report was
presented to the board, contaming the
key findings, recommendaticns for acuons

and suggested next steps

Section 4 G Niee 87

Conclusion and recommendations

The review concluded that overall the board and

its committees remain effectve in fulfilling ther
responsibilities appropriately Actions agreedasa
result of the evaluation included ongoing review and
assessment of the strategy and its success, given the
significant transformation being undertaken by the
company The frequency of board meetings was judged
to be appropnate However, bullding on the success of
the recommendation of the chief execunive’s monthly
latter from fast year's internal board review, there was
also a suggesuon to ntroduce additonal board calls in
between board meetings to keep the board current on
1ssues and progress I addivion, it was highbighted that
itis essential the board pays continuing attention to
ensure all directors are well informed and have a deep
understanding of the issues for the business and the
broader global education environment in order to
provide appropriate strategic directton and challenge
going forward This might include creaung ongoing
opportunmies for board members to visit Pearson’s
operations i different global venues

Pei sonal objectives

{n addiion 1o the evaluaton of the board as a whole,
executives are also evaluated each year on ther
performance aganst personal objecoves under the
company's annual incentve plan Learn more about our
Annual incenove plan on pl04 €Y

The non-executive directors, led by the senior
independent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman’s performance

Committee evaluation

In addition to the review of the board and indmidual
directors, the audit and remuneration committees each
undergo an annual evaluation process to review their
performance and effecuveness

The process wwolves distribution of quesaonnaires to
audit and remuneration committee mermbers, as well as
iey stakeholders m each commutee, seeking views on
matter s including commuttee rofes and responsibilines,
quality and umeliness of meeung matenals, opportunity
for discusston and debate, dialogue with management
and access to ndependentadvice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective committee at
a scheduted meeting, with key themes being drawn out
for discussion
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Charrman
Glen Moreno

IMAGE REMOVED

Members David A culus, Elizabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox,
Ken Hydon fosh Lewss, Linda Lorimer, Harish Marwan
Glen Morene and Tim Score

Kay actvities in 2014

Obyectives Actions

Identify and appaint additianal Appointment of
non-executive directors, at Ehzabeth Corley and
least one of whom to be female  Tim Score

Awudit commuttee and Appaintment of Tim
remuneration committee Scaie and Ehzabeth
chair successian Corley as respective

committee chail men

Appomtment of Caram
Wihlams announced —
to join board on

1 August 2015

Commence search fo1 pew
chief financial officer

For nominauon committee attendance
see overview table on p66 €

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE:

t. Appointments idenufying and norminatng
candidates for board vacancies

2 Balance Ensunng that the board and its commuttees
have the approprate balance of skills, expenence,
independence, dversity and knowledge to

operate effectively

3 Succession planning Reviewing the company’s
leadership needs with a view to ensuring the contnued
abuity of the orgarisation to compete effectively n

the marlketplace

Nommnauon commuttee role and composition

The commuttee primarily monitors the compositon and
balance of the board and its commitiees, and dentfies
and recommends to the board the appointment of new
directors and/or committee members

John Fallon stepped down from the nominaton
commuttes in December 2014, although he will continue
to be avaslable to attend comnuttee meeungs by
mwtation Ehzabeth Corley and Tim Score joined the
nommnation committee following their appointments

to the board

Committee meetings and appointments

The nomination committee meets at least once a year and
at other umes as and when required Durmg 2014, the
committee met six tmes with its primary focus bemg to
consider suitable candidates for the role of chief financial
officer and for non- executive positions, induding for the
rales of audit and remunerauon committee chairmen
prepar ation for the reurement from the board of Ken
Hydon and Dawd Arculus dunng 2015

The non-executive search culminated m the successful
appointment of Tim Score and Elizabeth Corley to the
board, who also jomned the audit and remuneration
committees respecuvely and will assume the
chairmanships of those commuttees following the
AGMm Aprid 2015

Having considered a range of external and internal
candidates, we announced on 27 February 2015 that
Coram Wiiliams would succeed Robin Freestone as chiel
financal officer Coram will join Pearson as CFO designate
on | July 2015 and will replace Robin on the board on

i August 2015

in addiuon, the commuittee continued ta focus on the
search for a non executive director with insights into
mobile and drgital technology to further complement
aur surategy



Pearson uses a number of teading firrns i ws board
and executive search activites An external search
consuttancy, Odgers Berndtson was used during the
recruitment process for Tum Score Odger s Berndtson
does not have any other connection to Pearson apart
from as a search consultancy

The committee Wdenufied Elizabeth Corley as a potenual
non-executive candidate and an external search agency.
JCA Group, provided benchmartung and due diligence
services in connection with Elizabeth’s appointment

In addition to these services, [CA Group facilitated
Pearson’s board evaluation i 2014

Learn more about the Board of directors on p60 €

Charrman role

Although the chairman of the board chans the
normination committee, he is not permitted to chair
meetings when the appointment of his successoris
being considered or during a discussion regarding hus
performance Atsuch umes, the serorindependent
director will cha- the meetings

Terms of reference

The commuttee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authanity and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
Www pearson com/governance

Diversity

The board embraces the Code’s underfying principles
wath regard to board balance and dwversity, induding
gender diversity The nomination committee, led by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstrate a broad balance of skilis, expertence and
nationality, to support Pearson’s strategic development
and reflect the global nature of the Group's business

The commuttee and the board always take account of
drversity inits by oadest sense when considenng board
appomntments whilst ensurng that appointments are
made based on mert and relevant experience

Section 4 Gemaer tangs 69

Lord Dawvtes has called for companies to target 25%

female representation on boards of FTSE 100 companies
by 2015 Pearson 1s commutted to having atleast 30%
fermale directors withun Lord Dawvtes’ 2015 umeframe

and cui rently has thiree femate di ectors on its board

of eleven, representing 27% With the forthcomng
retrement of David Arculus and Ken Hydon in the coming
months, this figuire 1s expected to increase to 33%

Immediately below board level, the Pearson executve,
notincluding the chief executive and chief financial officer
who are man board directors, has three female members
outof a totat of 12 (representing 25%) Our senior
leadership team, up to and incduding two repor ung levels
from the chief executive, shows a strong prpeline of
fernale talent with women representng 35% of our

senior leaders

Pearson considers diversity as an important issue across
the Group, nctjust at board level One of the key ams
of Pearson’s diversity policy 1s to ncrease the number
of ieaders corming from a diverse background including
advanang more women into feadership positions such
as through our Women in Learning and L. eadership
programme for ermployees

Learn mere about Diversity throughout Pearson
on pSOO

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Chairman of nomminatuon commiitee
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Accountability

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman
KenHydon
{stands downat

2015 AGM) IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon
Linda Lonmer lm Score

tn my nine years as audit committee
chairman | have learned a lot about
Pearson, its operations, its practices
and its senior management and
have enjoyed the stmulation
generated by so much change

and world class colleagues.

Ken Hydeon Chaitman of audit commuttee

For Audit committee meeung attendance
see overview table on p66 ©

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE
OVERSIGHT OF:

| Reporung The quality and integnity of financial
reportng and statements and refated disclosure

2 Policy Group policies, induding accounung policies,
and pracuces

3 External audit External audit, including the
appointment qualificaton, independence and the
performance of the external auditor

Audit commuttee role

The committee has been established by the board
primanly for the purpose of overseeing the accounting,
financial reportng, nternat control and rsk management
processes of the company and the audit of the financial
statements of the company As a commitiee, we are
responsible for assisting the board’s oversight of the
quality and integnty of the company’s externat financiat
reporung and staternents and the company’s accounting
pokoes and pracuces

The Group's internal auditor has a dual reporung line to
the chef financial officer and me. and external auditors
have drrect access to the commuttee to raise any matter

of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the committee | report to the full board at every board
meetng immediately following a committee meeting

As a committee, we also review the independence of the
external auditors, including the prowvision of non-audit
services (further details of which can be found on page {07
and note 4 to the financial statements), ensure that there

is an appropriate audit relationsiup and that auditor
objectvity and independence are upheld

Audit committee changes

Linda Lonmer joined the audit commutteein January 20i4
and we have also recenty welcomed Tim Score wha
joined the commuttee upon his appointment ta the board
on | january 2015 Following nine years with Pearson, and
as chairman of the audit committee, | will step down from
the board at the 2015 Annual General Meeting Tim Score
will take over the charmanship of the commitice
followmg my retirement and | am sure Tim will bring hus
own challenge and ngour to the commuttee’s deliberations
as an experienced audit commuttee chairman

Fair, balanced and understandable reporung

4 Risk and nternal contrel Risk management systerms
and internal controf environment including the
performance of the itet nal audrt funcuon

5 Comphlance Compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements inrelation to financal reportng and
accountng matters

Terms of reference

The comnittee has written terms of reference wich
clearly set out its authonty and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance @

We are mindful of the Code s revised principle C 1
relatng 1o far; balanced and understandable reporting
and accordingly we butitin addwonal steps to our Annual
report tmetable to ensure that the fulf board was given
sufficent opportunity to review, consider and comment
anthe report asit progressed Learn more about Farr,
balanced and understandable repot ung on p{08 (5]




Risk assessment, assurance and integrity

A key part of the role of the camnmittee s im providing
aversight and reassurance to the board with regard to the
integnty of the company's financial repot ung, nternal
control pokaies, and procedures for the idenufication,
assessment and reporting of sk During 2014 we aligned
our sk and conurol processes with the new organisational
stirdcture, and conducted a number of deep dives into
selected principal risies

Data security

We view data privacy and cyber security breach as one of
our prinapal operauonal nsks, and this1s a regular itemon
the audit committee’s agenda During 2014 a new chief
nformation officer and a chief nformation security officer
were appointed, and the commuittee met with both

sho thy foliowing thewr appointments to recelve theu wtial
assessments on Pearson's data secunty programme and
subsequently for progress updates throughout the year
The committee learned that the key areas of focus are 1o
ensure consistently secure applicatons and infi astructure
across all parts of the Group, with the ain of adopting
best-in class pracuces for our customers and employees

Ant-bribery and corruption

Given our geographic focus and profile, and a number

of recent acquistons in growth markets, anti-bnbery
and corruption (ABC) s a specific sk for Pearson The
committee conducted a deep dive into ABC risk in 2014,
joned by legal advisers the SVP general counsel and SVP
internal audit and comphance The focus of the deep dive
mdluded the ncreasingly co-ordinated approach taken
by authoniues in higher-risk jurisidicuons in which we
operate, as well as a review of recent enforcement actions
elsewhere in the education sector The commuttee noted
that Pearson’'s ABC policy is updated on an ongoing basis
to reflect legislative changes, and learned more about
how the internal ABC training programme conunues to
evolve 1o reflect cur new business models and maricet
spectfic nsks

Health & safety

One year on from the tntroducton of our global health

& safety policy, the commuttee conducted a deep dive
reviewng implementation and findings to date As weill
as t eviewing findings of audits at Pearson sites around

the wot id, the committee discussed the Group's health
and safety pnonues A primary focus 1s the safeguarding
and protection of our students and, to this end, a new
global safeguarding officer has been appomted and a
safeguarding and protecton policy introduced OQur trinal

Secuon 4 G L enee 7i

focus has been on our direct delivery businesses — the
areas of greatest nsk —and a training course 15 being
developed for those staff who have contact with students
We have also engaged throughout the Group to ensure
that our safeguarding 1s robust whenever we come into
contact with children, young people and vulnerable
adults Corporate secunty is another key area of focus,
particularly in relation to the safety and security of our
staff worlang in, or travelling to, high risk destinations
Sigruficant progress has been made nimplementation
of the new policies across our businesses, although
there remams work to be done, and the committee
will maintain oversight as we move forward with our
health & safety and safeguarding strategies

Audit committee meetings and activittes

The commuttee met five tmes during the year with

the following in attendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and compliance, members of the
senior management team, and the external auditors
Addizonally, the chief executive and chairman periodically
attended comnuttee meetings Since the renutof the
SVP nternal audit and comphance expanded to include
compliance the mternal audic dn ector and the VP
compliance and risk assurance have also attended
meetngs, 5o the committes has direct contact with
those areas The commuttee also met regularly in
private with the external auditors and the SVP interna
audit and compliance

At every meeting the committee considered reports

on the actuvities of the Group internal audit funcuon,
induding the results of internal audits rsk reviews. project
assurance reviews and fraud and whustleblowing reports
The committee also monored the company’s financal
reporting, internal controls and risk management
procedures, reviewed the non-audit services provided

by PwC and considered any significant legal claims and
regulatory ssues i the context of thewr impact on

financial reporting

Finally, | would lile to thanlk my fellow commuittee
members, the cheef financal officer and the SVP internal
audit and compliance for ther enthusiasm and suppor t

Learmn more about the Key actvitias of the audit
committee on p72 @

IMAGE REMOVED

Ken Hydon Chaimman of audit commuttee
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Accountabihty contnued

Audit committee meeungs during the year

Every Feb 2014 Apr 2014

Jul 2014

Dec 2014

meeting
REPORTING
s Accounting > The 2013 Annual 5 Internim » Remew of the s Cverview of
and technical reportand accounts management mnrerwm results 2004 Annual
updates prebmunary statement and trading report process
announcement, anmouncemem

financial staternents
and income staterment

himpacroflegat
»Form 20 F and related

clains and
tegulatory disdosures mcuding
\S5U6S an the annual Sm banes-
financial Oxley Act section 404
I eporung attestavion of financial
repot ting nternal
cont ofs
POLICY
» Accounting > Tax reporung » Annual review and » Annual review of
madttersand process approval of external treasury policy
Group auditor policy and su ategy
4Lcounnng rinformation secutiiy
pohaes and policy update
EXTECRNAL AUDIR
» Prowision of » Receipt of the extermal » 2014 external yUUpdate on audic
non audit auditors reporton audizplan tendenng requirements
serices the Farm 20-Fand on » Remunerauon and »Review of the
by PwC the year end audit engagement letter effecuveness of the
y Reappomtment of the of the external external auditol s
external audiors auditors
» Confirmation of » Review apimon on
audnor ndependence mtenim results
RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
yimernat audit » Assessment of the > Rusle deep dive » Annual internal »Rusk deep dive »20151nterna
acuvity reporis effecuveness of rhe tesung risi audit plan anu-bribery and audit plan
and review of Group s nternal 3 Risk deep dive COrtuUpLon » Conisis management
key findings control environment business contnuity 2 Rislodeep dive tax and ebola
> Enterpnse sk and risk management planning preparedness
management systems » Risk deep dive »Health & salety
» Data secunty 2 Review of Group healits & safety
unternal audi terms
of relerence

COMPLIANCE AND GOVERNANCE

> aud » Compliance
whistleblowing  wath the Code
reports and » Compliance with
Codeof SEC and NYSE
Conduct requirements mduding
matters Sarbanes-Orley Act

) Review of the comnaliees
terms of teference

»Rewview of the
eflacuveness of the
committes and the group
eyl audit function
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Members

All of the audit committee members are independent
non-execunve directors and have financal and/or refated
business experience due to the senior positions they hold
or have held in other listed or publidy traded comparies
and/or simular public organisations Ken Hydon, current
chawrman of the commuittee, is the company’s designated
finanaal expert He s a Fellow of the Chartered fnsutute
of Management Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Cerufied Accountants and the Associauon of
Corporate Treasurers He also serves as audit commitiee
chairman for Reckitt Benckiser Group plc and Merlin
Entertamments plc, and unul 2012 for Tesco plc and Royal
Berkshire NHS Foundauon Trust Tim Score, who wall
assume the chairmanship of the comnuttee durmg 2015

1s an Assogiate Chartered Accountant He also serves as
audit committee chan man for The Briush Land Company
plc and unul 2014 for National Express Group plc

The quaificatrons and relevant experience of the other
comimittee members are detaled on p60-61 €

Audit committee meetngs during the year 2014

During the year, the matters considered by the
comnuttee ncluded thase shown on the table opposite

In February 2015, the commuttee also considered the 2044
Annual report and accounts, induding the preliminary
announcement, financral statements, strategic report
directors’ reportand corporate governance comphance
statement

External audit

Based on management’s recommendauons, the
commitiee reviews the proposal on the appointment

of the external auditors The committee reviewed the
effecuveness and independence of the external auditors
during 2014 and remains satsfied that the auditors provide
effective ndependent challenge to management

The review was conducted by distbuting a questionnau e
to key audit stakeholders mduding mernbers of the audit
committee, the chiefl executive, chief finanaal officer, SYP
company secretanal, SVP internal audit and compliance,
SVP finance for each Geograpty and Line of Business and
heads of corporate funcuons Feedbadk overall was very
positive, ndicating an effecuve external audic piocess

The lead audit partner explained to the committee how
PwC were monitoring and reviewing each highlighted area
and confirmed that they would consider how to adapt
their approach i ight of speafic comments receved

in addition, 1n accor dance with our external auditor policy
Group internal audit performs an annual assessment of
audtt fees, services and independence which forms the
basts for a recommendauon by the committee to the
board in respect of the appontment and compensation
of our external auditor Learn more about Auditors’
ndependence on pl07 @

The committee will continue to review the perfor mance
of the external auditors on an annual basis and will
consider their independence and objectivity, talung
account of all appropmiate guidelines There areno
contractual obligations restricung the commuttee’s choice
of external audrtors Inany event the external auditors
are required to rotate the audit partner responsible for
the Group auditevery five years The currentlead audit
partner rotated onto the Group's audit in 2013

Pearson's last audit tender was in respect of the 1996 year
end resulng in the appointment of Price Waterhouse as
audnors We reported last year that a tender process
would commence no later than 2017 to ensure auditors
have been appointed in ume for the 2018 year end audit,
following the end of the current lead par ther’s term, i ine
with the FRC's suggested transitonal arrangements on
audittendenng Developments atan EU level regarding
mandatory auditrotauon for isted companies have
changed the UK fandscape on audit tendering and rotation
and, as a resuit, Pearson would be required to change
auditors no later than the next audit appointment after

17 june 2023 The audit committee will continue te menttor
developments in this area and to consider the uming of the
next tender so as to achieve the most efficient and effective
outcome and expects to have conduded onits planned
approach within the nextyear Once the next audit tender
occurs, the Group will adopt a policy of putuing the audit
contract out to tender atleast every ten years

Audit committee tratning

The committee recewes regular techmical updates as
well as speafic or personal t-aning as appropnate in
September 2014, as part of a deep dive into anti-bribery
and corruption (ABC) risk, the committee held a
session with legat adviser s to better understand global
ABC developments

Committee members also meet with local management
on an ongoing basis in order to gain a better
understanding of how Group policies are embedded

in operatons
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Accountability continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Significant issues

AREA OF FOCUS 3SUE

ACTION TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

OUTCOME

Mew
organsation
structure
andIFRS 8

[ oflowang the inti oduruon of the
new management structure and
operating model, the Group has
changed its externally reported
segments in 2014 in accordance
with the guidance ini IFRS 8
‘Operaung Segments As part
of the exercise Lo denbfy new
segments and restate financial
1eports, underly:ng cash
generating units (CGUs) were
also defined

the conwmittee reviewed restated financias and
discussed the conclusion that the Group's primat y
segments were now made up of the bustnesses within
the three regions - North America Core and Growth
The committee confirmed that 1 eporting for the new
segments was consistent with board reporting for
internal putposes The committee also discussed the
definion of CGUs and the allocauon of geadwill to
these CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing

Segments and
CGUs redefined

Impairment
reviews

The Group car ries significant
gaodwill ntangible asset balances
There is judgement exercised int
the idenufication of CGUs and the
p ocess of allacanng goodwill o
CGls and aggr egate CGUs and in
the assumprions underlymg the
inpairment review

i he committee considered the results of the Group's
annual goodwill Impairment review in the iight of new
and aggregate CGUs The key assumptions are
considered to be the cash flows derived from strategic
and opet atmg plans long tel m growth rates and the
weighted average costof capital The comnittee
consides ed the sensitvibies to changes in assumpuons
and the related disclosures required by 1AS 36
‘Impairment of Assets' in particuldr the commitiee
reviewed the analysis and disclosun e refating to the

Growth CGUs where valuaions indicated an napairinent

n the India business and sensitivity T assumplions was
also reviewed in relation to other businesses

Annual

impal ment
review

finalsed wath
confirmaticn of
an fmpanrment
n lndia and
sufficient
headroonym ali
other CGUs

Revenue
recogniton

Pearson has a number of revenue
sireams where revenue
FECOZNIION Pt actices are complex
and management assumptions
and esumates as e necessary

The comrmittee regularly reviews revenue recogmtion
practice and the underlying assumplions and estmates
In addinon, the commitiee has wistbehty of tnternal auduit
findings relaung to revenue recogmition controls and
processes and routinely monitors the views of external
auditor s on revenue recogniuonissues Durnng the yea:

the committee reviewed revenue recogution i respect
of services provided to umversities and higher educauon

institutions to faciitate online courses and fooked at
significant new schoot tesung and teacher certificatron
contracts The commuttee also discussed the impact of

the new revenue recognition standard, [FRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers and noted that although

the standard would not be adopted by Pearson unul
2017 the commutiee would need to understand the
imphcations of the change wefl before that date

Assumptions
underiying
revenue
recogniton were
reviewed and
challenged

Tax

Thei e are a number ol 1ssues

n different cauntries where
management judgements and
dssumpLons are made as to the
€Ol rect tax treatrnent

The commitiee considered the Group s apptoach to tax

provsioning The Group operates i alarge number of
countnes and, accordingly, ts earnings are subjecr to
tax in many junsdictons The judgement i refaton to
tax provisioning 1s a combination of the committee’s
assessment of the specfic open tax issues and also a
review of the time penods in which the Group's tax
affarrs are open to enguiry by local tax mspectors in
junsdictions whes e the Gioup has a larger taxable
presence The committee addressed this matier
through the presentation of a management report

on the Group's tax affars by the head of group tax
and through a presentation of the external auditor's
assessinent of the Group's tax provisiomng

The commuttee
was satsfied
with the Group's
approach totax
provisioning
taking account
of the views of
management dnd
the assessment
of the external
auditors




Staruficant issues conunued
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AREAOF FOCUS ISSUE ACTION TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE OUTCOME
GrupoMultt  Pearson acquired Grupo Muit The committae momtored prograss on the acquisiton Acquisiion
acquisition wn February 2014 for £437m accounting and far value adjustments proposed with accounting
Management assunmptions and particular emphasis on tax and fegal provisions and on reviewed and
esumates were nNecessary 1n the external valuaton of intangible assets significant
establishing fair values for the judgements
assets and habiliwes acquired explained
Disposal Pear son disposed of its H00% The comnyttee reviewed the disposal accounting and Accounting
accounting  mterestin Mergermarket, itsjoint  discfosure and considered the matn judgements jefating  treatments
venture interest in Safart Books 0 tax treatments, pension accountng in relanon to and valuations
confirmed

Online, its 5% investmentinNook  Pengumn and conungent considerauon relating ta Safan
The commuttee also discussed the valuation of the Nook

Med: investment at various meetings during the year

Media and made adjustments to
the disposal of Penguin recorded

w2013 prior to its eventual disposal in Oecember 2014

Significant 1ssues

Duringthe year the cornmittee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external audit as it
proceeded

At the July 2014 audit commuttee meeting, the comnuttee
discussed and approved the auditors Group audit plan
and reviewed the key 11sks of misstatement of the
Group's financial statements, which were updated at

the December 2014 committee meetng

The table opposite sets cut the sigruficant issues
considered by the audit commuttee together with details
of how these items have been addressed The committee
discussed these issues with the auditors at the ume of
their review of the half year interim financial statements in
July 2014 and agatn at the condlusion of ther audit of the
financal statements for the full year in February 2015

All the significant 1ssues were areas of focus for the
audnors Learnmore in the tndependent auditors' report
onpll4-121 Q@

In December 2014, the commuttee discussed with the
auditors the status of their work, focusimg in particular
oninternal contt ofs and Sarbanes-Oxley testing and
covering the sigrificant issues outhned above

Asg the audiors concluded their audtt, they explaned to
the commmtiee

> The worl they had conducted over revenue, working
alongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

s The work they had done to understand the Group's tax
strategy and identfy business and legislauve risks, to
evaluate key underlying assurmptions and assess the
1 ecoverability of deferred tax assets

» Ther evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Their focus on segments, CGUs and goodwill imparment
and the impact of the Group's transformauon on those

» The results of their controls testng to date for Sarbanes-
Oxdey Act section 404 reporting purposes and in support
of their financial staterments audut

» The review of the company s "going concern’ reports
The auditors also reporied to the committee the
misstatements that they had found in the course of thewr
worle, which were insignificant, and the comnittee
confirmed that there were no material items remaining
unadjusted m these financeal staterents
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Accountability continued

RISK GOVERNANCE AND CONTROL

Internal control and risk management

Control environment

The directors confirm they have conducted a review

of the effecaveness of the Group's systems of risk
managemeny and internat controls, including strategrc,
financal, operational and comphance controls and risk
management systems, in accordance with the Code and
Turnbull puidance These systems have been operating
throughout the year and to the date of this report

In September 2014, the Financal Reporung Councll
pubhshed updated Guidance on Risk Management.
internal Contro! and Related Financral and Business
Reporung, which taikes effect for our 2015 yearend
reporting The changes were discussed by executive
management and the audit committee and a plan has been
developed 1o set a dlear path to comphance with the new
requirements, including ongoing robust assessment of risk
and preparauon of a viability statement

An enterprise risk managernent (ERM) framework is tn
place to identify, evaluate and manage risks, imduding key
financial reporung risks Busimness areas undertake sem
annual risk reviews to identfy new ar potentially under-
managed risks Throughout the year, nsk discussions are
facihtated by the nisk assurance team with Group and
business area management to identify the key nisks the
company faces m achieving its objectves, to assess the
probability and impact of those risks and to docurment the
acuions being taken to manage those nisies The Pearson
Executive reviews the output of these sessions, focusing
on the key risks facng the business Management has the
responstbility to consider and execute appropriate action
to mitigate these nsks whenever possible The resuits of
these reviews are reported to the audit committee and
the board in detail

During 2014 the semi-annual reporting of top risks

was reviewed by execunve management as well as the
board and audit committee During the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of specific selected
principal nsks, through a series of sk ‘'deep dives” Thisis
covered in more detall u1 the separate report on the audtt
cornmittee The key elements and procedures that have
been established to provide effectve nislkc managament
and internal control systems are described below
During 2014, we aligned these procedures to the new
oI'ganisation structure

Learn more about our Prinapal nsks and nmuugating
factorsonp34 @

The board of directars has overall responsibility for
Pearson’s systerm of intet nal control, wiich s designed
to manage, and where possible mitigate, the nisks facing
the Group, safeguard assets and provide reasonable,
but not absclute, assurance against materal financial
misstatement or loss

Responsibiity for momtoring financial management and
reporting and risk managerment and internal control
systems has been delegated to the audit commuttee

by the board At each meeung, the audit committee
considers reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditors, with the am of reviewing
the effectveniess of the internal financial and operating
control environment of the Group

The idenuficavon and mitgation of significant business
risls 15 the responsibility of Group semior management
and the management team for each business area -
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabling functions Each bustness ai eq, ncluding
the corporate centre, mantans internal controls and
procedures appropriate to s struct €, business
environment and risk assessment whilst complying
with Group pohicies, standards and gudelines

Financial management and reporting

There s a comprehensive strategic planning, budgetng
and forecasng system with an annual operating ptan
approved by the board of directors Monthly financal
information, including trading results, balance sheets, cash
flow statements, capital expenditures and indebtedness,
is reported aganst the corresponding figures for the plan
and prior years, with corrective acuon outlined by the
appropriate senior executive Group senior management
meet perodhcally with business area management to
review they business and financial performance agamnst
plan and forecast Major risks relevant to each business
area as well as performance aganst the stated financial
and strategic objectives are reviewed in these meetings

We have an ongong process ta momtor the risks and
effectiveness of controls in relauon to the financiat
reporung and consolidation process mncuding the related
nformation systems This includes up-to-date Group
financial policies, formal requirements for finance




functions, Group consolidation reviews and analysis of
matertal vanances, Group finance techmcal reviews,
including the use of technical spectalists, and review and
sign-off by senior finanice managers These processes are
subject to reviews based on Group internal audit’s risk-
based audit programme The Group finance function also
monitors and assesses these processes, through a finance
complance function

These controls nclude those over external financial
reporung which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirernents of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which is refevant to our US hsting
Onekey control n thus area s the disclosure commuttee,
which submits reports to the audit commattee This
committee 1s chaired by the SVP internal audit and
complance, and mernbers nclude the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SYP nvestor relations, SVP
company secretaral as well as senior members of
financial management The primary responsibiity of
this committee 1s to review Peat son’s public reporung
and disclosur es to ensure that information provided to
shareholders is complete, accurate and compliant with
afl applicabte fegislation and lisung regulanons

The effecuveness of key finanoal controls ts subject
to management review and self-cerofication and
independent evaluauon by Group internal audit

Group mternal audit

The Group internal audit funcaon is responsible for
providing independent assurance to management and
the audit commuttee on the design and effectiveness

of internal controls to mitigate strategic, financial,
operational and compiiance risks The risk-based annual
internal audst plan 15 approved by the audit committee
Management action plans to improve mternal controls
and to mitigate risks, or both, are agreed with each
business area after each audit Formal foflow-up
procedures allow Group internal audit to mornitor
business areas’ progress mumplernenang its
recommendatons and to resolve any controt deficencres
Groupinternal audit has a formal collaboration process
in place with the external auditors to ensure efficent
coverage of mternal controls Regular reports onthe
work of Group nternal audit are provided to executive
management and, via the audst committee, to the board

Section 4 Grrrtuncy 77

The SVYP internal audit and compliance oversees
comphiance with our Code of Conduct and works with
servor legal and human resources per sonnel to nvestigate
any reported incidents including ethical, cot ruption and
fraud allegations The audit committee 1s provided with
an update of all significant matters received through

our whistle-blowing reporting system, together with

an annual review of the eflecuveness of thus system

The Pearson ant-bribery and corruption programme
provides the framework to suppert cur compliance with
varous anti-bribery and corruption regulations such as
the UK Bribery Act 2610 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within pohicies
approved by the board and its procedures are reviewed
regular ly by the audit commuttee Major transactions

are authorsed outside the department at the requisite
tevel, and there 1s an appropriate segregation of duties
Frequent reports are made to the chief financial officer
and regutar repo ts are prepared for the audit commitiee
and the board

Insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this 1s available on a cost-effective basis Pearson’s
msurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance Company Limited,
15 used to leverage the risk 1 erention capability of the
Group and to achieve a balance between retaining
insurance risk and transferming it 1o externat msu ers

$53INISNE 4NQ !

IONVIHEO4¥3d N0 i

LOVAWI V1305 ¥n0 i

=
z
=
Z
a
»
=
(721
puity
>
-
m
pcd

m

4

—

w



78 Pearson ple Annwabi gpes tandaconar o 243

Engagement

REPUTATIOMN & RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Chawrman
Vivienne Cox

IMAGE REMOVED

Meimbers Vivienne Cox, Linda Lormer, Harish Manwan

As Pearson takes a more active role
in education worldwide, we have a
responsibility to our learners and
to our shareholders to grasp new
opportunities which have a positive
impact on soclety. We are working
to buld our brand and to sharpen
our awareness and management
of anything that risks damaging it.

Vivienne Cox Chan man of 1eputation &
responsibdity comnustee

COMMITTEE RESPOMNSIBILITIES:

I Reputation Pearson s 1 eputation among major
stakeholders, including governments, iInvestors.
employees, customenrs, learners and the
education community

2. Straregy Communicabons strategies, pohiaes and
plans related to reputational issues

3. Sowal Socal impact inatives

4 Brand Brand and culture development

5 Ethics Ethical business standards

& Risl Oversight of reputational nisk

Reputation & responsibihity commuttee role

The reputation & responstbility commttee became a

for mal comnittee of the board in 2014 Ths reflects the
board and Pearson executive’s growirng awareness and
ambrtion around Pearson's corporate reputauon, and our
beliefin the importance of fulfilling our obligations to the
communities i which we work, and maximising Pearson's
positive unpact on socety

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference
which clearty set out its authority and duties
These can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/gover nance &

The comnuttee’s responstbilities are shown i more
detal below

For reputation & responsibtiity committee meetng
attendance see overview table on p66 @

BOARD VISIT TO WASHINGTON, DC

In June 2014, the board visited
Washington, DC for a three-day
meeting to understand the forces
behind changes in the education
fandscape across the US and the
implications for Pearson’s brand
and reputation in our largest, most
successful market. Specifically, the
presentations and discusstons
focused on four key areas, outlined
opposite..




Key acuvities in 2014

Sectuon £ty vrhance 79

Commuttee aims for 2015

(n the second year of Pearson’s transformauon, the
commitiee acted to scrutuse and challenge the long-term
strategy and approach th oughout 2014, meeting three
umes and recerving presentatons from business leaders
across a number of key areas

In parucutar the committee reviewed and provided
nputon

» Our long-term wision for corporate transparency and
1eportng. tn particular adopting oversight of our poliucal
contnbuttons policy and spending

» The wind- down of the Pearson Chartable Foundation
and our1evised approach to socil impact activity

» The rationale and future sv ategy for the Pearson
Afordable Learning Fund

» The review of the Pearson master brand and employee
values and our approach to tracking the equity of the
Pearson brand globafly

[ Howto increase producuvity and demonstrate return
on investment n our schools and colleges, and how to

p1 epare more students to compete and succeedna
2lst century global economy

2 Increasing polarisation and polinaisanon of education
issues and how the explosion of soaal media has altered
the public poficy landscape and the rules of the game

3 Learning to engage with new players and new issues
that come from increasing private sector nvestmentin
education, particularly from venture capital and
philanthropy, and the shift into new digieal and services-led
businesses

4 Growing public scrutny of Pearson’s role in educauon,
in particular how our size and our success makes Pearson
a target for criucs and compeutors and how the public
demand for transparency and proof of positive social
impact s posing new challenges — and opportunities —
for companies

In 2015 the commuttee will continue to focus on how our
strategy for managing out teputauon and Imaximising our
conutbution to soaety 1s changing with the orgasusaton
The committee will adopt oversight of health & safery
management, policy and issues, reflecung tts increasingly
significant rele i safeguarding our reputation as we
become more active in the direct delivery of education
to students In parucular, the committee will review
progress on the integration of socal impact into Pearson’s
bustness fallowing the dosure of the Pearson Charftable
Foundation, the development of our reputaton
management approach in our newer markets, and our
progress towards our 2018 efficacy commutment

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Chairman of reputation &
responsibility commuttiee

The board had a deep dive session examining how
Pearson was bulding and executing a more robust,
proactive government refations and reputation
management capability

The board spent tme getang a first-hand look at
blended learning in action meeung educators, parents
and learners during a visit to College Park Academy, an
innovatve charter schoo run by our Connections team
in partnership with the University of Maryfand's School
of Education

There was an opportunity for the board to engage with
icey nattonal opimon teaders, policymaleers, reformers
and mnovators in educaton, induding Melody Barnes,
former domestic policy adviser 1o President Obama
and Ted Mitchel! US Under Secretary of Education

Finally, the board heard from the Pearson exectitive
ream about how our new aperaung model was helping
to acceferate our shuft to digital and services business
across K-12 and higher educanon, followed by an update
on the efficacy nnatuve
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Engagement continued

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with shareholders

Pear son has an extensive proglamme of communication
with all of its shareholders — large and small, mstitutionat
and private

Shareholder cutreach In 2014, we continued with our
shareholder outreach progr amme, seeing approximately
690 insutunional and private nvestors at more than 420
different insututions in Austraba, Brazil, Brunes, Canada,
Greater China, Conunental Europe, Japan, Singapore,
South Korea, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each year
and the chief executive and chief financial officer present
oui preliminary and interim results updates They also
attend regular meetings throughout the year with
mnvestors in the UK and around the world, tallored to
INvestor requirements, to discuss the per formance of
the company, the company's strategy, our restructuring
programme, structural changes m our markets and risks
and opporwnities for the future

Chairman meeungs The chairman meets regularly with
sigrficant shareholders to understand any ssues and
concerns they may have Tlus is i accordance wath both
the Code and the Ui Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet informally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
shareholder queries and requests as necessary The
chairman ensures that the board is kept informed of
principal investors’ and adwisers’ views on strategy,

and corporate governance

Consultavons Dunng the year we also consulted with our
major shareholder s and with shar eholder representative
hodies on our directors’ remuneration policy Read about
Remuneration on p82 €Y

Seminars We have an established programme of
educational seminars for our institutional shareholders
focusing on individual parts of Pearson These serminars
are avatlable to all shareholders via webcast on

WWW pearsort com ©

Private investors represent over 80% of the shareholders
on aur register and we make a concerted effort to engage
with them regularly Shareholders who cannot attend the
AGM are invited to email questions to the chairman in
advance at glenmoreno-agm@pearson com €

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided a wealth of
information on cur website about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-information htmé for further mformanon
or turn to page 212 of this report. We also encourage all
shareholders, who have not already done so, to register
their email addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to receive emaif alerts when
trading updates and other important announcements are
added to our website

See additional Shareholder information an p212@Q)

AGM

24 Apri 2015
8 MNorthumberfand Aveoue
London England WCZN 58Y

690

nstitutional and private
tnvestor megtings m 2014

Qurpragramme of cducanonal
seminal e s avalxble for
wisatunonal swestore vy
webrast onpeatsan comy §)

IMAGE REMOVED




Share dealing

Section 4 Curews bante j:1)

WIDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with all stakeholders

Due toits continued popularity we agam provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportumity to use
our registrar's low cost share dealing service, giving them
the chance to add to orteduce their stake in Pearson at
significantly reduced dealing rates, or to donate shares to
chary with ease This service proved very popular with
shareholders and consequently we intend 1o offer this
service again at a future date

WWe believe it s unportant that our employees have a
shared nterestin the direction and achievements of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number of
our employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Our AGM, on 24 Apnil 2015 15 an opportunuty for ali
shareholders to meet the board and to hear presentations
about Pearson’s businesses and results

We post all company announcements on our website,
wWww DEarson coi, as soon as they a e refeased, and
majot shareholder presentations are made accessible
via webcast or conference call Qurwebsite contamns a
dedicated nvestor relations secton with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
historical finanaal performance, share price dataand a
calendar of events ltalso includes informaucn about alf
of our businesses, inks to thew websites and details of
our corporate responstbiity policies and activiies

Learn more about our approach to corporate
responsibility in the Social impact section on p45-56 (]

Visit pearson com for

liw pgtcr redatione torriatien b prne date

Croanpmr v aor W ements and 1 dendar o everas

hyeaplder presers tions
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Report on directors remuneration

PART | — LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chairman

Dawnd Arcutus
IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Elizabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox,
ten Hydon josh Lewss and Glen Moreno

The committee believes that
Pearson's remuneration policy
supports the company’s strategy
to deliver sustained performance
and create long-term value in the
interests of all staleholders.

Davrd Arculus Chairman of remuneration committee

in this remuneration section
PART | LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN p82

PART 2 REMUNERATION POLICY P85

PART 3 REMUNERATION REPORT p8%

Terms of reference

The commuttee’s full charter and terms of reference
are avatlable on the Governance page of the

company’s website at www.pearson com/governance

Introduction

| am pleased to present our report on directors’
remuneration for 2014

The 2014 annual remuneration report will be put forward
for your considerauon and approval by adwisory vote at
the Annual General Meeting on 24 Aprd 2015

In accordance with the UK remuneration reporting
requirements, this report contains

> A summary of the directors’ remuneration policy on p85
The full policy was approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meetng on 25 Apri 2014 and can be
found on the Governance page of the company's website
at www pearson com/governance

s The annual remuneration report, on p89-106, describing
all aspects of remuneration practice wn 2014

We beleve this report dearly demonstrates the knk
between our remuneration policy and practice, and the
company's strategy and performance, as well as our
commutmenit £o shareholder engagement

Principles of remuneration policy

The purpose of the remuneration pohcy 1s to
support the company's strategy to deliver sustained
performance and create long-term value in the
interests of ali stakeholders This is summartsed in
the panel overleaf

We continue 1o keep our remuneraton policy under
review in hight of the prevaling social and economic
condittons and the impact of these on the company’s
objectives and strategy



REM ATION POLICY PRINCIPLES

| Sustainability and affordability We seek a careful and
sustainable balance between market competitiveness,
affordabiity and the long-term interests of the
company and its shareholders, whilst also being
mindful of pay condiuons elsewhere in the Group and
the wider social and economic context The process
for settng levels of executive remuneration s robust
and transparent

2 Payfor performance A high proportion of total
remuneration i dehvered as vanable pay thats
directly finked to both short and long-term
performance of the company, through annual
tncentves that reward the achrevement of annual
strategic poals and long-term incentives that drive
long-term earnings and share price growth
Performance conditions are sufficently stretching
and recognise indwidual contribution as well as the
company's financial results

3 Algnment We encourage executives to acguire
and hold Pearson shares in ine with shareholders’
mterests Long-termincentives reward the
achievement of sustanable, long-term value creation
that will be beneficial to shareholders We actively
seek feedback from shareholders on alf aspects of
executive remuneration

Remuneration supporung strategy

Pearson’s executive remuneration arrangements

were reviewed last year to align with and support the
company’s new strategy Executive remuneraton
decisions have been made after consultation with
shareholders, careful consideration of the needs of the
business, the transformation and reorganisation of the
compaty, changes i roles and 1 esponsibihies. the pay
mariets in which Pearson operates and pay elsewhere
in the organisation

Pear son's strategy tiforms our remmuneration philosophy
and policy and complements our more tradiuonal financial
goals, which are to achieve sustainable growth on three
key measures (earmings, cash, and return on invested
capital} and to delver reliable cash returns to our
investors through healthy and growing dividends

Secton £ Giracnang ¢ 83

We beheve those are, in concert, good mdicators that
we are bulding the long-term value of Pearson These
measures (or others that contribute to them) therefore
form the basis of our annual budgets and strategic pians
and the basis for annual and long-term incentives

What we did in 2014

We consulted with our major shareholders and with
shareholder representatives on the directors’
remuneration policy prior to its publicauon However,
followng publication a number of sharehoiders expressed
concern that the policy allowed the commuttee to
exercise discretion to approve remuneration elements
outside of the normal imits In ex¢eptional and unforeseen
arcumstances Inresponse to this, prior to the Annua
General Meeting, on % Aprd 2014 and following further
consultation, we ssued a RNS statement Lo clardy the
basis on which certain elements of the policy would

apply and, i parucular, to define and inut when and how
remuneration arrangements outside the normal terms

of the palicy might be apphed The policy was app: oved
at the Annual Gener al Meeting on 25 April 2014

Performance in 2014 at a glance

In 2014, despite continumng challenging market
condiions, we had a good compeutive performance
Overall, we saw

» Growth in sales of 2% and in adjusted operaung profit
of 5% at constant exchange rates

y Anincrease in our divtdend of 6% which was Pearson’s
23rd straight year of increasing our dividend above the
rate of inflaton

Over the past ten years we have increased our dividend
at a compound annual rate of 7%, returning £2 9bn
to shareholders

Remuneration in 2014 at a glance

Base salary 2%
Allowances and benefits MNo change i arrangements
from 2013

Retrrement benefits
Annual mcentves
Leng-termncentives

Pay out below target
Ml vesung

Mot This reflects ehanges to renuerason for the chvel rar cutive and the
chef finanual officer notfor the estof the Pearson evecurve
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART | —~LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Loolung back to some specific aspects of policy
and practice n 2014

» W estabiished maximum opportunites for each
element of remuneration

» We changed the weighting of the performance metrics
under the Pearson long-termincentive plan from one
third on each measure to half on earnings per share
growth, one-thn d {no change) on return on mvested
capitat and one-sixth on relative total shareholder return

» We introduced a mandatory restriction on participants
ability to dispose of the 75% of vested long-term incentive
shares that are released after three years {other than to
meet personal tax llability) for a further two year s and
for the remaining 25% of vestad shares to be subject to
contnuing employment over the same period

» We increased the mandatory shareholding guidelines to
300% of salary for the CEC and 200% of satary for other
executive directors

» These shareholding gurdetines wei e also extended to
other members of the Pearson execuove at 100%
of salary

» We dlanfied the arrangements for malus and
strengthened the dawback provisions

> The annual benus share martching plan was ceased
The last award under this plan will vest or not, subject
to performance, during 2016

» We undertoolk a regular periodic review of base salaries
for 2014 takung wnto account general economic and
market conditans the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remunerauon of executives
10y sirifar positions in comparable comparies, and
indwidual performance

> Annual incenuves paid to executives for 2014 were
below target, as they were in 2013, reflecting below
target performiance in a tough trading environment

» There was the second consecutive nit pay-out ontlong-
term incentives, reflecting below threshald perfermance
for 2014 aganst the company’s three-year targets for
earnings per share growth return on invested capital
and relatve total shareholder return

» To increase alignment with shareholder mterests and
the long-term growth of the company, we reviewed the
cperation of the long-term incentive plan for the senios
teadership population below the Pearson executive

for 2014 and beyond, awards for this group of employces
will be subject 1o performance based on an earfings
per share growth target

What we've planned for 2015
{ oolung forward, for 2015

1 We will continue to operate directors’ remuneration

in ine with the approved remuneration pohicy and
anticipate putting the policy to shareholder vote next
at the 2047 Annual General Meeung

» As approved i the 2013 directors’ remuneration
report, for performance-related long-term incentive
awards for 2015 and onwards the averaging peried for
the calculation of relative total shareholder return will
be moved to the period t unning up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be increased to
three months

» Oniong-term incentives, we have reduced the
proportion of the maximum award that vests for
threshold performance from 30% 1o 25% inline with
instituttonal investors’ preferences

» Based on our guidance for 2015, we will face a challenge
in delivering a pay-out under the long-term incentve
plan award for 2013

The committee welcomes the positive engagement with
sharehalders on our approach to this year's report on
directors’ remuneration and, specifically, on the issue of
the vote against our annual remuneration report at the
2013 Annual General Meetng

The commuttee 1s comntted to an ongong dialogue
with shareholders regarding executive remuneration
and would therefore welcome any cbservations or
guesuons that mdndual shareholders may wish to raise

{ would lie to thank my fellow members of the
committee and the people who have assisted us for
thewr contribution over the past year

Finafly, as | step down from the board and from channg
the commuttee, ool forward to handing over the rens
to my successor, Eizabeth Corley

Your s stncerely.

( IMAGE REMOVED

Dawvid Arcufus Charman of the remunerzuon committee
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PART 2 - SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company's policy on diectors’ remuneration was
approved by sharehoiders at the Annual General Meeung
on 25 Apiil 2014 We ssued an RINS statement of further
informaton on the remuneravon pohicy on @ Aprd 2014,
to darify the use of the committee’s discrevion over
certan elements of remuneration in exceptional
areumstances

To help sharehotders understand the context of
remuneration practice reported in the annual
remuneration report that follows, and specifically the
fimtts applied to directors’ remuneration, we have
mcluded below some key points and a summary of
perunent sections of the remuneration policy for
information only For further detail, please refer to the
full remuneration policy and the clarification statement
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWW pearson com/governance

Scape of policy
The policy applies to executive directors, the chan man

and non-executive directors

Reference s also made to the remuneraton policy for
other members of the Pearson executive {currenty

12 in number) who are not directors but who fall within
the comnttee’s remit

Duration of policy

The policy took effect on 25 April 2014 and 15 expected to
last unti the next binding vote on our remuneration policy
whuch at presentis planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avoided, where possible, including
general discreticns in the policy table However,
exceptional or genuinely unforeseen circumstances may
arrse in the future and in those circumstances it may be
in shareholders’ interests for Pea) son to put i place
remuneration arrangements that are outside the terms
of the policy if this happens, the committee will be
peritted to implement remuneranon arrangements that
it considers approprate in the circurnstances inthese
crcumstances, Pearson would consult in advance with
major shareholders before it does so and would explan
the exercise of this discretion n the following year's
directors’ remuneration report

As clartfied in the RNS statement of further informauon
on the remuneration policy on 9 Aprif 2014 s discreton
wauld only be used in the very narrow arcumstances

aruculated in the policy — thatis, iy exceptional or
genuinely unforeseen arcumstances The commuttee
considers that these circumstances would ar 1se highly
nfrequendy, if at all. in the hfeume of the policy The
committee would regard reliance on this discreton as a
matter of uumost sericusness and, in relation to our stated
obligation to consule In advance with major shareholders,
would not proceed unless there was dear consensus m
favour among those consulted Further, the committee
would ensure that the value of the remunerauon
arrangement put i place in reliance on this discretion
would fall within the normal int (as stated in the pohicy)
for the element of remuneraton to which the
arrangement relates

As partof the approved poiicy, the committee also has
diseretion to award base salary increases allowances and
benefits, and long-term incentive plan awards in excess of
the normal maximurn firmits to curt ent or new directors
As clardfied in the RNS statement, this discretion wall

only be exercised m excepuonal arcumstances other
than in the case ofincreases in the cost of benefits that
are cutside Pearson’s control and changes in benefit
prowiders Agan Pearson would consult with major
shareholders before exerasing any such discretion and
such exercise would be fimited by reference to the
safeguards described above, induding only proceeding
where there was dear consensus in favour among those
consulted In these arcumstances, the committee would
ensure that the maximum value of the remuneration
arrangement put i place n reliance on this discretion did
not exceed a margin of 25% over the normal maximum
fimut for the element In question (as stated in the policy)

Legacy arrangements

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson’s
remuneraton structures — inchuding obligations under
service contracts, thcentive plans and penston
arrangements - a number of pt e-esasung obligauons
remained in place at the tme that the new policy became
effective, nduding nbligations that are ‘grandfathered’ by
virtue of being i force at 27 June 2012 Pearson’s policy s
te honour all pre-existng obligations, commitments or
other enutdements that were entered mto before the
effecuive date of this policy

Summary of r emuneration policy table

For maore mformation on how remuneration s operated,
please refer to the full remuneration policy on the
Governance page of the company’s website at

www pearson com/governance
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 2 - SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Excepronal ime 25 clanfied ¢ RNS

Efement of
remunerauon  Purpose and kaleto scracegy  Performance condinons Marmal bt statement of 9 Aprt 2014
Base salary Helpstorecrut voward and  None although performance of borh B e salary nere 565 41 € Up to 25% o ver nomoal bt
relan the vompary and the indeecual are not of Jinardy imore than sprraht, indmdud stwarenswduding
Reflecrs compeutive market  taken nio atrount vihen determuning 10% pres annum WEerd] rORMOUONS 2na maseny
level role shits experience  anappropnatelevelafb ise silary ciangas o the busncss or therole
and indivtdual contribution inerease each year
Allowances Help to recrtand retain MNone Teaalvlue not ordinanly inexcess  Up to 25% over normat bt m
and benefis  Reflect the local compeutsve of 15% of base salary wany yea speofic ndvadual sysatons wicuding
market changes n mdradia creumstanees
' suchs as heaith stawus and changes
1 the Tole such as1elocat on
In excess of 25% over normal bma
w the case of mcreases m the cost
of beneits that are ovtside of
Pearson s contud md enanges
in bonefit prowsders
Retirement relp Lo recrus and retan Nome As set outinapproved None
benefits Recogrce long tern resnuperanon pokoy
comistment
Annual Motwite athisvertem ol The cammittee e the discretonto Ower sl by 200% of base salary None
Incenmves annual strategi goals select the performance medsures 2015 maximum opporiunity is
Focus onrkey targets and 1clat e weightmgs from 180% for the chref exerutive and
oanglimersirs year w year vo mor ¢ than {70% for other
Re ward mdwidual Funde-d by Pearton globat anmual erecunve thi praors and members
rony thution fmancial results and weighted of tht Pearse n erecutive
60% nn wlusted eacmings per share
20% vnsales
10% enoperatng cash flow
Pay outs tabe 1Mo account mdnasun!
perfarmante aganst personal olyectives
Long-term ely 1o recrnt, 1 eward ‘The commtiee wél determnethe Mawrmun fare vatue of 400% of Uip o 257 over normal bt in
incenuves angietdm performance measures weighungs bese safary exceptional arcumstances for

Drive: long term earmings
share price growthand
value cretion nd algn
interests of excounves
and shareholders

Encout spe lung tenm
sharehalding and
commTment to company
Ldenranagetnenty long
term reward and wealth
to corparate performance
m aflemble way

Total sharehatdereturn {1 SRY 1t The v elurn 1 sharehelders b om any growthe Pewson s share price and 1cinvested don
scured ralatve to the constituents of the FTSE Wortd Meaia Index aver athree year poenod Companes that drop
Sar the entit e period are conted Share price t everaged over shice months at the
Darasy vammethodolog ¢ The vesung of

Forlong ternt incentive wrirde TSR s e
o of thesrdex are normially excluded 16 only compames nthe ndex
staft and end of the performance period Dwadends we treated 35 teinvested an the ox dvidend date wine with the

and ta1 gets governing an award of
resoriceed Lhares priod 1o prant to
ansure contuvnng ﬂllgﬂ“\ﬂ n1 with
strategy and 1 e nsure the targets
are sufficently stretching

Aw wd. vest subyert 10 e foliovwng
performance condmons one half oo
carnings per share growth one thid
oa teturi omnvested capaat (ROIC)

one-suah on refatve total shareholder

return (TSR}

Perfornuance wsted over threa yeu s

Ouhen than n excepuonal
CHTUMSIANCES ON FCruminent

it the cotnpany s hormal policy
not 1o awand resincted shares 10
exetupve dunciors and other
members of the Mo srson executive
without performance condinons

exanmple forretenton purplses

of to reflect p wuedar business
ruanons The dsorenon

award restncted thares without
perinmance LondiInons to executive
direLiors witnot be used other

than wiien LIS AnRIodnate 1o
compensate o new dreCtor Oha

It for ke’ Gz for i eonves
foregene at aprevious employer

dends over the performance perod

charps based on relative TR 15 wh,ect 1o the commuttee sausfying tsel thai the recondid T3R5 agemang Llecuan of the underfung finantl perfontnce
of the busmess

T aturn onmvested Gt {ROIC) 13 sdiusted opzrasng profitless Lash tax expressed as aper centage of gross rwested capual i Toperating assets plys

gross gordwill)

Adyustes earnengs per share (EPSY v, colculared by dviding the rdjsted caryngs atsrhurable o equity sharehciders ot the Lompany by the weighiud

w ergr number of nrdinary shares inissue duning the year exdludig ary preinary shares purchased by the campany and hetd in trust fser note B of the fnanual

statements for 2 detaled descuiptis of adjusted et ps per dare) EPS prowshis ealculated uong thie por 140 pomt metted Fhis methed compares
the acjusted FPS inthe company™ accountsfon e financial yeac ende piror Lo the pant date wah the adusted TPSfor the finanoal yem ending tiwee years

tazer and calculates the implict compaund annual growth ate over the period




MNon-executive directors and chatrman
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Pay and performance scenarto analysis

MNon-executive director remuneragon has been
designed 1o attract and retamn high cahibre indviduals,
with appropriate expenence or ndustry relevant skills,
by offering market competitive fee levels

The structure of non-executive directors’ fees wath effect
from | May 201415 as follows

fee

Duector
Non-executive director £70,000
Chan manship of audit committee £27,500
Chairmanship of remuneration committee £22,000
Chairmanship of reputation &

responsibility commuttee £10,000
Memberstup of audit committee £15,0600
Membership of remuneratton committee £10,000
Membershp of reputavion &

responsibility commuttee £5.000
Senior independent director £22,000

The toral fees payable to the non-executive directors are
subyect to the himit set outin the arucles of assocation

of the company (currenty £750,000) and are increased
by ordinary rescluton fram time to ame

The charrman’s fees remain unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For more information on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration pohcy
on the Governance page of the company's website at
WwWw pearson com/governance

The remuner auon policy approved by shareholdersin
2014 required a scenaro char tn the format set out
below for 2014 remuneranon Although notrequrred,
the company has updated the scenario chat ts below so
as to apply to 2015 remuneration

Consistent with its policy, the committee places
considerable emphasts on the perfor mance-hinked
elerments, 1 e annual and long-term incentives

The chart below shows what each director could expect
to recewve in 2015 under different performance scenanios,
based on the following defimuons of perfarmarnce

Pet forminee scenarie Elements of renuner aton and assumptions

2015 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and rettrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2014, maximum ndvidual
annualincentve as per policy
maximum value of 2014 long-term
incentive award

2015 base safary, allowances,
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2014, target indnadual annuat
incentive as per pohcy, target value
of 2014 tong-term ncentive award
{Towers Watson's mdependent
assessment of the expected value
of the awatd, 1 e the netpresent
value talung nto account all

the conditians)

2015 base salary, aflowances
benefits, and reurement benefits
at the same percentage of base
salary as i 2004, no annual or
long-term incenuves

Maximum

Target

Minimum

Note The valuc of long 1ermmcentives dows not wke into acLount
dividend awzi ds 1that are payable on theréease of vestricted sitares
1T Any cenges i share pace

On tius basis, the refative weighting of fixed and
performance refated remuneration and the absolute
size of the remuneraton packages for the chief executive
and the chief financral officer (as represented by the
currentincumbent) are as follows on the next page
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 2 - SUMMARY OF REMUMNERATION POLICY

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-inked r emuneraton on an annual basis,
consistent with our overall policy

Recruitment

The committee expects any iiew executive directors
to be engaged on the same terms and to be awarded
variable remuneration within the same nor mal inuts
and subject 1o the same condiuons as for the current
executive directors outined in the policy As clanfied
in the RNS statement of further information on the
remuneration policy on 9 Aprit 2044, this apples other
than i the arcumstances set out below whereitis
approprate ta take account of the termis of the new
directors’ exsung employment and/or ther personal
cHcumstances

The committee recognises that 1t cannot atways
predict accurately the circumstances in which any

new directors may be recruited The cammittee may
determine that itisin the interests of the company

and shareholders to secure the services of a

particular indwidual which may require the committee
to take account of the terms of that individual s existing
employment and/or thetr personal circumstances
Examples of circumstances in which the committee
expects it might need to do this are outlined i full n the
remuneration policy on the Governance page of the
company's website at www pearson com/governance

In light of the various legacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the incumbent executive directors, in
determining the pension arrangements for any new
recrurt, the commuttee expects o offer a defined

contnbuton arrangement with company comtnbutions
not exceeding those set in our approved policy on

the Governance page of the company's website at

www pearson com/governance but would have regard
for the recruit s existing arrangements, the market norms
in the home country and the existing pension vehicles
availlable within the company

{n making any decision on any aspect of the remuneration
package for a new recruit, the committee would balance
shareholder expectatons, current best practice and the
requirernents of any new recruit and would strive not to
pay more than is necessary to achieve the recrutment
The comnuttee would give full details of the terms of

the package of any new recruit in the next annuai
remuneration report

Pearson expects any new chan man or non-executive
chrector to be engaged on terms that are consistent

with the general remuneraton principles outhined n the
relevant secuons of this policy However, in the case of
the chatrman the commttec may consider it appropnate
to offer a remunerauon package that differs fram chat of
the exisung incumbentf that 1s necessary to attract the
most capable candidate or to reflect the individual’s
expected duties

Further informauon on remuneration policy

Forfurther information on the following aspects of the
remuneration policy, please refer to the full remuneraton
policy and the RNS statement of further informauan

on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014 onthe
Governance page of the company’s website at

www pearson com/governance

» Selecuon of performance measures and target settng

» Legacy arrangements under the annual banus share
matching plan

» Remunerauon policy for other employees

y Service contracts and terminNation provisions

» Employment condiuons elsewhere in the company
» Executive directors” non-execuuve directorships

y Shareholder views
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PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual remuneration report

This report comprises of a number of sections

The remunerauon committee presents the annual
remwuneration 1 eport, which wili be put 1o shareholdet s
as an agvisory (non binding) vote at the Annual Generdf
Meeung to be held on 24 Aprit 2015

Remuneraton compliance

Thus report was compiled in accordance with Schedule 8
of thelarge and Medwme-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations
2013 and was approved by the board of directors on

9 March 2015

The committee believes that the company has comphed
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contained within the UK Corporate Gover nance Code

Where required under current regulations, the tables
marked *audit have been subject to audit

The remuneration commictee and its
actiues on page 90 to 93

Votmng outcome at 2014 Annual General
Meeting on page 94

Single figure of total remuneration and

prior year compariscn on page 95 *acdit
Remuneration pad to the chairman and
non-executive directors on page 96 *audit
Reurement benefits on page 96 *audit
Annual incentive on page 97 Faudit
{ ong-term incentives on page 98 Yaudit
Mavements in director s’ interests in share
awards on page 99 *audit
Movemnents i directors’ interests in share
options on page [00 *audit
Payments to former directors on page 100 *audit
Payments for loss of office on page 101 *audit
Interests of directors and value of

*audit

shareholdings on page 102

Executive directors’ non-executive
directorships on page 102

Historical performance and remuneration
on page 103

Comparatve information on page 104

Information on changes to remuneration
for 2015 on page 104 and 105

}
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration committee and its activities

Compositon

Charrman David Areudus tndependent non-executive

dwector

Members  Ehizabeth Corley

Vinenne Cox Independent non execulive
Ken Hydon directors
Josh Lew:s
Glen Moreno Chatrman of the board
internal  johntallon Chief executive
advisers Robin Ereestone  Chief financial officer
Melnda Wole Chief human resources
offwcer
Roberi Head VP executive rewald &
globai share plans
Stephen jones SVP company secretarial
External
advisets Tower s Watson

Glen Moreno 1s a member of the committee as permitted
under the UK Corporate Governance Code

Internal advisers provided materal assistance to the
commttee dunng the year They attended meetings of
the commuttee. although none of them was iwofved in
any deasions relaung to his or her own remuneraton

To ensure that the committee recewves ndependent
advice, Towers Watson supphes survey data and advises
on market trends, long-term incentives and other general
remuneration matters Towers Watson was selected
and appointed by the comimittee through a formal
tendering process Towers Watson also advised the
company on health and welfare benefits in the US and

provided consulung advice directly to certain Pearson
operaung companies Towers Watson 1s a member of
the Remuneraton Consultants Group, the body which
oversees the Code of Conductin refaton 1o execuuve

t emuneration consulng i the UK

During the year, Towers Watson was paid fees for advice
to the committee, which were charged on a time spent
basis, of £95, {00 Aspart of its annual review of its
performance and effectiveness, the commuttee temams
satisfied that Towers Watson's advice was objecuve and
independent and that Towers Watson's provision of other
services in no way compromises its independence

Committee performance

Annually, the committee reviews its own performance,
constitunon, and charter and terms of reference to
ensure it s operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes 1t considet s necessary to
the board for approval

The committee partcpated in a survey Lo review s
performance and effectiveness in july 2014, lookingat
areas such as the clarty of roles and responsibitives, the
compositon of the committee, the use of ume, the quality
and timeliness of meeting matertals, the opportunity for
discussion and debate, dialogue with management and
access to independent advice

The committee concluded that itis operating eflectively
and noted the challenges for the year ahead

The commuttee and its members were subject toa
formal third-party external evaluation by JCA Group
of the board, its commuttees and indmidual directors’
performance which was completed at the end of 2014
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

The remuner auon committee met four umes duning 2014, as described below

19 and 20 February

2014

MARKET

GOVERNANCE

PART 3— ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Meetings, activiies and decisions in 2014

IMPLCMENTATION

Noted Towers Watson s ovel view of the
current remuneration envirenment and
3013/2014 market data

PERFORMANCE

Noted management s overview of 2013
and 2014 performance and plans

{MPLEMENTATION

Reviewed and app oved the 2013 anoual
incentive pay out and 2014 remuneration
package {or John Fallon

Reviewed chanman's t emuneration which
termatned unchanged

Reviewed and approved 2013 annual
incentive plan pay outs

Rewviewed and approved provistoral 2011
long-term mncentive plan pay outs (pending
confirmaton of TSR performance)

Approved vesting of 2611 annual banus
share matching awards and release of shares

Noted the actvity of the standing

committee of the board in relation
to the operation of the company s
equity based reward programmes

Noted company s use of equity for
employes share plans

POLICY

Reviewed and approved 2013 direciors
1emunet alion report

Reviewad and approved increases
in base salaries for 2014 for the
Pearson execubve

Revsewed and approved 2014 Pearson
annual mcentve plan targets

Reviewed and approved 2014 ndwedual
annual mcentve oppurtunities for the
Pearson executive

Reviewed long termincentve awards
and assonated performance conditions
for the Pear son executive

Reviewed and noted total remuneraion
for members of the Pearson execuive
for 2013 and 2014

Confirmed nil pay out under 2011 long
terrm incentive plan

Rewviewed and approved 2014 long
term incentrve awards and associated
performance conditions for the

Peai son executive

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed and approved amendments
to plan rules for the worldwide save for
shares and lonp termincentive plans

POLICY

Considered appi oach to 2014 long term
incentive awards {or senior leaders and
manage: s below the Pearson executive

DISCLOSURE

Noted shareholder feedback on 2043
directors remunerabion reportand
RNS statement of further infformation
on the remuneration palicy

REMUNERATION IN ACTIOGN

Shareholding
by executives
supporting
performance
and strategy

Following consultation on our
remuneraton policy approved

by shareholdersn 2014, we
introduced two arrangements
designed to encourage shareholding
by executives and support
performance and strategy

Fu st, under thelong-tenm mcentuve
plan we introduced a mandatory
restiiction on parudpants’ ability to
dispose of the 75% of shares that vest
based on performance after three

years (other than to meet personat
tax liabhities) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ nghts to
the release of the remaining 25%

of the vested shares s subject to
conunued employment over the
same periad

Secondly, we increased our
mandatory shareholding puidelines
to 300% of salary for the CEQ and
200% of salary for other executive
directors These shareholding
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PERFORMANCE
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4 December
2014

MARKET

93

IMPLEMENTATION

MNoted management's overview of
2014 performance

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed the committee s charter and
rerms of reference

Reviewed the committee s performance

POLICY

MNoted update on 2014 long termncentve
awards for sensor leaders and manager s
below the Pearson exccutve

STAKEHOLDERS

Reviewed 2014 Annual Geperal
Meeting season shareholder voung
and engagement strategy

gutdelines have also been extended
to other members of the Pearson
executive at {00% of salary

Together, these arrangements clearly
demonstrate the commitiment to
sustained perfor mance and long-
term vatue creation and alignment
with shareholders’ nterests

Moted update to remuneration aspects
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and principles of remuneration of the
Investment Management Association

PERFORMANCE

Noted management's ovel view of
2014 performaince

Noted and reviewed the status of the
outstanding long term incentive awards
based an the current view of ikely Pearsen
financial performance

DHSCLOSURE

Noted ternplate and outline o7 2014
tepoi ton directors’ 1emuneraton and
conuder € d shareholder engagernem
straiegy

)

Noted remunerauon package for new
appointrment to the Pearson executive,
effective | january 20615

tNoted exit arrangemeants for a member
of the Fearson executive

Reviewed operation of the 2014 annual
incentive plan paruculaty with tegard to
the Pearson executve

Noted 2014 leng terminceniive awards
far senior feaders and managers below
Peat son executive

Considered matter ol former CEQ's
double taxation in the US and UK and
related 1ssues

“Shareholding by senior executives
demonstrates commitment to sustained
performance and long-term value creation
and alignment with shareholders’ interests.”

Davird Arculus Chanr man of the remuneranon comimifiee
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Voung outcome at 2014 Annual General Meetng

The following table summarises the details of votes castin respect of the resolutions on the report on directors’
remunet aton at the 2014 Annual General Meeting

Report Vines for Votes agunst Total vetss cast Vptes withhe fd (abstentions)
Remuneration polcy 517,308,446 22.905,879 540,214,325 6,004,239
95 76% of votes cast 4 24% of votes cast 65 96% of 1ssued
_ B i L share caEI_EaJ .
Annual remunerauon 349,696,505 181,521,643 531,218,148 15000416
report 65 83% of vates cast 34 [7% of votescast 64 86% of issued
share capital

The committee took this sigruficant vote agamst the 2013 annual remuneration report very seriously and considered the
voting resuit and shareholder engagement strategy at their Aprd, July and December 2014 meetmngs

The primary reason for the vote against was clear investors’ objection to the comimittee exercising its discretion to allow
a portion of Rona Fairhead's 2011 LTIP award to vest without reference to performance Tha committee acknowledges
that the approved remuneration policy provides a comprehensive remuneration framewark with clear limits and

as a resultissues of a simiar nature will not arise in the future

We consulted on this votng outcome and this disclosure in the 2014 annual remuneraton report with our major
sharehoiders and shareholder representative bodies. who wei e broadly sausfied with bath the process for engagement
and the explanation given

As 1n previous years and as required by law, details of the voting on all resolutions at the 2015 Annual General Mecting
will be announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the Annual General Meeung
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year corparison e
[l
z
Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directars were £4,206min 2014 These emoluments are =
included with total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the finanaal statements (page 141) «
Executive directors
The remuneration received by executive directors in respect of the financal years ending 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013 15 set out below
Executive director remuneration
ot TRl RobnFreestone L Tew o
£000< 2014 2013 2014 2013 2044 2013 %
-
Base salary 76! 750 553 545 1314 1,295 il
I
Allowances and benefits 83 43 15 t4 98 57 2
Travel 50 15 2 2 62 27 3
Z
Healthcare 2 3 2 2 4 5 o
Risk 31 25 ! - 32 25
Annual Incentives 692 463 365 34| 057 804
Percentage of maximum (%) 51% 34% 39% 37% - -
Percentage of target (%) 1% 62% 78% 74% - - S
Percentage of safary (%) 91% 62% 66% 63% - - 2
=
Long-term incentives 74 (41 63 18l 137 322 S
LTIP - - - - - - 2
ABSMP : - - - - - £
Dwidend equivalents 74 (4! 63 181 137 322 %
Retirement benefits 285 330 166 163 45{ 493 -
Defined contribution cost - - 23 22 23 22
Defined benefit accrual 87 [35 - - 87 i35
Allowances in lieu of bencfits 198 195 143 141 341 336
Total remuneration 1,895 1,727 m 1,244 m_ 2971
Singletoral figure of renneratnn bn zccordance wath the regulauons we show Annual nrentive For more detall ser Lable on page 97 Annuabncenuve. for
a single total fgure ofiemuneration whichincludes recrement benehts and the dirertors arefunded by Pearson global anpual financtal resulrs and pay outs
jong term incentives in 1ddtion to the other afements of rescuneration that Lk i accoum indmadual performance aganst personal obecoves
have betnhowe Inpresious repor T Lang term neeritves The single figure of remunet auon for 2014 wieludes 2t
Base salary In accordance with policy the commuttee considered areportfrom fong termincentve awards thot were subject 1o aperformance condinen
the civel executive and chief human resources afficer on general pay trends where the perdormante period ended, or was substanually (bu not fully)
10 the mareet and t e lovel of pay o €ases across the comp iy as awir le cempleted a5 3§ December 2014, and awards where the performnte
Tot 2014 the company had reser ated s stan ungprineistes that base condon has been saushied but where the refiease of shares is subjeci toa
cumpensation provides the appropr ate rate of termunerayon for the job furrher holding period The same methodology has been applied for the single
[1k4ng INLEG SCrOUNt resevan recrutment murhets business sertorsand {gure of rernunet Won lar 2013
reagiaphic regions and that total remuperanon shouid rewar d both shor . and tn 2014 the pesForrmnce condmans for tie 2082 L TIPand 2012 ABSUP were
long-termresults deliverning compe tibve rewards for ta et performanre, but not met so there s nodung b1 eport in the singte fglre of renunerstion (o
hegherrewards fo e"wp”?” il cetmpany petfonmance F'fr the LS and UK. the 2014 The execuive dinciors both held vested shares under te 2009 LTV o
hudgnrsmdﬂmpv;iued arthe end of Septerber 2013 (o adjusuments 7c base that were refeased on t Aprd 2014 at the crrd of the tens yearhaldng period E
pay fr—: 20i4was 3% dthough busmc‘ss units with an April review date aperated e these shares were pari of the sigle fipure of reimmeratianfor /012 ag z
toa 2% malary intrease pool Locshinfuuonrates and market condiions veere reported nrthe 2012 report ordirectis 1emunesanon However die 2
zab eninto accountin par uculs markets dradend equvalent shares that were awarded und released on | Apré 2014 -
Allowances aid benefirs Travethenefits compnse campany ¢ car slowsance Bave br enmcheded i te sngle figure ol rerwane avonfor 24 as befow §
ard private use of adriver Healfth beaefus comprr e healtheare, health e e e o e o e e et o~ rn e =
assessment.and gym subsioy Rusk benefits compnse addivonal e cover Date of x
andlong term disubtity msurance [n addivon wo the rove benefits and award Mumber Shareprice Z
Direcior and 1 eleate of shares Value on refease 5
Mowinces executive director, may also paricpate i £ornpany benefic n
or policy arrzngements that have g 1arable value johin Falon " Aprid 705¢ £73 644 s 044 0p
The increase i travei b nefits for fobin Fallors aturfirahble 1o the fuse fiull-year RoomFreostone — LAprld 6046 £edlI0  10440p

of reporung of s prvare use of adnver pascd on the benefit i fand chu ge

ur te- 201372014 tas year Feurement henefits Formuote deta | see tabie onpage %6
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Report on directors' remuneration continued

PART 3 ~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Chairman and aon-executive director remuneration
The remuneration paid to the chaiwrman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial yea s ending
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 1s as follows

014 2013
Director " Saaryt  Commues  Commiuce Tanable Samy/  Commuee Comvmuer Taxsble
£000s baskfer  clalrmanship mombershlp  SID  benefis  Torai  bawcfre  charmanship membershp  SID benefis  Toual
Glen Moreno 500 - - - ~ 500 500 - - - ~ 500
Dawd Arculus 68 21 i4 - 2 105 65 20 0 - i 96
Elizabeth Corley
(appointed
I May 2014) 47 - 4 - ] 52 - - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 68 7 22 21 6 124 65 - i5 20 5 105
Ken Hydon 68 27 8 - 8 i 65 25 5 - 5 100
josh Lews 68 - g8 - 9 85 65 - 3 - g 87
Linda Lorimer 68 - 7 - 8 93 33 -~ - - 3 36
Harish Manwani 68 - q - 7 79 1) - - - | 17
Total 955 55 77 20 41 L49 809 45 3 20 24 94l

Note Taable benefits refor to traved accemmodanion and subsite nce expenses ncurred while sttending board meetings dunng 2004 that were pu or revmbursesd
by the company whneh are destned by HMAC 10 be taxable mvihe UK The smounss in the table ab ave mclude the grossed up rost of UK tix to be paid by the
company on be hall of the directors Total remuneranon for 2013 s re stated w0 nclude these taxabie ¢ xpenses. The company bias made a voluntary arsdesure 1o
HMRC 10 cetthe the 1ax bl ity for raxable expanses m prior Lax years

Reurement benefits

Detalls of the directars’ pension enutlements and pension related benefits durng the year are as foltows

Value of Other punsion

Accrued  defined benefic costs to the Orhet
Normal  penstanat pensionaver  companyover  allgwancesm  Toriannual
retrement 1 Dec 14 the period the period  heu of pension value n 2014
Dhrecior Plans age {000 £000 £oog! €000 £000
Joha Pearson Group Penston Plan Accrual
Fallon rate of 1/30th of pensionable salar y
perannum Taxable and non-
pensionable cash supplement 62 807 867 - 1977 2844
Robin Money Purchase 2003 section of the
Freestone Pearson Group Pension Plan Taxable
and non-pensionable cash supplement 62 - - 226 1434 1660

Note 1 The acerued pengicn at 31 Decernter 2014 the deforred pension Lo wiich the member would be entitled on ceasing pensionible sery e on 3 December
2014 For johnFallona relater 1o the penuon payable from the UK plan Rob nFreestone dees nat 1cerue definea henefis

tNate 7 T eolumn compuse § the meredsen the dogctoss acoued pension over the pened (net ofinflanont moluphed by Hrand i om vAvch the dirpcton
ramnbutons #ro deducted

Note 3 TMus columa cnmprises contnbusions zo defmed contnbubion armngernents for UK e nelies
Note 4 Tens codumn rpi esents the c ish allowsnces pad w lieu of the previnus FURBS srrangementsforn fohn Eellonand Robnfrecaons
Noto 5 Total ammsal vafue s the sum of the previous tiree cowmng

Note 6 There are no adthtional benefits or specal an angements under the retrement plans for dit ectors who rete bielore tiwyr narmaly etiremet date
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Annual incentive pay-out in 2014 Z
o
-
For 2014 annual mcentves were funded by Pea son global annual financial results based on the perfor mance measures T
setout below fndividual pay-outs take into account performance against personal objectives Actual perfor mance against “
the financial targets for 2014 was as follows
Actual Pay-out
Thi eshaid Targer Maximum  performance in2014
Maasures Weighung for 2014 for 2014 for 2004 mWi4 (% ofrarget)
Group £PS (p) 60% 570 6812 795 667 86%
Group sales {£m) 20% 4,695 4995 5,295 4,883 63% o
[
Operating cash flow (£my} 20% 5655 678 6 917 6489 74% 3
J— _ St U m
Total 100% 79% g
e e e et e e e emem e e e e o — - . i o
N te | Peison s1eportad hinanual resu't for the relevant petiod were usedto measure performance §
MNote 2 The annu thincentive plan s designed 1o mcentivise 1nd rew u d under g o fornrance excluding the effect of foreign exchiange and porifoho changes %
{at quusitrns and dusposals) and rithe rfactor s that the commmitree Lonsiders relevant m the perforiance year Tarpets rhresho'ds and mexma e expressed at m
2014 acsu exchanpe rates {£1 §1 6488) The tai gets thresholds and ma«ima wes e onpinatly set auplan exchange rates (01 $1 60) and have been wjusted re sewnt
eroitaige 1 ates 1o Lompson agamst «c1unl patfor mance 1o nepare the ef ect of e ange 1ate movernonts
Meste 3 Nod .acuon has beenexerused ro adjust the resuibing und riyimg piy-outs
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Report on directars’ remuneration contnued

PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Long-term ncentves

The status of outstanding awards under the fong-term mncentve plan {ETIP) and the legacy annual bonus share matching
plan (ABSMP) and performance against the performance condivons as at 31 December 2014 are described n the

table below

For each exccutive director, details of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released, lapsed
or held during 2014 are summarised in the adjacent table

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incenuve plan and annual bonus share matching 1in 2004

Sharo
pnce %ol
Dateof ondate Vesung Performance Periormance Pay-our at Pay-oux a Actual  award
Plan avard ofawud date measures perind threshatd maxumum  performance  vosted Status
LHip | May 2014 | 102 Opd May 2017 Relatve TSR W4 30%atmedizn 100% at uppet - ~  Ourstanding
6 2017 guarule subject Lo
performarnce
ROIC 2016 30%for ROWC  H00% for ROIC
of 6 5% of 75%
LPS giowih 2016 compaed 30% (o1 EPS 100% for EPS
102013 powthol60% growthof120%
LTIP ¢ May20i3 | 183 Op! May 2006 Relatve TSR 2003 30% atmedian  100% atupper - Omsianding
102016 quarnle cubjctto
r
ROIC 2015 0%fo1 ROIC  100% for ROIC pemormance
of B 5% of 1D 5%
EPS growth 2015 compared 30% for EPS 100% for £PS
w22 growthof6 0% growthof [20%
LTIP 21%y 2012 ©16f Op2Mav20i5  Refatve TSR 2012 3%armedan (00 atupper th Mt Esurmated
o 0ls quartle  percenude te lapse
n 2015
ROIC 2014 % lor ROIC  100% {or ROIC 5 6% Nil Wil fapse
of 8 5% of 10 5% in 2015
EPS prowth 2014 compared 30% for EPS 100% for FPS 83% Nit Wiltlapse
1002011 prowthofé 0% growthol §2 0% n 2015
ABSMP 15Mayi2060p  15May Real compound 2002 50% of maichang 1002 of matching - - Oumtanding
013 016 annual £PS 102015 award for EPS award for EPS subject o
arowth growthof30%  growthof 5 0% performance
ABSMP '5May 11520p  {5May Real compound 2010 50% of marchemnyg {00% of matching 10 5% Nl Performance
2012 015 annual FPS 103014 awardforEPS  award for EPS rondmon
growth growthof 3 0% growthofl5 0% notmet
Will lapse

0 2045
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Movements in directors’ interests in share awards during 2014
DOradends

Number of awarded Mumber of

shares as ot and shares as at
Plan Date of award  Vesung dace I Jan 2004 Awarded  Refeased relcased Lipsed 31 Dec 2014 Stacus
Joh Fallon
LTe { May 2014 | May20(7 0 274000 - - 274000 Quistanding subject to performance
L THP I May 2093 | May 20i6 250000 - ~ 250000 Outstanding cubjertto performance
LTIP 2May 2012 2May20i5 100000 - - 100000 0 Expected tolpse n 2045
LTIP 3Mar2000 3 Mar 2043 13752 - - - . {3752 Vesied and beld untd 3 Mar 2015

{75% vested shares released n 2013)

LTIP 3Mar 2009 3 M 2012 13 887 — 29887 7054 - 0 Released § Aps 2014

{75% vested shares released in 2012)

ABSMP 15 May 2003 15 May 2016 6083 - - - - 6 Q83 Quistanding subject to pet formance

ABSMP 15May 2012 |53 May 2015 8917 ~- - - B 97 4] Willlapse in 2015
T .. fee w00 e 7ose e sews
Robin Freestone
L TP i May2014 | May 20i7 0 162000 - - 162000  Ourmstanding subject to performance
Lre { May 2003 [ tMayJ0f6 150000 - - 150000  Ouvistanding subjertto performance
LTiP IMay 2002 ZMay 2005 10C 000 - - 100000 0 Expecied tolapse in 2045
{TIP AMar 2010 2 May 2013 11460 - 11460 Vested and held untd 3 Mm 2045
{75% vested shares releasedin 2043)
LTiP 3Mar2009 3 Mar 2012 25617 - 5617 6046 - ] Released | Apr 2044
{75% vested shares released n 201 2)
ABSMP 15y 2012 15 May 2015 17833 - - - 17833 0 Will fapsewn 2015
Totat o 304910 +62000 25 617 6046 117833 323:60 _ T

Mete 5 For the LTIP awardimade on } May 2012 and dueto vess an 2 May 2015
we b gsumated the out-turn of the r davve TSR perfornance condivon
tased on performance as at ? Febreuzry 26 5 a1 il ifacweal relauve

hiote 2 Vested ineans whene awards are nedonger sulzecrto perfornniney ;::2:::::;:;::;::;:’:;;;: ;::';g : ; ofvesting wee wallsetin outin
tondinens Refeased means where sheres have been transfercedro
parutipanis Hdd mesn where mwards rave v ted but shares areheld
prending retease on the reley it annversaty ofthe sward date Qutstanding
means awards that have been granted but aro sull suvject 1o the schevement
of performance cona vons Dindends) efers .o divdend equivient shares that
tave been udded w thout per formance condinons 1o vested shares under the

[ TIP and rede ised mmediately on a v wd

MNore | For dliawirds Pewrsonsic purted financndresults for the relevam
period were used to tieasure performance nd no discrenon has
been enercsed

Nine 6 The unpte fipure of rerpuner inon for 200 indudes o hiwards thatwer e
wbyectto a performance condionwherethe performance period ended or
was substanuaby (bt pot fully} completed at 31 December 2014 and awards
where the performance condmon has been sausfied bur where the release of
shares ry subject 1o a further holdng peood The same muthodelogy bas been
applia dion ¢ wher perads and the smghe bpure for sad ericpornng pere dshas
Note 3 Wovaranons ro terms and condiions of plan aaterests were mde been esiared where necssary

dunng the yoar

Note {nrelivontuthie LTI award made ob | May 2064 pay outis 0% of
wapamumfor ananmant of ROIC of 7%

Mote / The value of sha e ncludod mthe sngle figure cliemme atrons the
sumber of hares mtnpbed by the share price an release

Muote B The valu, of the LT awards p 2004 for the executt directors s shavwn below bzsed on ashare e on the date of aw ard o { 102 Op

Value for

threshnold

Face valoe perfarprance

Vesting Pumbes Tace value {%-of 2014 (% of 2014

Ehrecior Drice of award date, of shares {£} sakry) salary)
Joba Fallen ! May 2011 I May20t7 174000 £3 0{34R0 397 193

t May 2014 1 May 2047 162 GO0 £ 785 240 3234 7%

Robn Freestone

i
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3~ ANRNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Movements In directors’ interests n share options duiing

2014

john Fallona

nd Robin F1 eestone also hold options under the woridwide save for shares plan as foltows

Number of shy e

uadet oprion Earhioar Yalue i 2014

Date of held as ar Opuon exerose Expiry single figure

Director grant 3| Dec 2014 price date date £000

John Fallon 7 May 2010 1,930 805 6p t Aug 15 { Feb t6 0

L 30Apr204 1109 Bli2p 1Augl7 Ifebls 0

Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 990 909 Cp | Aug 15 tFeb 6 0
30 Apr20i4 1,109 8i12p ! Aug 7 !fgb_lfi . o

Note | No share option awards were vestrd or were exeraicedin the year

Note 2 Mo vanations to terme and rongiuons of share opuoms we @ made durmg the yeas

Note 3 Acquisiion of shares under the wer idwale save for shares plinis not subjecttoa performance condiinn

Note 4 Afishare options thit became exer asable during a year are includediinthe < ingle figw e of totel sepunerananior that yer Thevaiue mcluded mthe single
fipure of totat enmnda ation 15 the mmbes of oplions malvplcd by the difference between the vihie on grant and the market vilug on the earkest everose date
No shire pprions werr (xeruisable during 2004 and so then e is nothing to include m the single figure of rotal semner arwn for 2004

Mote§ The market price on 3! Derember 2004 was 1,190 Dp per tharc and the range during the yeas was 998 Op o t 300p

Payments to former directors

As aiso reported in the annual remuneration report for

It is the commuttee’s ntention to disdose any payments
to past directors, ncluding the release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retained from the number of
shares aniginally awarded takes into account lapses due
to performance, releases prior to ceasmig to be a director
and pro-rating for service in the performance period
(where appled)

2012 long-term incentive awards

As set out m the annual remunerauon report for 2013,
Marjorie Scardino, Rora Fairhead, john Makmson and
Will Ethridge retained long-term incentive plan awards
made on 2 May 2012, all subject to performance As
disclosed elsewhere in this report, these awards are
expected to lapse in 2015

Wall Ethnidge

As set gut in the annual remuneration report for 2013
Wil Ethrdge stepped down from the board on

31 December 2013 He continued to be eligible for the
sarme base salary, annual incenuive and other benefits n
accordance with his service agreement wath the cormnpany
unaf he retired on 31 December 2014 No compensation
for loss of office or severance was pard on fus stepping
down from the board, oron his rem ement

2013 Will Ethivdge retamned 100,000 {two thy ds) of the
shares awarded on | May 2013 The committee also
approved an award of 116 00 performance related
shar es for Wil Ethndge for 2014 on the same terms as
the 2014 awards for members of the Pearson executive
I accordance with policy and after having carefully
considered all relevant factors, the commuttee further
determined in its absolute discretion that on fus
retrement from the company on 31 December 2014,
Will Ethndge would retam a pro-rata entidement of
one-third of this award (j e 38,666 shares) which would
vest or 11ot, subject to performance i 2017

Marjorie Scardino

Because of payroll processtng errors during the years
2007 to 2010, taxes deducted from Marjorte Scardino’s
comgpensation were incorrectly allocated by Pearson
among tax authoriies m the UK and the US This resulted
in her being subject to temporary double taxauon The
commuttee has concluded in prinaiple that Pearson should
resmbui se (on an after-tax basis) certain costs incurred
by Marjore Scardino in funding 2 proporuon of the
double-tax obligaton Detads of any reimbursement wil
be induded in a subsequent annual remuneration report

Non-executive directors

The company’s voluntary disdosure to HMRC regarding
the taxable reimbursemert of expenses for tax years
prior to 2014 includes non-executive directors who are
no longer employed by the company
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Payments for loss of office c
i1
As announced to the stock exchange on 24 October 2014 and 27 February 2015, Robin Freestone will be stepping down é
from the board on | August 2015 and leaving the company during 2015 There will be no payment farloss of office .
At the ime of writing, no further decisions have been made about whether and how the committee might exercse Its
discretion under Pearson's disc ettonary share plans in accordance with policy, the commuttee will have regard to all
relevant crcumnstances including distnguishing between different types of leaver, the circumstances at the ume the award
was angnally made, hss performance, and the crcumstances in which he left employment n the event that discrenion is
so exercised in Robin's favour, the details will be included tn 2 subsequent annual remuncration report _—
o
Directors' interests in shares and value of shareholdings 5
-
m
Directors’ interests §
The share interests of the conanuing directors and thetr connected persons are as follows 2
T T T T T T amberat | Numbarof | Tocal numberof T z
ordinary conditioral ordinary and g
shaies shares conditional shares Value Guidelme Guidehng
Direcior 2t 3 Dec 14 ac3l Dec 14 at 3 Dec |4 % tafar y} (" salary) met
Chatrman
Glen Moreno 200,000 - - - - -
Executive directors 2
john Falion 282,147 13,752 295899 549% 300% v g
Rebin Freestone 504,283 {460 515,743 } 317% 200% v 2
z
Non-executive directors z
>
Dawid Arculus {7,147 - - - - — a
Elizabeth Corley 468 - - - ~ -
Vivienne Cox 2,023 - - - - —
Ken Hydon {8,434 - - - - -
Josh Lewis 6 632 - - - - -
Linda Lormer }.581 - - - - -
Harish Manwans [,392 - - -~ - -

Note | Condinonal shares rmedns sharis wh.ch have vested but reman held subject to Lontinumg employmen for 4 pre-defined holding penod

Nrite 2 The current value of rhy execumve drecors holdings of ardinary and condmional shares 1 Lased un the midd'e marlet value of Pearson shares of { 1200
on 27 Fubruary 2008 agamst base salares m 2004 All execuuve directors comforiably L eoded th sharehatding guidehnes The shareholding gudelmes no not
apply to the charman and nen executive directets

Nate 3 Ordinaey shares include both ordingr y shares listed ofthe Lendon Srock Fxchange and American Deposnary Rece:pts (ADRs ksted onthe New Tork
Stock Evchange The fpures mclude both shares and ADRS cquercd by indrduats ivesting part ofthesr oan after T anmial bonus iy Pexrion shares undes the

antwa! bonus shave matchwog plin
MNoe 4 The registor 0f directors InEerests { #7ieh 1s OPPT LG speciion duning narmal offire hours) contane {ufl devals of direrrmis s eheidngs and opaoas to
subscrbefor dhares The marker pnce on 31 Decombe 2814 wa , § F90 Op pe rshare and the range gunng the year wis 998 Opto | 340 Op

st 5 There e no mve menes i ot dinary sha es betvacen | lanosey 2015 and « month pner 1o the sgn-off ol ths report

Nore & Ordmaty shares do natncfuc any shures vorred but hefd pending refease undim g roemicied shre plan
¥ p 5 P
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 ~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Interests of directors and value of shareholdings

IMAGE REMOVED

Shareholding guwdelines

Executive directors are expected to budd up a substantial
shareholding n the company in kne with the policy of
encouraging widespread employee ownership and to
align further the interests of executives and shareholders
With effect from 2014, target holding 1s 300% of salary
{or the chief executive and 200% of salary for the other
executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidefines include any
shares held unencumbered by the executive, their spouse
and/or dependent duldren plus any shares vested but
held pending release under a restricted share plan
Executive director s have five years from the date of
appomtment to reach the guideline

Wiith effect from 2014, these gurdelines have been
extended to mclude all members of the Pearson executive
at 100% of salary

The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the chairman
and non-executive directors However, a munimum of
25% of the basic non-executive directors’ fee s paid in
Pearson shares that the non-executive directors have
commtted to retain for the period of their directorstups

Dilution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market, treasury
shares or newly-issued shares to satisfy awai ds underthe
company’s various share plans

For restricted stock awards under the long-term incentve
plan and matching share awards under the annual bonus
share matching pfan, we would normally expectto use
exisung shares

There are himits on the amount of new issue equity we
canuse Inany roling ten-year pertod, no more than 10%
of Pearson equity will be ssued, or be capable of being
issued, under all Pearson's share plans, and no more than
5% of Pearson equity will be ssued, or be capable of being
issued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 31 December 2014, stock awards to be satisfied by
new-issuie equity granted in the last ten years under all
Pearson share plans amounted to | 7% of the company’s
1ssucd share capital No stoci awards granted in the last
ten years under executive or discretionary share plans
will be sausfied by new-issue equity

in addiwon, for exisung shares no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trust atany ume Aganst
this bimit, shares held in trust at 31 December 2014
amounted to 0 9% of the company's 1ssued share capital

The headroom avarfable for alf Pearson plans, executve or
discrenonary plans and shares held in wrustis as follows

Headi vom 2014 2043 2012

All Pearson plans B3% 84% 83%

Executive or discresonary plans  50% 50% 50%
41% 39% 38%

Shares held in trust

Executive directors' non-executive directorships

Executive directors served as non-executive directors
elsowhere but etther waved or did not recewve fees
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Historcal performance and remuneration

Total shareholde: return performance

We sef out below Pearson's total shareholder return
(TSR) performance relatve to the FTSE All-Share ndex
on an annual basis aver the six-year period 2008 to 2014
This comparison has been chosen because the FTSE
All-Share represents the broad market index within IMAGE REMOVED
which Pearson Shares are traded TSR s the measure

of the retun ns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming renvestment of dvidends {source DataStream)

In accordance with the reporung regulations, this section
also presents Pearson’s TSR performance alongside the
single figure of total remuneration for the CEQ over the
last six year s and a summary of the variable pay outcomes
relauve to the prevaling maximuim at the ume The table
below summarises the total remuneration for the CEQ
over the last five years, and the outcomes of annual and
fong-term incentive plans as a propor ton of maximum

2009 010 i w2 W3 1014

Financ'a yearanding

Total remuneraton — John Fallon

(single figure, 000s) - - - {727 1,895

Total remuneration — Manone Scardino
{(single figure, 000s) 6,370 B.466 8.340 5,330 - -

Annual incentive — incumbent
{% of maximum) 913% 92 1% 757% 242% 34 3% 50 5%

Long-term incentive — incumbent
(% of maximuem) 800% 97 5% 68 3% 367% Nl Nl

Antiudiincentve is the acrual 1nnual incentive received by the meumbent as o percentape of maxanum opporun iy

Long-termncennive ts the say eurof performance related restricted sharesunder the long term incentive plan where the year shuwn s the final year cithe
performance period for the purposes of calrulaung the single toral figure of emuner avon

Total remunertion - John Fallon John Fallor s total renwnt 1 aton upportumity ss lwer than that of the previous mcumbent Varzbile pay oues ueder the anneal
and tong-term nce ntve plans reflect perfurmance forthe relevant pesods
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Compat auve information

Information on changes to remuneration for 2015

The following infor mation 1s intended to prowde
additional context regarding the total remuneration for
executve directors

Relative percentage change i remuneration for CEQ
The followmg table sets out the change between 2013
and 2014 v three elements of remunet aton for the CEOQ,
in comparison to the average for all employees

While the committee considers the mcrease in base pay
for the CEO refauve to the broader employee populanon,
benefits are driven by local pracuices and eligibility 15
determined by level and individual aircumstances which
do not lend themselves to comparison

Aflowances
Base and Anniat
stary benefics  incenoves Total
CEQ | 5% 93% 49% 22%
All employees 1% 9% 4% 0%

Note | Thefigues for uf einployees reflect aver age salanes and average
pmproye e numbers e2ch year Annaaleenos mchude f plans induding
sales rennves

Note 2 The porease n aflowances and annot incemives for Juhn Falton s
autnbutable respoctivety 1o (akehe fn i full yeor of repornng of hispriviteune
of a driver biased on the henefit-m-kind charge for the 201372004 1 year
and (b) the yaar un year increase i s payout under the Pearsonsniug!
incentree plan

Relative mportance of pay spend

The committee considers directors’ remuneration in the
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement

of resources 1o different stakehciders

in partcular, we chose operating profit because this
15 a measure of our ability ro reinvest in the company
We indude dwidends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Yeu-en-yen chanpe

[4,4] 2004 2013 £m %
Operaung profit 722 736 -4 2%
Dwndends 397 372 25 7%

Total wagesand salaries 1,728 {83 -10B -6%

INote | Opararme profitis 1 set outn dhe finanoal starements

MNote 2 Wages and sl trtes mchude [ opunang operauons o ply andinciude
trectons 20§3ss revtated on the same bans Aves age evnplovee nuriers for
continuing operanom e 2014 weie 40 876 (2003 42«15 Furtherdetakae
seLoulnnoie b v thefinancal staten ems on page 141

Executive directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salaries for 2015, taking into account general econonuic
and market conditons, the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of executives
m similar positans in comparable companies and
indwidual performance

As a result of this review, the 2015 base salates for the
CEC and CFQ are as follows

Joha Rabin
£000s Falteon Freestone
Base salary at
31 December 2014 £765 £556

£153 £0
increase

2% 0%

Base salary at
[ April 2015

£7803 £556

Annual Incentive
The key design principles underlying the company’s
approach to annual incentives for 2015 are the same as

for 2044, namely

» Full alignment of annual incentives with the global
aducaunon strategy to remforce a ‘ane Pearson’ focus

» A clear, transparent, coherent consistent, orgamsation -
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework for
Lines of Business, Geographies and enabling funcuons

» The size of the overall annual incentive pay-out will be
inked to overali Pearson performance

For 2015, there will be no change to the overall Pearson
performance measures, namely adjusted earnings per
share (60% weighting), sales (20%) and cash flow (20%)

The Pearson financal targets will be set each year as part
of the narmal operatng plan process The CEO and CFO
wall recanwmiend the overall Pearson mcentve funding
metrics {including performance measures, targets and
wesghtings) 1o the committee for approval in the

normal way



There will be no change in indmvidual annual incenuve
oppartinities far the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual ncentive pay- outs a1 e determined accotding to a
combination of Pearson-wide performance and mdvidual
goals The sumof the CEQ's and the Pearson executives’
‘on-target’ annual iIncentive constitutes the incenuve pool
for this group which flexes up or down based on overall
Pear son performance {ndwidual performance 1s assessed
aganst goals set at the start of the year [ndividual pay-outs
up o mdrviduat maximum opporturities and within the
total pool are recommended by the CEQ (or by the
chatrman in the case of the CEO himself} for review and,
in the case of the execuuve directors, for approval by

the commitiee

The committee constders the performance targets for
2015 to be commeraially sensitive Detalls of pet formance
measures, weightings and targets will be disclosed n the
annual remuneration report for 2015 f and to the extent
that the commuttee deems them to be no longer
commercially sensitive

Long-term incentives

The committee wilt contnue to operate the long-term
mcenuve plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive in line with the
arrangements outhined in the 2013 reporton directors’
remuneration

» The weighting of the performance metrics will be haif
on earnings per share growth, one-third on return
on invested capital and one-sixth on relative total
shareholder return

» Performance will be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will be released at that point However
there 1s a mandatory restricuon on parucipants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares {other than
to meet personal tax habiives) for a further two years
Furthermore, paruapants’ nghts to the release of the 25%
of the vested shares are subject to contnued employment
over the same period

Section 4 Go ernerg 105

»For 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calculation of relatve total shareholder return wilf be
moved to the period running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging perod will be inci eased to
threa months

In addition, we will reduce the proportion of the
maximurm award that vests for threshold performance
on all measures from 30% to 25% m line vaith nsttutional
investors’ preferences

At the ume of wriung, the commuittee has yet to approve
the 2015 fong-term mcentve awards and the associated
performance targets for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive

We will set the level of individual awards consistent with
those seen in recent year s and within the policy maximum
taking into account

» The face value of ndvidual awards at the tme of grant,
assurming that performance targets are met in full

» Market pracuce for compat able companies and
market assessments of total remuneration from our
mdependent advisers

: Individual roles and responsibilities
» Company and indradual performance

We will set targets for the 2015 awards that are consistent
with the company's strategic objectives over the petiod
to 2017

Full detads of indwidual awards for the executve directors
and the performance targets for 2015 will be set out n the
annual remuneration report for 2015

1
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Appontment of CFO

As announced to the stock exchange on 27 February
2015, Coram Willlams wall jomn Pearson as CFO designate
on t july, and succeed Robin Freestone as CFO on

| August, when he will also replace Robin on the Pearson
board as an executve director Full details of the terms
of Coram's remuneration package wil be mcluded in the
arnual remuneration reportfor 2015

The package will be in accordance with, and withun the
lievuts of, our approved remuneraton policy and will
comprise mter alia a base salary of £5{5,000 per year,
an annual incentive opportunity of 85% of salary at rarget
{up to 170% of salary at maxtmum} with any pay-out

for 2015 being calculated pro-rata for his service,
rmiscellancous and family relocation allowances and
temporary accommodation assistance i accordance
with policy, mernbership of the Final Pay Section of the
Pearson Group Penston Plan with an accrual rate of
{/60th of pensionable salary, subject to the Plan earmings
cap (£145 800 per year for the 2014/2015 tax year), n
accordance with earlier commitments given to him
about the arrangements that would apply should he
rejoin Pearson in the UK having moved from Pearson to
Pengum US and subsequently Penguin Random House
and eligibility for long-term incentive awards on the terms
aormally applicable to executve directors and other
menrmbers of the Pearson executve Full detals of bus
award will be disclosed in the 2015 report on directors’
remuneraton There will be no compensation for
incenuves foregone at his previous employer

in accordance with policy the pertod of notice he
would be required to give to termnate his employment
waould be 6 months and that which he would be enutled
to recewve from the company would be 12 months

In arcumstances of termination of employment without
cause, he would be entrded to contractual pay-in-heu
of notce comprising {2 months’ base salary and annual
cost of providing penston and ather benefits (but
excluding annual incentve) Paymentin lleu may be
pard in msealments and subjact ta reducuan taking nto
account aliernative employment

Chairman and non-executive directors

The salary for the chairman and fees for the non-execitive
directors reman unchanged for 205 Full details will be
set out in the annual remuneration eport and mduded

in the single figure of rotal remunerauon for 2045

IMAGE REMOVED

Dawvid Arculus Director
9 March 2015



Addrtional disclosures
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Pages 57 10 112 ofthis document comprise the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2014

Othernfor mation that 1s 1 equired by the Companies Act
2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors” report,
and which s incorporated by reference, can be located
as follows

Summary disclosures mdex See more
Dwdendrecommendaton  pl2
Francial instruments and financial risk management  MNote 19
Important events since year end pl93
Futut e deveiopment of the business p06-09
Research and development activities p43
Employment of disabled persons p30
Employee involvement p48
G eenhov.:_sze_gas EMISSIONS p53

There ts no nformation to be disclosed in accordance
with Lisung Rule 98 4

Going concern

Hawing reviewed the Group's iquid resources and
borrowing facilines and the Group's 2015 and 2016 cash
flow forecasts, the directars believe that the Group has
adequate resources to contnue s a gong concern for at
least the next {2 months For this reasorn, the financial
statements have, as usual, been prepared on that basis
Information regarding the Group's borrow:ng habilities
and financral risk management can be found mn notes 18
and |9 on pages {64 1o {72

Share capital

Details of share issues are given innote 27 to the
accounts on page 186 The company has a single class of
shares which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 25p each
The ordinary shares are in registered form Asat

31 Decermber 2014, BI9.882,967 ordinat y shai es were in
issue Atthe AGM held on 25 Apni 2014 the company
was authorised, subject to certan conditons, to acquire
up to 81,903 7Bl ardinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be aslced to renew this authonity at the
AGM on 24 Apnl 2015

infor mation provided to the company pursuant to

the Financial Conduct Authonity s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules {DTR) 15 published on a Regutatory
Informarton Service and on the company's website

As at4 March 2015, being the latest pracucable date
before the publicaten of this report, the company had
been noufied under DTRS of the following significant
voung rights inits shares

Percentage

Number of a5 atdote of

VoL nghte notficat on

BlackRocl, Inc 41,458 030 505%

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 24 April 2015 at 8 Northumberland Avenue,
London WC2N 5BY, is contained in a crcular to
shareholders to be dated 20 March 2015

Registered auditors

fn accordance with section 489 of the Act. a
resolution proposing the reappomtment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC} as auditors to
the company will be proposed atthe AGM at a level
of remunerauon to be agreed by the directors

Auditon s’ independence

Indne with best pracuce, our relanonship with PwCis
governed by our external auditors policy, which s
revtewed and approved annually by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors’
independence 15 not compromised, as well as definng
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accordance with relevant
UK and US legislation The audit committee approves afl
audit and nen-audit services provided by PwC Certain
categonies of allowable non-audit services have been
pre-approved by the audit committee subject to the
authoniues below

»Pre approved non-audit services can be authonsed by
the chief financial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a curnulative bt of £500,000 per annum

i
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Addwional disclosures continued

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

> Acquisttion or disposal rransactions and due diigence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in hght of the nead for confidentality
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be speafically approved by the
audit commitiee

s Tax comphiance and related actvities up to the greater of
£1,000 000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

» For forward-fooking tax advisory services we use the
mostappropriate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authonty, up to £:00,000 per project subjectto a
cumulauve imit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit commuittee to management

Services provided by PwC above these limuts and all other
allowable non-audit services, irrespective of value, must
be approved by the audit committee Where appi opriate,
services will be tendered pi ior to a decision being made
as to whether to award worl¢ to the auditors

The audit committee receives regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2014, Pearson spent cansiderably less on non-
audit fees with PwC compared to 2013, when there was
significant expendiure refated to specific assurance and
tax advisory services associated with the creation of the
venture between Penguin and Random House For 2014,
non audit fees represented 37% of external audrt fees
(89% i 2013)

For all non-audit work in 2014, PwC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonable fee and withun
the terms of our external auditors policy To assistin
ensuring thatindependence and objecuvity 1s mamntained,
for farward-looking tax advisory and due diligence work
PwC assign a different partner from the one leading the
external audit

Sigmificant non-audit work performed by PwC during
20f4inctuded

» Tax comphance sei vices related to a routtne auditby
the US Internal Revenue Service

» Tax advisory work on a number of U, US and
wternational tax matters

y Audit refated work n relation to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

» Assurance services on a corporate bond issued in
May 2014

A full statement of the fees for audit and services s
provided in note 4 to the accounts on page 140

Fa; balanced and understandable reporung

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all information we

report to nvestors and regulatars is fair, balanced

and understandable A process and umetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was agreed
by the board and audit committee at their meetings 1
Decembet 2014 The full board then had opportunity to
review and comment on the reportas it progressed

Representatives from financial reportng, corporate
affairs, company secretarsal and nternal audic and
compliance are mvolved in the preparation of the Annual
report to ensure a cohesive and balanced approach and
as with all of our financial reporung, our disclosure
committee conducts a thorough venfication of narrative
and financial statements

The audi committee 1s also available to advise the board
on certan aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfit their responsibility n this regard

Directors in office

The following directors were in office durng the year and
up untl signing of the financal statements:

G R Moreno

] Fallon

RADFreestone

TDG Arculus

E P L Corley (appointed | May 2014)
V Cox

<] Hydon

Sjiews

LK Lonmer

H Manwani

T Score (appomnted | January 2015}



Statement of directors’ responsibiliues

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
report, the report on diectors’ remuneration and the
financial statements i accordance with apphcable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financiat
statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group and parent company
financsal statements in accordance with Internatonal
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs}) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the di ectors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are
satsfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the Group and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that period

In prepartng these financial statements the directors
are required to

» Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

» Malke judgements and accounung estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

s State whether applicable {FRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed, subject to any
materral departures disctosed and explained in the
finanaial statements

» Prepare the financal statements on a going concern basis,
unless it s tnappropriate to presurne that the compary
and/or the Group will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounung records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy atany ume the financial position of the company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the report on directors’
remuneratan comply with the Act and, as regards

the Group financial statements, Arucle 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
tatung i easonable steps for the prevenuon and detection
of fraud and other irregulartues

Section 4 Gy ernanee 1G9

The directars are responsible for the mantenance and
mtegt ity of the company s website Legislavon m the
UK gover ning the preparation and disserination of
financial statements may differ from legrslavon iy
other jurisdicuions

Each of the directors hsted above confirms that to the
best of their knowledge

» The Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
fiabihties, financial position and profit of the Group
and company

s The directors' report contaned in the Annual
reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
company and Group, together with a description of
the princtpat risks and uncertainties that they face

The directors also confirm that for all directors in office
at the date of this report

» So far as the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit
informauon of which the company's audrtors are unaware

» They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken
as directors in order to make themselves avrare of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of thatinformation

In addition, the directors as at the date of this report
consider that the Annual report, talken as a whole,

15 fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
campany’s performance, business mode! and strategy

Approved by the board on ? March 2015 and signed on its
behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED
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Additional disclosures continued

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Addisonal information for shareholders

Set out below s other statutory and regulatory
nformation that Pear son s required to disclose in
its director s report

Amendment to artucles of association

Any amendments to the arudes of assocaton of the
company {the Arucles} may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a speciali esolution

Rights actaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ardinary shares are defined in
the Articles A shareholder whose name appears on the
company’s register of members can choose whether
his/her shares are evidenced by share certficates (1e in
certficated form) or held electrontcally {t e unceruficated
form) n CREST {the electromc settlement system n

the UK)

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on ashow of hands every shareholder (or tis/her
representative) who 1s present ata general meeting has
ane vote on each resolution for every ordinar y share of
which they are the registered holder A resolution put
to the vote at a gener al meeting 1s deaded on a show of
hands unless before, or on the dedarauon of the result of,
a vote on a show of hands, a poll s demanded A pollcan
be demanded by the chairman of the meeting, orby

at least three shareholders (or their representatives)
presentin person and having the 11ght to vote. or by

any shareholders (or thetr representatives) present

s person having at least 10% of the total voting nghts

of alt shareholders, or by any shareholders {or their
representatives) present in person holding ordhnary
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up of at
feast [0% of the total sum paid up on all ordinary shares
A this year's AGM voting will again be conducted on a
poll. consistent wath best pracuce

Shareholders can declare a final dividend by passing an
ordmary resolution but the amount of the dmdend
cannot exceed the amount recommendad by the board
The board can pay intenm dradends on any dass of shares
of the amounts and on the dates and for the perods

they decde In all cases the distnbutable profits of the
company must be sufficient to justfy the payment of the
relevant dividend

The board may, If authorised by an ordinary resclution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
to recewve new ordinary shares, which will be credred as

fully patd, instead of therr cash dvidend

Any dividend which has not been climed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decde otherwise

if the company 1s wound up, the hiquidator can with

the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders all orany
part of the assets of the company and he/she can value
assets and deternune how the division shall be carried
out as between the shareholders or different dlasses of
shareholders Thehquidator can also wath the same
sanction transfer the whole or any part of the assets
to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of

the shareholders

Votng at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company in relation to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars), whether in
written or electromic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time appainted for halding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote

No shareholderis uniess the board deades otherwise,
entitled to attend or vote exther personally or by proxy at
a general meetng or to exerase any other mght conferred
by being a shareholder f he/she or any person with an
mterest in shares has been sent a notice under sectian 793
of the Act {which confers upon public compantes the
power to require Information with respect to interests

in their voting shares) and he/she or any interested
person failed to supply the company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice

The board may also decide, whoere the relevant
shareholding comprises atleast 0 25% of the nomnal
value of the 1ssued shares of that dass, that no dvadend

s payable in respect of those default shares and that

no transfer of any defauft shares shall be registered



Pearscn operates two employee benefit trusts to hold
shares, pending employees beconing entitted to them
under the company's employee share plans There were
7,192,412 shares held as at 31 December 2014 Each trust
hias anindependent trustee wiich has full discretonn
refation to the voung of such shares A dwvidend warver
operates on the shares held in these trusts

Pearsen also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestor e which holds shares

on behalf of employeces There were 4,709,325 shares so
held asat 3| December 2014 The beneficial owners of
shares held through Sharestore are invited to submut
voting nstructions onhne at www shareview co uk fno
instructions are given by the beneficial owner, the trustees
holding these shares wili not exercise the voting nghts

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share which s notfully paid prowvided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings in shares 1 the company
from taking place on an open and p1oper basis The board
may also refuse to register a transfer of a certificated

shar e unless {1) the nstrument of transfer 15 lodged, duly
stamped {if stampable) at the registered office of the
company or any other place decided by the board, and

1s accompanied by the ceruficate for the share to which

it relates and such other evidence as the board may
reasonably require to show the right of the transferor

to make the wransfer, {if) itis in respect of only one

class of shares, and () w1s in favour of not more than

four transferees

Transfers of unceruficated shares must be carried our
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an unceruficated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Varianon of rights

i at any ume the capital of the company s dvided o
different dasses of shares, the speaal nghts attaching to
any cass may be varied or revoled either

(1) wath the wnitten consent of tihe holders of atleast
75% in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the refevant
dassor

{n) with the sancuon of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
of the relevant class

Section 4 Gy ¢ enge i

Without prejudice to any special nghts previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares any share may be ssued with such prefer ed,
deferred or other specal nghis, or such restricuons,
whetherin regard to dwdend, voung 1 eturn of capnal
or otherwise as the company may from ume to tme by
ordinary resolutton determine

Appointment and replacement of dwectors

The Articles contam the following provisions in refation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in numbet Directors
may be appointed by the company by ordinary resolution
or by the board A director appointed by the board shall
hold office only untl the next AGM and shalt then be
ehgible for reappainument, but shaft not be taken into
account in determining the directors or the number of
directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from time to time appoint one or more
directors 1o hold execunve office with the company for
such periad (subject to the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may revoke
or terminate any appointment so made

The Arucles prowide that, at every AGM of the company,
atleast one-third of the directors shall retire by rotauon
{or, if their number is not a multple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors to reure by
rotauon shall be those who wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-electon Any further directorsso to
retire shall be those of the other director s subject to
retrement by rotaion who have beenlongestin office
since they were fast re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those 1o retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot In addition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall retire by rotation at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the prowisions of the Articdes the board
has resofved thatall dn ectors should offer themsefves for
re-election annually, i accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resoluton + emove any
director before the expiraton of bus/her term of office.

in addition, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any directorfor the provision of lis/her
services to the company
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Addmional disclosures continued

ADDITIOMAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Powers of the directors

Subject o the company’s Artdes, the Actand any
directons given by specral resolunion, the business of the
company wilt be managed by the boas d who may exercise
all the powers of the company, including powers relating
to the 1ssue and/or buying back of shares by the company
{subject (o any STAUTOrY restrictions or restricuons
imposed by sharehoiders in general meetng)

Significant agreements

The following sigrificant agregments CONLaIN Provisions
entitling the counterparues Lo exercise termination

or other nghts in the event of a change of control of
the company

Under the ${ 750,000,000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2049 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Banik plc (as facility agent) and the banks and financial
instrtutions named therein as lenders (the Facliy), any
such banl may, upon a change of contrel of the company,
require its outstanding advances, together with accrued
interest and any other amounts payable n respect of such
Facihty, and its comimitments to be cancelled, each within
60 days of noufication to the banks by the faclhity agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs f the
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company

or one or more persons acting erther individually or in
concert, obtains control (as defined in secton 1124 of
the Cor poratron Tax Act 2010} of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee share
plans rank part passu with shares in issue and have no
speaial 1ights For legal and pracucal reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc

Report on the financtal statements

Our opinion
In our opimon

y Pearson pic's consolidated financial statements and
company financral statements (the ‘finanaad statements’)
gve a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of
the company s affars as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group's profit and the Group's and the company’s cash
flows for the year then ended

» The consofidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with Internationat
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union

» The company financal statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as apphied in accordance with the
prowvisions of the Compantes Act 2006

» The finanaal statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Compares
Act 2006 and, as regards the consolidated financial
statements, Arodle 4 of the IAS Regutation

Separate opinton in refation to [FRSs as issued by

the IASB

As explained innote { to the financial statements, the
Group, mn addition o applying IFRSs as adopred by the
European Union, has also apphed (FRSs as ssued by the
internanonal Accounting Standards Board (1ASB)

Qur audit approach
Overview

in our opinion the consohdated financial statements
comply with [FRSs as tssued by the IASB

VWhat we have audited
Pear son plc’s financial statements compnise

» The consohdated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2014

» The consoldated income statement and consohdated
statement of comprehensive mcome for the year
then ended

» The consolidated and company statements of changes in
equity and cash flow statements for the year then ended

» The notes to the financial statements, whichinclude a
surmimary of significant accounung policies and other
explanatory formation

Certain required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual report and accounts (the
‘Annual report’) rather than n the notes to the financal
staternents These are cross referenced from the
financial staternents and are denufied as audited

The financtal reporting framework that has been

apphed 1 the preparavon of the financial statements is
apphcable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Urion and, as regards the company financial statements,
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companes Act 2006

» Overall Group materiahty £26m which represents 4% of adjusted profit
before tax as disclosed m note 8 Referto page 119 for further details

IMAGE REMOVED

» We conducted work in five key territortes US, UK, Brazil, China and South
Afrca In addinon we obtained an audit opinion on the financal information
reported by the assocate Penguin Random House (PRH)

» The territories where we conducted audit procedures, together with work
pet formed at corporate functions, shared service centres and consalidated
Group level, accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's revenue, 747%
of the Group's statutary profit before tax, and 65% of the Group’s adjusted
profit before tax

> We focused on

~ Revenue i ecognition for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts
- Goodwill and intangibie assets impanrment reviews
- Prowision for uncertan tax habilities
— Returns provisions
~ Recoverability of pre-publication assets and inventortes
~ Acquistnons and disposals




The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with
international Standards on Audimg (UK and lreland)
{1SAs (UK & ireland))

We destgned our audit by determiming materality
and assessing the risks of mater il pusstatement
the consohdated and company financial statements
In parucular, we looked at where management made
subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering furure events that are
inherently uncertain As in all of our audits, we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
contrals, including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias that 1 epresented a risk of materal
misstatement due to fraud

Arcaoffocus

Section Sl ety i15

The risks of materiat msstatement that had the greatest
effect on our audit, including the allocation of cur
resources and effort, are idenuiied as areas of focus in
the table below We have also set out how we talored
our audit to address these specific areas in order to
provide an opunon on the consolidated and company
financial statements as a whole Any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read

n this context For each area of focus below, to the
extent relevant, we evaluated the design and tested the
operating effecuveness of key internal controls over
financial reporung setin place by management. including
testing the operanon of IT systems from which financial
information s generated Each of the areas of focus
below are also referred to in the audit committee
report on pages 74 to 75 and in the accounting policies
onpages 128 te 135 This 1s not a complete list of all rnsks
identified by cur audit

How ow audit a¢d) essed the area of focus

Revenue recognition for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts

Refer to note | to the consolidated financial
statements There are two types of complex contracts
that require significant jJudgements and estimates,
which could be subject to either acadental errors

or deliberate fraud

» Muluiple element arrangements, such as the sale of
phystcal textbooks accompanied by digital content
or supplementary workbooks, where revenue 1s
recogrised for each efernent as if st were an individual
contractual arrangement requiring the estimatron of
its fair value

» Certan long-term contracts that span year end, where
revenue 1s recognised using estimated percentage of
completion based on costs These include contracts to
design, develop and deliver testing and acereditanon
and contracts to secure students and support the
onhne delivery of their teaching

These complex contracts generate material deferred
revenue and accrued mcome balances and are areas
where misstatements in the underlying assumptions or
estimaton calculatons could have a material effect on
the financial statements

Where books are sold together with workbooks
delivered tater or compamon digital raterials available
onfine we assessed the basis for allocation of the
purchase price between each element and then tested
the detailed calculations supporung these revenue
deferrals We used our knowledge of the Group and its
industry to assess the completeness of identfication of
such arrangements We found the revenue deferrals
to be based on reasonable estimates of the relative
fair value of each element and the methods used

to calculate the deferrals properly calculated and
consistently apphed

For a selection of the larger. more judgementat and
more recent long-term contacts, covermng both testung
activities and orhne delivery of teaching, we read the
contracts and assessed the accounting policy and
methodologres being applied to calculate the proportion
of revenue being recognised Ve also tested costs
incurred to date and management’s esumates of
forecast costs and revenues by reference to historical
experence and Lurrent contract status, ncuding
exarmining correspondence where contracts are
experienang disputes

Qur testing showed that revenue recognition pi actices
are in accordance with Group policies with appropriate
methods for calculaung the revenue recognised
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independent auditors' report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of fotus

How our audit addressed che area of fotus

Goodwill and itangible assets impairment reviews

Refer to note {1 to the consohdated financal
statements At year end the Group has £5.030m of
goodwil and £1.280m of otherintangible assets
including softwar e, acquired customer lists, contracts
and relationships, acquired trademarks and brands and
acquired publishing rights

The carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets are
conungent an future cash flows and there s risk that. f
these cash flows do not meet the Group’s expectations,
the assets might be impained The impairment reviews
performed by management contan a number of
significant judgements and esumates including cash
generating unit (CGU) identification, revenue growth,
profit margins and discount rate

As pat t of the Group restructuring during the year
management identified a new set of aggregated CGUs
and realtocated goodwill accordingly These changes
included a new North America aggregated CGU and
the disaggregation of the Growth segmentinto its main
constituent countries {refer to note {1 for detatls)

For the larger aggregated CGUs management’s model
idenufied significant headroom n respect of the India
CGU management recorded an impairment charge
of £77m

We evaluated and challenged management's
idenufication and aggregation of CGUs in ight of the new
Group structur e and tested the allocation of goodwill
to these aggregated CGUs In our view managerment's
deasion to disaggregate the Growth segmentinto its
main constituent countries appropnately reflects the
refative independence of these operations For the
apgregated CGUs in North America and Core marlcets,
management demonstrated reasonable bases for the
aggregations, 1 eflecting their relavvely high levels of
integration and synergies

We tested the mathematcal integnity of the {orecasts
and carrying values in management’s impairment modet
We obtained board approved cash flow forecasts to
agree them to management’s impairment analysis and
challenged key judgements and esumates within them
We assessed the discountrates apphed to each
aggregated CGU by comparison to third-party data
and to the Group’s cost of capital and relevant risk
factors WWe compared short and fong-term growth
rates including cash converston, to historical trends
and expectations We also consider ed the accuracy
of prier penod for ecasts

We performed sensitmty anafyses around these

ley assumptions to ascertain the extent of change
etther individually or colfecuvely that would indicate
impairment We considered the hikelthood of such a
movement and the adequacy of the disclosures made
regarding the assumpuons ang sensiuvites

For CGUs where headroom was limited we assessed
management's sensitvity disclosures to checlk these
were appropnate

We checked for additional impairment tnggers by
reading board minutes, holding regular discussions

with Group and local management, and examining the
performance of recently acquired businesses to identfy
vnderpe: forming operations We did not idenufy any
further inpatrments



Area ol focus

Secuon 5 May alaaemn st LX)

.

How our wdir addressed the weaaf focus

Prowsion for uncer tan tax habshties

Refer 1o notes 7 and |3 to the consohdated financial
statements The Group 15 subject to several tax 1 egimes
due to the geographical diversity of iws businesses

The directors are required to exercise sigruficant
Judgementin determining the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potenual tax exposures and
uncertam tax provistons 1he most significant of these
relate to US tax

Changes in assumptions about the views that might be
talken by tax authorities can matenally impact the levef of
provisions recorded m the financial statements and there
are signfficant judgements in estimating the amocunt of
any provision required

Retu ns p1ovisions

There are matenal, judgemental provisions for
anticipated book returns on the balance sheetas at
31 December 2014, parucufarly in US Higher Education

As the Group transitions from prnint to digital the retuins
profile might change to either decrease {as less books
are shipped) or mcrease (if boolstores underestimate
the speed of digital change and over order traditional
textbooks)

We chtamed an understanding of the Group's tax
strategy to identfy Lax ks relaung to busmess and
legislative developments To assess the adequacy of
the Group's tax prowisions we first 1 ecalculated the
valuation of tax prowisions and determined whether
the treatments adopted were inline with the Group's
tax palicies and had been applied consistently

We then evaluated key underlying assumpuons about
tax authority views on the Group's tax arrangements,
partcularly in the US and in territories with new cross-
border tax structures In doing this we considered the
status of recent and current tax authority audits and
enquiries, the outturn of previous claims judgemental
positions taken in tax returns and current year
estimates, and developments in the tax environment

We wei e sausfied that management's provision
estimates for uncertam tax postlions were consistent
with our own assessment of the refated risks and
cor respondence with the relevant tax authorities

We perfarmed tesung over returns provisionsin a
number of locauons, including US Higher Education

We tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing
wdgements for reasonableness agamst tustorical
experience and the impact on returns of the ongoing
business transition from print to digital

We also performed detailed tesung of shipment and
returns provisioning. This included cheddang cut-off at
year end and evaluating whether any changes in shipping
volumes around year end might increase the risl of
returns Nao misstatements were identified

We evaluated changes in estimates to check they were
not sndicators of management bias We found the
estimates used by management m the determination
of the returns pt ovisions 1o appiopriately reflect both
past experience and changes in the business
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(ndependent auditors' report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of forus

How our wdit addressed the 1rea of forus

Recoverabifity of pre-publication assets and inventor ies

Refer ta notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financeal
staternents The Group has £820m of pre-publication
assets and £224m of nventonies at 31 December 2014
Pre-publicanion assets represent drect costs ncurred
in the devetopment of education programmes and utles
prior to their publication and tventones arc unsold
stock, usually physical textbooks

judgement s required to assess the recoverability of
those assets, this 1s further comphicated by the transttion
to digital as the Group invests in new, less proven digial
content and platforms

Acquisitions and disposals

Refer to notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financal
statements In February 2014 the Group acquired
Grupo Mult for £437m, recognising £240m of goodwill
and £254m of intangible assets This is a significant
transaction requiring judgement to idenufy and value
the mntangible assets and assess their subsequent
recoverability

As part of the Penguin Random House transaction the
Group recorded an cstimated £59m provision in 2013
for the cost of transferring the pension habihity guarantee
for Penguin employees to Bertelsmann it was concluded
during 2014 that Pearson would retain responsibility for
this pension abiity The prowvision has been released
within disconunued operations m the current year

In February 2014 the Group sold Mergermarket for
£375m resulung in a gam on disposal of £245m pre-tax
and judgerental classification as discontmued
operations

We first selected a sample of costs deferred to the
balance sheet as pre-publication assets or inventortes 1o
test thesr approp: lateness and magnitude

We then assessed the amortsation profiles of pre-
publication assets aganst cash flows to test that the
existing amortisation profiles remained appropriate in
hight of the transtuon towards digital products

We challenged the car rying value of certan pre-
publication assets and inventortes where sales have been
jower than onginally antcipated We assessed forecast
cash flows against historical experience and obtamned
supporting evidence for management’s explanations

We found the Group’s policies to be appropriate and
consistently applied While the carrying value of some
assets depends on management’s expectation of growth
in future sales from them overall we considered the
carrying values of pre-publication assets and inventories
to be reasonable

The Group engagement team visited Brazil and met
with local management of Grupo Muln to gamn an
under standing of the busmess

We performed detailed testing over the acquisitton
accounung, including fair value adjustments such as
dentification and valuation of intangible assets. Post-
atquisttion performance and forecasts were assessed
to dentfy potental imparment triggers

We abtatned the commumnicauon between Pearson

and Bertelsmann confirming that Pearson will retain
responsibility for the pension hability of the legacy
Penguin employees We tested the appropriate reversal
of the provision within discontinued operations

We tested the gain on disposal for Mergermarket by
agreemng the consideration to sales documents and
cash recetved and agreed the net assets disposed to
underfying records We aiso evaluated its presentauon
w the Annual report

No matenal misstatements were idenufied by our
tesung and we found that relevant disclosures were
ncluded in the Annual report



How we tallored our audit scope

We tadlored our audtt scope to ensure that we
performed encugh work to be able to give an opiion on
the financial staternents as a whote, talkeing nto account
the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and contrals, and the industry in which the
Group operates

The Group 1s organised mito three reportable segments,
being North America, Core and Growth, plus the
investment in associate Pengun Random House

Each segment comprises a number of reporting units
The consohidated financial statements comprise these
reportng units plus the Group’s centralised functions

In estabfishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed o be
performed at the reporung umits by us, as the Group
engagement team. or component auditors within

PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operaung
under our mstruction Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
mvolvement we needed to have 1n the avdit work at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obrained
as a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole

During the year the Group engagement team visited
each of the US, Brazilian, Clunese and South African
component audit teams, held a planning meeting
attended by partners from the Group engagement team
and our UK and US component teams, and had regular
dialogue with component teams throughout the year

We dentified two reporting units i the US and UK that
required an audit of their complete financial information
due to size alone, ptus a further |3 reporting units i the
US, UK, Brazit, Cluna and South Africa that required
either an audu or specified procedures on certain
transactions and balances We also obtamed an audit
opivon on the financial infor mauon of the assocate
Pengun Random House The Group consohdauon,
financial statement disclosures and cot porate functions
were audited by the Group engagement team This
mcluded our work over dertvanve financial instruments,
hedge accounting, goodwil and mtangible assets
impairment reviews, fitigation, pensions and share-
based payments

Secuon 51w oal sthemerie 19

The reporung units where we performed audit worls,
together with work performed at corporate functons,
shared service centres and consolidated Group level
accounted for approximately 74% of the Group's
statutory profit before tax and 65% of adjusted profit
before tax This provided the evidence we needed for
our opinton on the consolidated financral statements
taken as a whole

Materalty The scope of our audi was influenced by our
application of materiafity We set certain quantitative
thresholds for matenality These, together with
qualitative considerations helped us to determme the
scope of our audit and the nature, tuming and extent

of our audrt procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both mdwvidually and on the financal
staterments as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we deterrmined
materiahty for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

Overall group
matertality

£26m (2013 £32m)

4% of adjusted profit befot e tax
of £658m

Ratonale for Note B explams that the Group's

benchmarlcapplied principal measure of performance
15 adjusted operating profit
{£722m), which excludes one-off
gams and losses and acquired
intangible asset amorusation,
in order to present results from
operatng activities on a consistent
basis From adjusted operating
profit we deducted net finance
costs of £64m {see note B) because
these reflect recurnng finance
charges To the resulung adjusted
profit before tax we then appied
4% (rather than the usual 5%) as
our matenakty calculauon was
based on this adjusted measure

How we
determined 1t

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them misstatements identdied during our audit
above £2m (2013 £2m) as well as nusstatements below
that amount that, i our view, warranted reporting for
qualitanve reasons

JONVIHYO3¥3d N0 ‘ $53MIENG 400
t

LOV4WI T9120% ¥no i
i

JONVMYIAOD



120 Pearson pic Annwalbiepor tand e coud, 204

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic continued

Gotng concern Under the Listing Rules we are required
to review the directors’ statement, set out on page (07,
in relation to going concern Ve have nothing to report
having perfor med our review

As noted n the directors statement, the directors have
concluded that 1t 1s appt opriate to prepare the finanaal
statements using the going concern basis of accounting
The going concern basis presumes that the Group

and company have adequate resources to remain in

Other 1equired reporting

operation, and that the directors intend them to do
50, {or at least one year from the date the financal
statements were signed As part of our audit we have
conduded that the directors’ use of the gong concern
basis ts appropriate

However, because not all future events o condinons can
be predicted these staternents are not & guarantee as

to the Group's and company's ability to continue as a
goIng concern

Consistency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opinion In aur opinion  the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financal statements

I5As (UK & Ireland) reporung

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, In our opinion

3 Information In the Annual reportis

— mate rally inconsistent with the information in the audited

finanaal statements

We have no exceptions to report
arising fr om this responsibihty

— apparently materrally incorrect based on, or materially tnconsistent waith,
ourknowledge of the group and company acquired in the course of

perforning our audsit
— otherwise misleading

» The statement given by the directors on page 108 i accordance with
provision C 1 | of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’), that

We have no exceplions 1o report
ansing from this responsibiity

they consider the Annual report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the informauon necessary for members to
assess the Group's and company's performance, business model and strategy
is materally inconsistent with our knowiedge of the Group and company

acquired in the course of performing our audit

» The section of the Annual report on pages 74 and 75, as required by provision  We have no exceptions to report

C 3 8 of the Code, describing the worl of the audit commuttee does not
appropnately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee

ansing from this responsibility

Adequacy of accounting records and informatton and
explanations received

Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion

» We have not recewved all the informauon and
explanatons we require for our audit

» Adequate accounung records have not been kept by
the company or returns adequate for aur audit have
not been recewed from br anches not vistted by us

» The company financial statements and the part of the

directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility



Directors’ remuneration

Directors' remuneration report — Companies Act
2006 opmion In cur opimon, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audied has been properly
prepaied in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporung Under the
Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinton, certain disclosures of directors’
1ermuneratton specified by law are not made We have
no exceptions 1o 1 eport arsing from this responsibdity

Corporate govel nance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
part of the corporate governance staternent refating to
the company's comphance with ten provisions of the
Code We have nothing to report having performed
our review

Responsibilities for the financial statements and
the audit

Qur 1esponsibifites and those of the directors

As explamed more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibibties set out on page |09 the directors

are responstble for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and far view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
faw and iSAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards {or Auditors

This report, including the opmions, has been prepared
for and only for the company s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opimions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to aity other person to whom this
reportis shown orinto whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wiiting

Secttan 5 71 an sal et e ety 2

What an audit of finanoal statements involves

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounds
and disclosures in the finanaial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement whether caused
by fraud or error Thisincludes an assessment of

» Whether the accounting polices are appropriate to the
group's and the company's circumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

» The reasonableness of significant accounung estimates
made by the directors

» The overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarify focus our work in these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements aganst available evidence,
forming out own judgements, and evaluatng the
disclosures in the finanoal statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary, to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
condlusions We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures or
a combinaton of both

in addinion, we read all the finanaaf and non financal
information in the Annual report to identify materal

nconsistencies with the audited finanoal statements and

to identify any mfarmation that 1s apparenty matenally
incorrect based on, or materially mconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or nconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Lrvert Newzanen

Stuart Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behall of PrncewaterhouseCoopets LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Londen, United Kingdom

S March 2015

18 T, mamtenance andintegnty of the Pearson plowebsites the
responsibibty of the di eciors the work rartea out by the suditors does
nctinvolve considi ranonof these matter sand accordingly the auditors
acceptna responsitdity forany changes thatimay bave owlursed o the
finanoal statements ance they were ety presented on the website

() Legisiauon in the Unied Kingdor governing the preparation and
dissamumiunn of fm gl statements mav diffc B om fegisizionn

orfer unsdnans
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 3t December 20104

All figures in £ mithons Ploies 2014 2013
Sales ? 4,874 5,069
Cost of goods sold 4 {2,202} (2312)
Grasspiofic T TTITTITT T T T T hen 2187
Opet aung expenses 4 (2,325) (2,353)
Share of results of jont ventures and associates i 5t 54
Operaung profic T T T T e ase
Finance costs 6 {141) {(ten
Finance income _ B . 48 ¥
Profitbefore ax o T s m
[ncome tax o ! (63) (87)
Profit for the ;(ear from cont—u;;mg op;;attons B T 242“ 295
Profit for the year from discentinued operations B 3 228 244
Profit for the year o T ) 470 539
Acrbumbleta T T
Equity haolders of the company 471 538
Non-controlling interest e ot o1

Earnings per share for profit from conunuing and discontinued opei ations

attributable to equity holders of the company during the year

{expressed in pence pershare)

- basic 8 58 Ip 66 6p

- diluted 8 580p 66 5p

Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations attributable to
equity holders of the company during the year
{expressed in pence per share}

~ basic 8 300p 364p
— diuted ) ) ] 299p 363p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 3| December 2014

Al figures m £ ol ons o s 2044 1013
Profit for the year 470 539
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations — Group 150 {208}
Net exchange differences on translaiion of foreign opes attons ~ assaciates 25 {t1)
Currency translaton adjustment disposed - Group @) (18)
Autributable tax 7 {(6) &
{tems that are not reclassified to the iIncome statement
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - Group 5 23 79
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligations — associates (I5) -
Attributable tax 7 {h (23}
Other comprehensive incomel(expense) for theyear o (173
Total comprehensive meome for the year " ead 366
Awbusbleto o
Equity holders of the cornpany 645 369
M. @

Non-controlling interest
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Al figuresn £ milbons Motes 2014 K
Assets
Non-current assets
Pr operty, plant and equipment in 334 342
lntangible assets 3 6310 5.801
{nvestments in Joint venitures and associates 12 L8 1,092
Deferred mcome tax assets ' 1+ 295 250
Financtal assets — detivative financial instruments 16 90 1
Retirement benefit assets 2 130 86
Other financial assets 5 54 94
Trade and other recevables o 2 g2 70
o T 7 o ) 8,473 7.846
Current assets
Intangible assets — pre-publication pi 820 717
Inventories 2 224 224
Trade and other recevables 2 1,310 1,i73
Financial assets - derivatve financial nstruments it 24 {3
Financial assets - marketable securities 4 16 6
Cash and cash equrvalents (excluding overdrafts) o r 5% 729
T T T T T T 0004 2862
Assets classified as held for sale 2 - 223
v T T e
Lrabihties T CTTTrr e ST T
Non-current hiabrkties
Financal habilities - borrowings 1€ (1,883) (1.693)
Financial habilives - derivauve financal instr uments 16 (73) 48)
Deferred income tax labtlities ! (714) {612)
Retrement benefit cbligations s {163} (142)
Prowvisions for other habiliues and charges r3) (82) (77
Otherlabives o BlO @D

(3225)  (2.829)

Current iabiities

Trade and other habilities 2 (1.601) ([.505}
Francal abdives ~bot rowings 18 (342} (533
Financal habilites - denvative finanaal inst uments 6 (h
Currentincome taxhabilittes (190) (164}
‘?f‘?‘ﬂi’_{"}{ for other habihues and charges ~ B L 53 (Y
B T T 2187y (2314
Leabilities directly assocated with assets dassified as held for sale kY - (82)

54 (5225)
5,985 5.706

:l'_o_s_:a! habilities

Net assets
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 December 2014

; f-f g_l;;r:_f-mﬂ!\ms MNotes 20014 013 —g
Equity -
Shate capital 2 205 205 &
Share premium 2 2579 2,568 a
Treasury shares 24 {75) (98)
Translauon resei ve 70 (103)
Retained earnings e _ L 3200 3128
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5979 5,700
Non controliing nterest o o - -2 —_—
Towalequty o _ S 5985 __S706 §
These finznaal statements have been approved for issue by the board of direet® s on 9 March 2015 and signed on its =
behalf by §
£ 'z
Robin Freestone Chief finanaial officer 3
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2014

Equity netributable to equity holders of the company

T Tome e Ty Toambion | Seramed conolng Toua
A figures in £ mrions cafstal  premutm sharas FosOrve  earmings Tout neeress equiry
At { fanuary 2014 205 2568 (98) (103} 3128 5700 6 5706
Pe-ofit for the yea - - - - 471 474 ({y 470

i Other comprehensive income - - - 173 { {74 - 174
Total comprehensive income - - - 173 472 645 " 644
Equity-settied transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
TFax on equity-settled transactons - - - - 3) (3) - (3)
{ssue of ordinary shares under
share opuon schemes - It - - - I - I
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - )] - &)
Release of ¢t easury shares - - 32 -~ (32) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Dvidends - - - - 397) @9 () {398)
ACIDscemberZ0l W5 2% G5 70 320 5979 | 6 595
T oo ot ey

snare Snare Leaswry Tramarwen  Retaed cnoaroiing Totat
AT Ggun sin{ viions capty oD shares  (ESEIVR CP1DfS Totw  weevest  Cquty
At | January 2013 204 2555 (103) i28 2902 5686 24 5710
P’roﬁt for the year - - - -~ 538 538 i 539
| Other comprehensive expense - - - 230 62 (169 @ (173)
Total comprehensive income - - - (231) 600 369 (3) 366
Equity-settled transacuons - ~ - ~ 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares under
share opticn schemes i {3 - - - 14 - t4
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47} - - “4n - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - {52) - - -
Charnges in non-controlling interest - - - - 13 13 (15) (2)
Dividends o ~ - - - 37y @y - (372
west Decamber 03T 7 i 48 e (o) 3128 570 6 5706

The translation reserve ncludes exchange differences arsing from the ranslaton of the netinvestmentin {oretgn
operatons and of borrowings and other currency mstruments desgated as hedges of such wvestments Changes
in non-controlling nterest n 2014 refate to the disposal of a non controfling interestma Chinese busiess n 2013,
the group purchased non-controfing interests in the South African and Indian businesses
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Yearended 31 December 2014

Al figures m £ mifhans Mo s 204 7663

Cash flows fi om operanng activities

Net cash generated from opei avons 34 704 684

{nterest paid (8¢6) (B2)
Tax pad (163} (246)
Net cash generated—from c;;u.;r_'acmg acoves T 4 356

Cash flows fi om mvesting activities

Acquistion of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 6 {448) (48}
Acqusizon of jornt ventures and associates (12} (10)
Purchase of nvestments (3) (64)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {75) (118)
Purchase of ntangible assets {107} (64)
Dusposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 31 327 (132
Praceeds from sale of associates 39 2

Proceeds from sale of nvestments 9 2

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14 9 28

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2

Proceeds from sale of iqund resout ces 2 13

Loans to related parues (10) (44)
Loans advanced (2) (5)
Invastment i liquid resources {22) (l4)
Interest receved i3 9

Drvidends recewved from jomnt ventures and associates {20 64

MNet cash used in investing actiities T - T (148) (3_7;)
Cash flows from financing acuvities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 7 I 4

Purchase of wreasury shares b1 {9} {47}
Proceeds from borrowings 404 319

Repayment of barrowings (538) {225)
Finance lease principal payments (4) (8)
Drvidends paid to company’s shareholders 5 (3979 (372)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest {1} -

Purchase of non-controliing nterest 13 - (76}
Net cash used i financing actwities (53¢ (395)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {2) 21

Net decrease in cash and cash equwvalenss 9 (39
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year 740 {137

Cashand cash equwvalents acend of year T )

The consohidated cash flow statement includes discontinued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General informauon

Pearson pic (the company}, 1ts subsidraries and
assooates {together the Group) ar e mternational
businesses covering educaton, business information
and consumer publishing

The company 1s 2 public inited company incorporated
and domicied in England The address of its registered
office 15 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has 1ts primary lisung on the London
Stock Exchange and 15 also hsted on the New York
Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements were approved
for ssue by the board of dn ectors on 9 March 2015

| Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies apphed in the
preparaton of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below

a Basis of prepai ation

These consohdated financial statements have been
prepared on the gong concern basis and in accordaince
with International Financial Reporung Standards (tFRS)
and IFRS Interpretatons Committee interpt etations as
adopted by the European Unton (EU} and with those
parts of the Compantes Act 2006 applicable to comparnes
reporung under (FRS {nrespect of the accounting
standards applicable to the Group there is no diference
berween EU-adopted and IASB-adopted IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluaton of finanaal assets and
habilities (induding dervative financial nstruments)
to fair value through profit or loss

I Interpretauions and amendments to pubhished
standards effective 20i4 The following amendments
and interpretatons were adopted n 2014

y Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
‘investment Enttues, effecuve for annual reporting
periods beginming on or after | january 2014 These
amendments provide an exemprion from consolidation
of subsidiaries for enuties which meet the defintwon of
an investment entity

y Amendments to lAS 39, "Novation of Derwvatives and

Continuaton of Hedge Accountng’, effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2014
The amendments mean there would be no need to
discontinue hedge accountng if  hedge dervative was
novated and certain criteria met

y Amendments to 1AS 32, 'Financiat instruments

Presentauion, effective for annual reporung periods
beginning on or after | January 2014 The amendments
clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financal
assets and financial kabiliues on the balance sheet

» IFRIC 21 ‘Levies', effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after | January 2014 This details the
accaunting for an obligation to pay a levy thatis not
INCOME tax

The adopuion of these new pronauncements from
| fanuary 2014, does not have a material impact on the
consolidated finanaal staterents

2 Standards, inter pretations and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effectve The
Group has not early adopted the foltowing new
ptonouncements that are not yet effective

»FFRS 9 “Financial Instruments’, effective for annual
reporting periods begining on or after | January 2018
The new standard details the requrements for the
dassification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and liabifites The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9

> IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers,,
effecuve for annual reporting pertods beginning on
or after § January 2017 The new standard specifies
how and when an entity will recogrise revenue, and
requires more detalled disctosure Adoption of the
new standard is ikely to have animpact on the Group
and management 1s currently assesstng the impact

3 Critcal accounung assumptions and judgements The
preparation of financtal statements n conformity with
{FRS requires the use of cer tan enical accounting
assumptions It also requires management to exel ase
its judgement in the process of applying the Groups
accounting poliaies The areas requinng a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consohdated financeal
statements are discussed in the relevant accounung
policies under the following headmgs and in the notes

to the accounts whet e appropnate



I. Accounting policies conunued

a Basis of preparation continued

Consolidation Bustness combinauons ~ determination
of fan values

Consolidavon Business combinations — dassification
of investments

Intangible assets Goodwilt

{ntangible assers Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Employee benefits Pensions

Revenue recognivon

b Consolidation
| Business combinations The acquisiuon method of
accounting 1s used to account for business combinations

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the
liabilwes incurred and the equity interest 1ssued by the
Group The considerauon transferred includes the far
value of any asset ar labtlity resulting from a contngent
considerauon arrangement Acguisition related costs
are expensed as incur1ed In the operating expenses hne
of the Income statement

tdenufiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
denufiable habihties and conungent habihues assumed in
a business combination are measured imtially at their far
values at the acquisition date The determinauion of fair
values often requires sigmificant judgements and the use
of estmates, and for matenal acquisitions, the fair value
of the acquired intangible assets 1s determined by an
independent valuer The excess of the considerauon
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling mterest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any
previous eguity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded
as goodwill

See note le(l) for the accountng policy on goodwill
if thes 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargamn
purchase, the diference s recognised directly in
the income statement

Section 5 Pty wl st sy 3 129

On an acquisiton-by-acquisiion basis the Group
recognises any non-controfing interest m the acquiree
either at farr value or at the non-controlkng mterest’s
proporuonate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exercises judgement n deterrining the
classification of its investments 1n s businesses i line
with the following

2 Subsidiaries Subsidiaries are entites over which the
Group has control The Group controls an enuty when
the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, variable
rerurns from its involvement with the enuty and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
enuty Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control 1s transferred to the Group They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transacuons with non-controlling interests
Transactuons with non-controlling interests that do

not resultin loss of control are accounted for as eguity
transactions, thats as transactions with the owners in
ther capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit ansing
from disposals to a non-controlling nterest is recor ded
i equity For purchases from a non-conuolling interest,
the difference between consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrymg value of the
subsidiary Is recorded in equity

4 loint ventures and asscaates jomt ventures are
enttes in which the Group hotds an interest on a fong-
term basis and has rights 1o the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Assoaatesare
enuues over which the Group has significantinfluence
but'not the power to control the financiai and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the votng nghts Investments
1 jaint ventures and assocates are accounted for by
the equity method and are mially recognised at the fair
value of consideration wransferred

The Group's share of its joint ventures' and associates’
post-acquisiton profits or losses is recogmised in the
income statement and its share of post-acquisiion
movements In reserves is recognised in reserves
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{. Accounting policies continued

b Consolidation continued

The Group’s share of its joint ventin es’ and associates’
results 1s recognised as a component of operating profit
as these operations form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an mtegral part of
extsting wholly-owned businesses The cumulative post-
acquisiion movements are adjusted against the can ying
amount of the Investment When the Group's share of
losses In a jomt venture or assocate equals or exceeds
s interest n the yoint venture or associate, the Group
does nat recognise further fosses uniess the Group has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
{oINt venture or associate

5 Contribution of a subsidiary to an assocrate or joint
venture The gain or loss resulting from the contnbuucn
or sale of a subsidiary to an associate or a joint venture
15 recognised in full Where such transacuons do not
involve cash consideration, sigmificant judgements and
estimates are used in determining the fair values of the
consideration received

¢ Foregn curi ency v anslation

| Funcuenal and presentation currency {tems included
in the financial statements of each of the Group s enuues
are measured using the currency of the primary
econamic environment in which the entity operates
{the 'funcuonal currency’) The consolidated financial
statements are presented in sterling, wiich 1s the
company’s funcuconal and presentation currency

2 Transacuions and balances Foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevaihing at the dates of the
transactons Foreign exchange gains and fosses resultmg
from the settlement of such transacuons and from the
translaoon at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and abilittes denominated in foreign currencies
are recagrised in the income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying net mvestment hedges

3 Group companies The results and financtal position
of all Group companies that have a funcoional currency
different from the presentatzon curt ency are translated
ito the presentaton currency as follows

1) Assets and habihues are transiated at the closing rate at
the date of the balance sheet

i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange  ates

i} Adl resulung exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity

On consolidanion exchange differences ansing from
the translacon of the net investment i foreign entiues,
and of borrowings and other currency mstruments
destgnated as hedges of such investments, are raken
to shareholders' equity The Group treats specific
inter-company foan balances, which are notintended
to be repard i the foreseeable future, as part of its net
mvestrment When a foreign operation s sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income
staternent as part of the gan or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group s the
US dollar The average rate for the year agamnst sterling
was $1 65 (2013 §I 57) and the year end rate was
5156 (2013 $1 66)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciason Cost includes the oniginal
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to 1ts working condiwon for intended
use Land s notdepreciated Depreciaton on other
assets 15 calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate thewr cast less thair residual vatues over their
estimated useful lives as follows

Buldings (freehold)  20-50 years
Buildings (leasehold)  over the period of the lease ‘

Plant and equipment  3—10years

The assets’ residuat values and useful lves are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date

The carrying value of an asset 1s wntten down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the assel
15 greater than its estmated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

t Goodwill For the acquisition of subsidianies made on
or after | January 2010, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlhng nterest it the acquiree and the acquisiton
date fair value of any previous equity Interest i the
acquirce over the fair value of the Wdentifiable net assets
acquired For the acquisiion of subsidianes made from
the date of transiwon to IFRS to 31 December 2009
goodwill rept esents the excess of the cost of an
acqumition over the fair value of the Gioup s share of the
netidenufiable assets acquired Goodwill on acquistions
of subsidiaries 15 induded m ntangible assets Goadwill
on acquisition of associates and (oINt ventures represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisivon over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the net identfiable assets



1 Accounting poheies continued

e intangible assets continued

acquired Goodwill on acquistions of associates and
jomt ventures s included in investments in associates
and joint ventures

Goodwili 1s tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment!osses Animpairment
loss s recogrised to the extent that the carrying vatue

of goodwill exceeds the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount s the highet of fair value less costs
1o sell and value in use These calculauons require the
use of estimates and significant management judgement
A description of the key assumptions and sensitvities s
included innote [ Goodwill 1s allocated to aggregated
cash-generatng umts for the purpose of imparment
testing The aflocation s made to those aggregated cash
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwilf arose

Gauns and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combmanions' has not been appled
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of transiton to FRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use 1s capitalised at cost Software acquired in
materal business combinations is capitahised at s fan
value as determined by an independent valuer Acquired
software 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of between three and eight years

3 Internally developed software Internal and external
costs incurred during the preliminary stage of developing
computer software for internal use are expensed

as ncurred Internal and external costs incurred to
develop computer software for mternal use during
the applcavon development stage are capitalised

if the Group expects economic benefits from the
development Capitalisauon in the apphcation
development stage begins ence the Group can reliably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intenton to
complete and use the software [nternally developed
software s amorused on a straight-hine basis overics
esumated useful ife of berween three and eight years
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4 Acqui ed intangible assets Acquired intangible assets
indude customer lists, contracts and relatonships,
trademarks and brands, publishing rights, content,
technology and software nghts These assets are
capitaksed on acquisition at cost and included in
ntangible assets Intangible assets acquu ed n material
business combinatons are capitalised at their far value
as determined by an independent valuer Intangble
assets are amortised over thetr estimated useful lives
of between two and 20 years, using an amortisanon
method that reflects the pattern of their consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs mcuri ed in the development

of educauonal programmes and titles prior to therr
publication These costs are recogrised as current
intangible assets where the title will generate probable
future econemic benefits and costs can be measured
reliably Pre-publication assets are amoertised upon
publicauon of the ttle over estimated economic hves
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operaung life cyde of the utle, with a fugher proporuon
of the amortisation taken in the earlier years

The nvestment i pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operations w
the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverabtlicy of pre-publication
assets and the determinaton of the amortisation profile
invalve a significant degree of judgement based on
historical trends and management estimation of future
potential sales Anincorrect amotusation profile could
resultin excess amounts being carried forward as
ntanglble assets that would otherwise have been
written off to the Income statement in an eariier period

Reviews are performed regularly to estmate
recaverability of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre publication assets Is set out i note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as avatlable for sale
investments, are non-dervative financial assets
measured at estmated faw value Changes in the far
value are recorded n equity in the fair value reserve
On the subsequent disposal of the asset, the net fair
value gans o1 losses are taken to the income statement

!
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounung policies continued

g Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costss determmed using the firstin
first out {(FIFOY methad The cost of finished goods and
workn progress comprises + aw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related producuon overheads
Net realisable value 1s the estmated selling price

the ordinary course of business less estrnated costs
necessary to make the sale Prowvisions are made for

stow moving and obsalete stock

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are ncluded within
trade and other receivables when the advance 1s paid
less any proviston required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The realisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determining the profitability of indwidual author
contracts If the estmated realisable value of author
contracts 1s overstated this will have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability of royalty advances is based upon an
annual detaled management 1 eview of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales huistory of repear authors

The royalty advance s expensed at the contracted or
effecuve royalty rate as the related revenues are earned
Royalty advances which will be consumed within one
year are held in current assets Royalty advances

which will be consumed after one year are held in
nON-current assets

t Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term hughly hquid investments with origmnal
maturitios of three months orless, and bank overdrafts
Banlk overdrafts are included in borrowings i current
wabilities in the balance sheet

Shart-term deposis and marketable securnues wath
maturines of greater than three months do not qualify as
cash and cash equivalents Movements on these finanaal
instruments are classified as cash flows from financing
acuvites tn the cash flow statement where these
amounts are used (o offset the borrowings of the Group
or as cash flows from invesung activites where these
amounts are held to generate an investment return

} Shaie capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equrty

incremental costs directly attributable to the ssue
of new shares or options are shown i equity asa
deducuon, net of tax {rom the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideraton
patd. ncluding any directly attributable incremental
costs net of Income raxes, is deducted from equity
attibutable to the company's equity holders unul the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration receved, net of any directly artributable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

15 included 1n equity attributable to the company's
equity holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised miually at fair value wihich
1s proceeds receved net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption vaiue being
recognised 1n the incame statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued interest s included as part of borrowings
Where a debt mstrument s n a fair value hedging
relatonship, an adjustrment ts made to its carrying value
in the ncome staternent to reflect the hedged risk
Interest on borrowings is expensed in the income
statement as incurred

I Derwvatwe finanaal instruments

Dervauves are recogrused at fair value and remeasured
ateach balance sheet date The fair value of derwvatives
is determined by using market data and the use of
estabhshed esumation techriques such as discounted
cash flow and option vatuauon models The Group
designates certain of the derivative instruments within
ts portfolio to be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{far value hedges) or hedges of netinvestments in
foreign operations {netnvestment hedges)

Changes w the fair value of denvatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
i the income statement, together with any changes
the fair value of the hedged assert or habiby that are
attributable to the hedged risk




{ Accounung policies continued

| Derwatve financial instruments continued

The effecuve poruon of changes in the fair value of
dervatives that are designated and quakfy as net
mnvesimens: hedges are recognised m other
comprehensive ncome Gains and losses accumulated
1 equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operauon 1s disposed of
Gatns or losses refating to the ineffective poruon are
recognised immedrately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

Certan dervatives do not qualfy or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such derwatives are classified
at far value and any movement in their fair value 1s
recogased immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the mcome statement

m Taxation

Current tax 1s recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and faws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Defert ed meome tax s provided, using the Gabilicy
method, on temporary differences ansing between
the tax bases of assets and habihes and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax 1s determned using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantvely
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred mcome tax liability 15 settled

Deferred tax assets are recagnised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utihsed

Deferred income tax 1s provided n respect of the
undistributed earrings of subsidianies other than where
1t1s ntended that those undistributed earmings will not
be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the mcome
statement, except when the 1ax refates to items charged
or credited directly to equety or other comprehensive
ncome, in which case the tax s also recognised in equaty
or other comprehensive Income

The Group s subject to INcome taxes it NUmerous
jurisdicuons Signiftcant judgement is 1 equired in
deternuning the espmates n relation to the wortdwide

Section 513wl sliterne 1 133

provision forincome taxes There are many transactions
and calcutations {or wiich the ultimate tax determinanon
is uncertain during the ordinary course of bustness

The Group recopruses habsdimes for anocipated tax

audit issues based on estmates of whether addiuonal
taxes will be due Where the final tax outcene of these
matters is different from the amounts that were niually
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the penod in which such
determmatonis made

Deferred tax assets and habilities r equire management
judgement m determining the amounts to be recognised
In parucular, significant judgement is used when assessing
the extent to which defen ed tax assets should be
recognised with consideration given to the tirmng and
tevel of future taxable incorne together with any future
tax planning strategies

n Employee benefits

| Pensions The retirement benefit asset and obiigation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obligaton and
the far value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit abhgation is calculated annually by
ndependent actuanes using the projected unit credit
method The present value of the defined benefit
obhgation s deterrined by discounting esumated future
cash flows using yields on high quality corporate bonds
whuch have terms to maturity approximaung the terms
of the related liability

When the calculauon results in a potentsal asset. the
recogniion of that assetis hmited to the asset celing —
that s the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds fromthe plan or a
reduction in future contributions Management use
judgement to determine the level of refunds available
from the planin recognising an asset

The determination of the pension cost and defined
benefit obligauon of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the setection of certam
assumpuons, which indude the discount rate, inflation
rate, salary growth and tongewity

Actuanat gains and losses arsing from expenence
adgustments and changes i actuaral assumptions are
charged or ¢ edited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the pericd in which they anse
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

The service cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included in the income statement as an
operaong cost Netmterests calculated by applying
the discounti ate to the net defined benefit obligation
and 15 presented as finance costs or finance income

Obligations for contribuuons to defined contrbunon
pension plans are recogmsed as an operating expense
in the income statement as incurred

2 Other post-retirerent obligations The expected
costs of post-retrernent medical and life assurance
benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using a similar accounung methodology as for defined
benefit pension obhgations The habilues and costs
relating to significant other post-retirement obligations
are assessed annually by independent qualified actuaries

3 Share-based payments The fair value of opuions or
shares granted under the Group's share and option plans
1s recoghised as an eniployee expense after taking into
account the Group's best esumate of the number of
awards expected to vest Farr value s measured at the
date of grant and 15 spread over the vesting period

of the opticn or share The fair value of the options
granted s measured usmg an option model that1s
most appropriate to the award The far value of shares
awarded s measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless anather method 1s more appropriate
Any proceeds received are credited to share capital
and share premium when the options are exercised

o Provisions

Provisions are recognised if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it 15 more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably esumated Prowisions are discounted to
p1 esent value where the effect s matenal

The Group recognsses a proviston for deferred
consideravon atfan value Where this s contingent
on future performance ora future event, judgement
1s exercised in estabhsiung the fan vatue

The Group recogrises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be derved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligauons under the contract

The provision s based on the present value of futui e
payments for surpius leased pr operties under non-
cancellable operaung leases, net of estumared sub-
leasing ncome

p Revenue recogniuon

Revenue compiises the far value of the considerauon
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts, and after
eliminating sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books 15 recognised when utle
passes A provision for anucipated returns is made based
primarily on historical return rates If these esumates

do not reflect actual returns in future periods then
revenues could be understated or overstated for a
parucular perod

Circulation and advertising revenue Is recogrised
when the newspaper or other publicauon is published
Subscripuion revenue i1s recogrised on a straght-line
basis over the life of the subscripuon

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two ar
more separate elements that can be provided to
customers either on a stand alone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the provision of supplementar y
matertals or online access with textbooks and multiple
deliverables within testing or service COntracts, revenue
15 recognised for each element as f it were an mdwdual
contractual arrangement

Revenue from mulo-year contractual ar rangements,
such as contracts to process quahfying tests for mdividual
professions and government departments. Is recognised
as performance occurs The assumptions, risks and
uncertanues inherent in long-term contract accounting
can affect the amounts and urming of revenue and refated
expenses reported Certan of these arrangements,
erther as a result of 2 single service spanning more than
one reporting period or where the contract requires
the proviston of a number of services that together
constitute a single project are treated as long-term
contracts with revenue recognised on a percentage of
compleuon basts Percentage of compleuorn is calcufated
on a cost basis using the proporuon of the total
estimated costs incurred to date Losses on contracts
are recognised in the period n which theloss fir st
Becomes for esecable Contract Iosses are determined
to be the amount by which estimated total costs of the
contract exceed the esumated total revenues that wil
be generated by the contract



§ Accountng policies conttnued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certam contracts, where the Group acis as agent
only commissions and fees receivable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third party
costs incurred on behalf of the principal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement are
notnciuded in revenue

Income from recharges of freight and other acuvities
which are nodental wo the normal revenue generaung
activities 1s included tn other mcome

q Leases

Leases of property plant and equipment where the
Group has substannally all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases
are capitahsed at the commencement of the lease at

the lower of the fan value of the leased property and
the present value of the numimum lease payments

Each lease payment is allocated between the hability
and finance charges to achicve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are incduded in
finanaal habiines — borrowings The interest element of
the finance cost1s chai ged o the income statement avex
the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest an the remaining balance of the habibty for each
period The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful hfe of the asset or the iease term

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retaned by the lessor are
dasstfied as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operatng leases (net of any mcenuves
received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a stratght-hne basis over the pertod of
the lease

r Dividends

Drvidends a1 e recorded in the Group's financial
staternents ut the period in which they are appioved
by the company's shareholders

Secuon 5 Fiaraal o1 o et {35

s Assets and habiiues held for sale

Assets and liabilines are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
tess costs to seltif it 1s ughly probable that the carrying
amount will be 1 ecovered principally through a sale
transaction 1 ather than through contmuing use No
deprectation is charged in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounts relaung to non-
current assets and liabihuies held for sale are classified
as disconunued operations in the income statement
where appropriate

¢ Trade recewables

Trade recervables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns {see also note Ip)

2 Segment information

From | January 2014 the Group has reorgamsed and is
reporting new segmental analyses to reflect the new
structure and operating maodel. The primary segments
for management and reporting are geographies as
outined below In addition, the group separately
discloses the results from the Penguin Random House
{PRH) associate

Centmuing operations

North America School, Higher Educauon and
Professional businesses in US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in emerging markets wtich are nvestment
priorities, including Brazid, China, India and South Africa

Core School, Higher Education and Professional
busnesses In more mature markets ncluding UK,
Austraha and ltaly

In additon the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House {PRH) associate

The results of the Mergermarket business to 4 February
2014 are shown as disconunued in the relevant years
The results of the Pengumn busmess to 30H une 2043 are
also shown as discontinued in 2013

Figures for 2013 have been restated to reflect the
new segments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

For more detall on the services and products mduded i each business segment refer to the strategic report

2014
T N o Ducoomued
Al figvn es o £ mdions sowes  Amene Cote  Giowdh PRH  Corpotate  opmatons Group
Cantnuing operatons
Sales 2,974 {,154 746 - - - 4874
Ad)justed operatng profit 464 52 35 49 - - 720
Intangible charges (g (22} (132) (54) - (318}
AcCquIsion costs ) (1) (3) - - - (6)
Other net gains and losses 2 - - - - - 2
Operaung piofit/(loss) 354 129 (100) 5 - ~ 398
Finance costs 1 (r4n
Firance income u e 48
Profit before tax R o o 305
Income tax r o B o (63)
Profit for the year from R - -
CONLINUINE Operations ) Ll 242
Segmemtassets 6646 1566 1,407 - 660 10,279
Jont venuu es 12 l 9 3 - - - i3
Assocrates 12 | 9 1,095 AL
Tomlassets | eeds 1584 1410 10% e - 113y
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates W) - 19 3 35 - - 51
Capitat expenditure b1 97 48 49 - - - 194
Pre-publication mvestment 0 209 77 72 - - - 358
Deprectaton 1 4] 17 i6 - - - 74
Amortisation 1" 20 309 2 21 - - - 542
i - - - - - 77

fmpatrment

77
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2 Segment infol mawon continued

2013
North T Dascanza d T
Aliguree e { monpas Notes Amcnica Core Grown MH Comporate operainm Grovp
Conunuing operations
Sales 3.073 1,258 738 - - - 5089
Adjusted operating profit 474 120 38 50 - - 682
Intangible chavrges (106) an 33 (30} - - {196}
Acquisiion costs (2) 3) (7} ~ - - (12)
Other net gams and losses - (16) - - - (16)
Operating profit(loss) o 366 74 Q) 20 - ~ 458
Finance costs 6 (1t}
Finance ncome & 35
P:oﬂt beforetax - h B h o FB-BHZ_
Income tax i (87}
Profit for the year from e
O PO — — - 295
Segment assets 6326 {.450 981 - 859 123 9839
jont ventures 12 { 2 - - - 3
Associates i t i8 1 07C - 1089
Total assets 6328 1468 983 1070 859 223 1093

Other segment items
Share of resufts of joint ventures

and associates 2 1 26 ) 3! - - 54
Capital expenditure 10 i 95 46 33 - - ! 175
Pre-publicavon investment F) 202 90 72 - - - 364
Deprecanon 0 46 9 16 - - { 82
Amorusaton 1M 287 143 Q3 - - 2 535
Impairment - " - .~ T T

For further mformation on adjusted measures above see note 8

included i other net gains and losses in conunuing operatons in 2014 are gains on the sale of joint venture interests
n Safart Books Onhne and CourseSmart (£40m} and a loss on disposal of an investment in Nook Media (£38m)
Induded in other net gains and lossesin 2013 1s a loss on the disposaf of the Japanese school and local publishing assets

Both operating profit and adjusted operaung profit n 2014 are stated after the following restructuring charges North
America £37m, with esumated n year benefits of £2Im, Core £22m, with estimated in year benefits of £10m, Growth
£6m waith estimated in year benefits of £2m, Penguin Random House £19m, with esumated in year benefits of £7m

Both operating profit and adjusted operating profit tn 2013 are stated after the following restructuring charges North
Amenca £77m, with esumated in year benefits of £24m Core £63m, with estirmated in year benefits of £13m, Growth
£36m, vath esumated in year benefits of £4m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information conunued

In 2014, sales from the provision of goods were £2,71m (2013 £2,867m) and sales from the provision of services
were £2,163m (2013 £2,202em) Sales from the Group's educational publishing consumer publishing and newspaper
business are classified as being from the provision of goods and sales from its assessment and testing and other service
businesses are cassified as being from the proviston of services There were no matertal inter-segment sales

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including discontinued opel ations on an appropriate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment result1s equat to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, recewvables, deferred taxation and other
finaricial assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and derwative assets Corporate assets comprise cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securives and dervative financial mstruments Capital expenditure comptises addiions to
property plantand equipment and software {see notes 10 and th

Property, plantand equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combination were £263m (2013
£202rv) (see note 30} fn 2013, capial expenditure, depreciation and amortisation included amounts relating to
disconunued operations

The Group operates in the followng main geographic areas

Sie Non cur o dsscts
Al figurss i £ millions T T e T T e
Conunumng operations
UK 610 649 t,056 1,068
Orther European countries 347 366 180 200
us 2,826 2913 5,243 5,026
Canada 1o i28 288 301
Asia Pacific 598 624 416 495
Other countnies 383 389 66l 2105
Total commamg 7T T UTTTIIT ITTT Sgs 569 7844 7305
Discontinued operations
UK 4 97 - -
Other Furopean countries - 419 - -
us 4 369 - -
Canada - 24 - -
Asta Padfic | 74 - —
Other countries - 8 . -
Total disconcinued ) o ) 9 621 s
Towl T TTTTITITIITTT OTTIUTUTTTT 46T 5690 7844 7305

Sales are aflocated based on the country i which the customer islocated  This does notdiffer materialty from the
location where the order 15 receved The geographical split of non-current assets is based on the subsidiary’s country
of domueife  This s not materially different to the tocation of the assets Non-current assets Comprise property. plant
and equipment, intangrble assets, mvestments in jont ventures and associates and trade and other recevables
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3 Discontinued operacions

DPiscontinued operations relate to Penguin and Mergermarket

A analysts of the results and cash flows of discontinued operations 15 as follows

T S T . . 202

T T “2014

Al figures in € wthons " Pengun Megemakcr  Towl  Fespun Merge e Tox!
Sfes - s 9 &3 i __ el
Operating profit - 2 2 28 24 52
Financeincome o - = - | - j
Profic before tax - 2 2 29 24 53
Incometax = (__._ ) &2 ) (18)
Profit after tax - ! f 20 {5 35
Profit on disposal of Penguin 29 - 29 202 -~ 202
Agtributable tax benefit - - - I5 - I5
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - 244 244 - - -
Attributable tax expense - (46) (46} - - -
Mergermarkettransacuoncosts .S n.....@® @
Profit for tt-re-);e—a; from discontinued S )

operaons .M 1P @8 2 T
Cperating cash flows - 2 2 36 22 58
Investing cash flows - - - (6) {2) (8}
Financing cash flows — T - ® @) ... G
Total cash flows - 2 2 29 13

included within the cost of disposal of Pengumn in 2043 are amounts in respect of the settdernent of ingation refated to
the agency arrangement for eBooks Also included in cost of disposal for Penguin for 2013 was a provision for amounts
payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin’s UK past service pension labilities to the new PRH
venture During 2014, m was deaded that ths transfer would nat go ahead as planned and the costs have been credired
back i the £29m gain reported aganst the disposal in 2014

4 Operaung expenses

Altfigaresmd mihons 2014 017
By function
Cost of goods sold B B o - 2202 2312
Operaa_a:lg expenses AT T T o T T T T
Exstribution costs 87 90
Selling, markeung and product development costs 963 {027
Adrmuristrative and other expenses £.315 1.462
Restructuring costs 84 176
Other net gains and [osses {2 &
Otherncome U2 )
Totalnetoperaungexpenses 23252353
o o ) 4527 4665

Total ) ~ o

included in other income s service fee Income from Penguin Random House of £4Im (2013 £28m) Included in
adminisirauve and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £22m {2013 £5m)
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

4. Operating expenses continued

ALl figures in £ Miions Notes w04 2013
By nature

Royalues expensed 242 256
Orther preduct costs £86 735
Employee benefit expense 5 1,578 2,100
Contractlabour t85 194
Employee related expense 146 t77
Promotional costs 169 167
Deprecation of property, plant and equipment 10 74 8i
Amortisation of mtangible assets — pre-publicaton 20 292 308
Amorusation of intangible assets - software J 63 59
Amortisation of intangible assets — cther It 187 166
Imparment of intangible assets H 77 -~
Property and facihties 2i8 229
Technology and commurncations 139 104
Professional and outsourced services 264 259
Other general and admunistrative costs 128 119
Capitalised costs {203) (199)
Acquisiion costs 6 12
Other net gains and losses (2) 13
Other income B ) i (2 {118}
Towt T s 4665,

During the year the Group obtained the followng services from the Group's auditors

Al figures in £ nuikans 2004 013
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 5 4
The audrt of the company s subsidiaries 2 2
Total audit fees T 7 6
Other assurance services ) | I
Total other assurance services | T
Tax compliance services ! 2
Tax adw's?_rf services L 2
Total tax services . { . 4
Total non-_audtt services T 2 5

Total 9 It
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4 Operating expenses continued

Reconciliation between audit and non-audit service fees is shown below

2044 iR

All figuresin £ mithoms

Group audit fees mduding fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 7 6
MNon-audit fees . 2 3
Tod T T e

Fees for attestation under secuon 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audus
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-auditfees for 2013 mcludes £3m for assurance and tax services related

to the Penguin Random House wransaction

5 Employee infot mation

All figures i € tbons o T s 204 2013
Employee benefit expense

Wages and salanies (including termination benefits and restructuring costs) 1.728 1.836
Social security costs 134 136
Share-based payment costs 2 32 35
Reurement benefits - defined contribuuon plans 28 6% 65
Retirement benefits — defined benefit plans 3 26 27
Other post-retirement benefits N (i) -
T T T s e e e T

Total

The detalls of the emoluments of the duectors of Pearson plc are shownin the report on directors’ remuneration

Average number omployed CoT T 04 013
Employee numbers

North Amernica 21,204 22 146
Core 7.887 8.807
Growth 11,603 10,975
Cther o _E_BZ i 187
Commumpopernioms T T s s

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £5m (2013 £168m) and the average number
employed was 73 (2013 3,592)

1
1
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6 MNet finance costs

AR Gigures o £ miions News 2014 /613
Intet est payable {82) (82}
Net finance costs n respect of etrement benefits 5 - {3}
Finance cost of put options, deferred consideranon associated with acquisitions

and other nterest charges related to transactions - e
Net foreign exchange losses (53) -
Ocher losses on financal instruments not in a hedging relationship

—dervauves o . e (& (17)
Francecos T - T Ty Ty
merestrecenable i8 o
Net finance income in respect of retirement benefits 5 | -
Net foreign exchange gains {7 20
Other gains on financral instruments i a hedging relationship

~ fair value hedges - !
Other gans on financial instruments not i a hedging relatonship

- derwvauves B ; _ 12 4
Francemeome . - 4835
Net finance costs Y )
Analyseg as ) T B N T T

MNert mterest payable reflected in adjusted earnings (64) (72}
Other net finance costs ~ i ) (29 4)
Torlmettmanea eos T T T T T T T ey e

included m nterest recevable s £1m (2013 £ nib) of nterest recervable from related parves The net movement
of £l on far value hedges n 2014 (2013 net gain of £1m) comprises a loss of £27m (2013 gan of £95m) on the
underlying bonds. offset by a gan of £27m (2013 loss of £94m) on the related derwative financial tnstruments

For further nformation on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 Income tax

All figwrs in £ mitions tdraes 2004 2013
Current tax

Chiargen respect of current year (103) {129)
Adjusuments in respect of pt1or years v @
Total currentraxcharge T T T gy 3g)
Deferved tax T B o -

In respect of temporary differences 8 4

Ortheradjustments in respect of prior years 2 35

Touldderedxarede T )
ror ] ©__ ©7)

Total tax charge

The adustments in respect of prior years i both 2014 and 2013 mainly relate to changes in esumates arsing from
uncertain tax posittons foliowing settlements with tax authoriues in the year

The tax an the Group’'s profit before tax differs f om the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK tax rate
as follows

Allfigures i £ mibons 2014 03
Profit before tax 305 382
Tax calcutated at UK rate (2014 21 5%, 2013 23 25%) (66) {89)
Effect of overseas tax rates {12} (13)
Joint venture and associate income reported net of tax I i3
Net expense not subject to tax {9 (i
Loss on sale of businesses not subject to tax - (6}
Unbsation of previously unrecognised tax losses and credits - |
Unutilised tax losses (19) )
Adjustments inrespect of priot years 32 28
Totalaxcharge T ey @)
T B S ST
Overseas (57) L {74}
B _ ©)___@)

Total tax charge

207% 128%

Tax rate reflected in earmings
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7. Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected n adjusted earnings 1s calculated as follows

Al Ggures m £ nvifians 2014 201
Profitbefore 1ax 305 382
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses @ 16
Acquisttion costs 6 12
Armorusation of acquired ntangibles 38 36
Crther net finance costs ) N 29 4
Adjusted profit before tax — continuing opet ations - T T ese T sio
Ad;usted profit befor e tax - -discontmued operations . L o 2 54
Fora adsegoibeore T e e
Total tax charge (63) (87)
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gains and losses { 32
Tax benefit on acquisition costs () (2}
Tax benefit on intangible char ges (73) (1)
Tax benefit on other net finance costs (5) {1
Tax amorusation benefit on goodwill and intangibles 24 30
-A_dlusted income tax charge — contmuing operations T ) {t17) {79
Ad) usted income tax charge -- discontinued aperations (1) (18)
Total adjusted mcome tax charge T T (118) hw(";';i
Tax rate reﬂ‘_aited in adjusted eamtn;- M_i _. o ,-!_ 79% _____|4—_;_6£
For further mformauen on adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax (charge)/benefit recognised i other comprehensive income s as follows
P )
Remeasurement of rerement benefit obligations U] (23)
Net exchange differences on transhaon of foregnoperavons @& ¢
@47

A tax charge of £3m (2013 tax charge £mil) relaung to share-based payments has been recognised directly i equity
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8 Earmings per share

Basic
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit autributable to equity shareholders of the company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue duning the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the
company and held as treasury shares

Dhfuted

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusung the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take account
of all diutve potenuial ordinary shares and adjusting the profit attributable, if apphcable, to account for any tax
conseguences that might arse from conwversion of those shares

Alfgresw Embions Nores 2014 2003
Profit for the year from conunuing operations 242 295
Non-controlling interest | )
Earnings from continuing operatuons—_ T B T3 294
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 228 244
Garwngs a5
Weighted average number of shares (mitlions} 8109 807 8
Effect of dilutive share options (miliions) {o L
Weighted average number of shar es (mullions) for diluted earnings 8It9 B08 9
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operatens

Basic 58 Ip 66 6p
Duluted 58 Qp 66 5p
Earnings per share from continuing operations

Basic 300p 364p
Dduted 29 % 363p
Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Basic 28 ip 302p
Diluted . - ) B 8 Ip 302p
Adjusted

In order to show 1 esults from operating activities on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share 1s presented
The company’s definition of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures
reported by other compantes

Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and disconunued operauons The following items are excluded
from adjusted earmings

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidianies, joint ventures,
assocates and other financial assets that are included within continuing or discontinued operations but wiich distort
the performance of the Group

Amorusation of acquired intangibles, acquisition costs and Movements (N CORUNEENt acquisiion consideration are
also excluded from adjusted earrungs as these items are not considered to be fully 1 eflecuve of the underiying
performance of the Group
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earnings per share conunued

Other net finance ncome/costs mclude finance costs in respect of retrement benefits, finance costs of put options
and deferred consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs relaung to reurement
benefits are excluded as the consohdated mcome statement presentation under IAS 19 (rewised) does notreflect the
economic substance of the undertying assets and liabthues Finance costs of put opuons and defert ed consideration
are excluded as they 1 elate to future earn outs and simidar payments on acquistions and do not reflect cash expended
Foreign exchange and other gams and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value
and are subject to significant volauhity Other gains and losses may not be realised in due course as ttis normafly the
intention to hold the related mstruments to maturity Other net finance costs of Group companies are included in
finance costs or finance ncome as appropriate Other net finance costs of jont ventures and assoctates are included
within the share of results of joint ventures and assoaiates within operating profit

Tax on the above 1tems 15 excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also exctudes the benefit from

recognising previously unrecogrised pre-acquisition and capital losses The Group includes the benefit of tax
amortisanion of goodwill and intangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the

expected rate of cash tax payments
Non-controlling interest for the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings The following tables reconcile
statutory earmings to adjusted earnings

T o T 2004
Statutory Other pet Other nec Tax Adiusted
ncome  Duscontnucd gunsmd  Acquisiden Intangthle finance  amoi tkanon mcome
All figures m £ nulions sratefment Qpel AUony losses COss charges  inome’costs hencht Latement
Operaung profit 398 2 {2) & 3i8 - - 722
Net finance costs (93) - - - T 22 - (6%
Profit before tax 305 2 {2) 6 38 29 - 658
Income tax (63) (i) } (1} {73) (5) 24 (I]B)
Profit for the year from
conunuing operations 242 t ) 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operauons 228 (1) (227) - - - - -
Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540
MNon-controfling interest | - - - - - - i
Earnangs 471 - (228) 5 245 24 24 544
Weighted average number
of shares (mithons) 8109 8109
Weighted average number
of shares (milions) for
diluted earnings Bit9 Bl19
Earrungs per share (basic} 5Blp _ _ . Ip
66 ép

Earnings per share (diluted) 58 0p L _




8. Earnings per share continued

Section 5 T vncal statepene

(47

L
:S'nmmw 2t et O e ner Tax Adpstoad
mcome  Dhstontnigsd FaLys e A LS OISR ingaap be hionie  Jamorusetion i e
A diguresn £ mlons afatenuwnt Qperatong le550s rosts chFges  MnoTecasts nen it Sttt meng
Operating profit 458 54 ) iz 196 - - 736
Net finance costs (76) - - - I L,
Profit before tax 382 34 16 12 196 4 - 664
Income tax (87} {18) 32 {2 (50 ) 30 97)
Profit for the year from
cONtinumg opei ations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567
Profitfor the year from
discontinued operations 244 (36) 200 - 2 (i - =
Profit for the year 539 - (161} 10 147 pi 30 567
Non controlling interest G - - = o R
Earnings 538 - (1el) {0 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares (milhons) 8078 807 8
Weighted average number
of shares {(millions) for
dituted earnings 808 9 BO8 9
Earnungs per share (basic) 66 6p L __N0ip
Earnings per share (diluted) 66 5p ) ) 00
9 Dvidends A _ -
Altfigures i £ milhons T 2014 2082
Final paid in respect of prior year 32 Op (2013 30 Op) 259 242
Interimpaid nrespectof currentyear I70p (2043 160p) 38 130
397 372

The directors are praposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 34 Op per
share which will absorb an estimated £276m of shareholders’ funds It will be pad on | May 2015 to shateholders
who are on the regrster of members on 7 April 2015 These financial statements do not reflect this dvidend
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continued

10. Property, plant and equipment

As.ersm
tandand Plam = 4 wourse of

Al figures i £ milvons Bt dings conEM  Canstrdcnon Tora
Cost

At [ january 2013 352 597 {8 967
Exchange diflerences {5 (4 - (19
Additions 33 58 22 [i3
Dusposals 3 (78) - {on
Acquisition through business combination - 3 - 3
Dhsposal through business disposal () (2) - 3)
Reclassifications 9 {n (8) -
Transfer from software - 3 - 3
Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - 9
Transfer to assets held for sale - {7) - 7
A3 Decamber 203 T T T T Ty s 32 975
Exchange differences i 17 - 28
Additions 10 58 19 87
Disposals )] (46) (2} {57}
Acquisiion through business combination - 2 - 2
Disposal through business disposal (h - H
Reclassifications | 3 {(4) -
Transfer to software - - ({ly (L&)
A December 2014 o o ié-S— o 85[':” 9 1,618

A_t 31 December 29’4
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{0 Property, plant and equipment continued

Agrnisn
Land wod PanLand covrse ol

Al figurc.s m € rudhons bu dings PqLDTERL  CoRTLTen Torm
Depreciation

At f January 20(3 (195) {445) - {640)
Exchange differences 3 13 - 16
Chargefor the year (25) (57 - (82)
Disposals 7 64 - 7i
Acquisition through business combination - 2) - )
Transfer from assets held for sale - () - (1)
Transfer to assets held for sale - 5 - 5
At3|December203 @io) @23 - (633)
Exchange differences {7) {15 - (22}
Charge for the year (23) (51) - {74)
Disposals g 6 - 45
At3iDecember20l4 T T Trgay sy - (684
Carryngamounss ' T
At | Janvary 2013 157 152 18 327
At 3| December 2013 {65 145 32 342
Ac3lDecember2014 T T sy T g 29 334

Deprecauon expense of £16m (2013 £24m) has been included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and
£58m (2013 £57m) in operating expenses (n 2014 £l (2013 £im} relates to disconunued operations

The Group leases certain equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of leased
plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £13m (2013 £ilm)

|
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements conunued

{ 1. incangible assets

Argured

customertsn Acgured  Acguied Otlier

coaratsand  tademarks  pulAmiag L LERMS
Al figurrs in £ mdons Guodwll  Softvare relarombigs  wydheds rgote acqueed Tots!
Cost
At | fanuary 2013 5,077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (122} {6) (25) (8) (2 (i) (184)
Addiuons - internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Additions - purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Drsposals - (50} - - - - (50}
Acquisiion through business combination (133) - 19G - 3 7 67
Disposal through business disposal (6) - - - -~ () N
Reclassificaions - - (10} (N - H -
Transfer to PPE - (3 - - - - (3)
Transfer to assets held for sale (150} - (29) () - @  ( 193)
Ac 31 December 2013 2666 469 8S5 237 198 398 6823
Exchange differences 198 {7 34 5 - 4 268
lenparrment {67) - - - - - (67)
Addiions -internal development 54 - - - - 54
Additians - purchased - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - (7} - - - - )
Acquisiton through business combinatton 238 - 5 69 - i86 498
Dusposal through business disposal {5} {5) - 3) {1 - {i4)
Transfer from PPE - 16 - - - - 6
At 31 December 2014 5,030 597 894 308 t97 598 7624
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11 Intangible assets conunued o L o
Acquced s '
rusTe verhsye Avgured Acgqured Oter g !
comtraets vl radent e pabMl g g hes n
Aft figuresin £ mahans Goodin Sufterve  relanontfuss  andinands rghte acquird Tutat E
Ammorusation 4
At | January 2013 - {312} (204) (86) (139) (172} (913}
Exchange differencas - Y 10 4 6 7 i3
Charge for the year - {59} (78} (21 (15} {54) (227)
Disposals - 49 - - - - 49
Disposal through business disposal - - - - - i | o
Transtrtoassetsheldforsate - -2 o -2 L
At 3] December 2013 ~ (316) (249) (93) {148) (216)  (1,022) E
=
Exchange differences - (13) (th) 3) - (12) {(39) 3
z
fmparment -~ - {6) (2 - {2} S18)! o
Charge for the year - {63) (83) (25) {12} (67) (250)
Drsposats - 5 - - _ R 5
Disposal through business disposal - f - i ~ - 2
At3l December20i4 - (38§ G4 (12 (e @7 034 o
Carrying amounts g
At | January 2013 5077 154 525 {72 68 pyy) 6218 g
At3l December 2013 Lo hees 153 %06 M 0 __ 18 st 3
At 3 December 2014 i 5,030 2H 545 186 37 30t 6310 5
Goodwill :
The goodwill carrying value of £5,030m relates to acquusitions completed after [ january 1998 Priorto | January 1998 !
all gaodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiuon  For acquisiions completed between | January 1998 |
and 3| December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwill on each acquisttion i
was amortsed over a perted of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on [ january 2003, the Group chose not to restate 2
the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen (1 e amortisation ceased) If goodwill had been restated %
then a significant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which would be subject to amorusation z
«

and the cart ying value of goodwill would be significantly jower For acquisitons completed after | January 2003 value
has been ascribed to otherintangible assets which are amorused

Orcher intangible assets
Other intangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

Intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuation used is the discounted
cash flow method The majority of acquu ed intangibles are amortised using an amorusaton profile based on the
projected cashflows rinderlying the acquisition date valuation of the intangible asset, which generally results i alarger
proporuon of amorusation being recogmsed in the early year s of the assets’ ife The Group leeps the expecred

pattern of consumption under eview

Amorusaton of £12m (2043 £15m) 15 included in the ncome statement in cost of goods sold and £238m (20(3
£210m} n operating expenses In 204 £nl (2013 £2m) of amorusanon relates to disconunued operations
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I Intangible assets conunued

The range of useful ecanarmic fives for each major dass of intangible asset {excluding goodwill and software)
15 shown below

2014
Class of intangible asset T T et econome e
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationstups 3-20 years
Acquired trademarks and brands 220 years
Acquired publishing rights 5-20 years
Other intangibles acquired L L 2-20 years
The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets 1s shown below
T T T T B T
" omemw Sere | Moredam
Al figures in £ midkans five years ten yewrs ten yuars Tatal
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and 1efavonships 340 148 57 545
Acquired trademarks and brands 97 54 35 186
Acquired publishing nghts 34 3 -~ 37
Other mtangbles acquwed AL A 2o 301

Impairment tests for cash-generating units {CGUs) containing goodwill
Imparment tests have been carred out where appropriate as described below

Following a reorganisation of the business effective | January 2014 goodwill was alfocated to CGUs, or aggregation
of CGUs where goodwill coutd not be reasonably allocated ro indmdual business units Impairment reviews were
conducted on these CGUs summarised betow

Alligures In £ milions T 2014 01
North America 3,422 3,239
Core 618 624
Growth (indudes China Brazi, India and South Africa) 612 447
Pearson VUE 327 306
Financial Times Group 51 50
Total _ - T T T - o 5,030‘ 4.666—

Total : o

The recoverable amount of each CGU s based on value i use calculations Goodwillis tested for impairment annually
Other than goodwill there are no mtangble assets with mdcfinite ves The goodwill 1s generally denormnated in
the currency of the refevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review 15 not materaily seasitive to exchangs

rate fluctuauons
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i Intangible assets contnued

Impairment tests for cash-generaung units containing goodwill contnued

Following detenioration m the market conditions for the Group's online tutoring business based in India 1t was
determined in the cowse of the imparrment review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer supported the
carrying vafue of the goodwill in that CGU Animpairment of £67m was booked, thereby bringing the carrying value
of goodwillin the India CGU down to £nid Animparrment of £10m was also booled in respect of other acquired
intangibles in that CGU, bringing then carrying value to £mi The Indta CGU incorporates all the Group's trading
operauons inindia A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the value in use ofthe india CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value in use of that CGU as the Group’s India operations, prior to
the [ January 2014 reorganisation, were previousty part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

Key assumptions
The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering

a five-year pertod  The key assumptions used by management in the value in use calculations were

Discount rates The discount 1 ate s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a risk premium
to reflect the increased risk in investing in equities The risk premium adjustment 15 assessed for each speafic CGU
The average pre-tax discount rates range from 9 0% to 16 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate in more mature markets with low inflation and higher for those operating in emerging mariets

with higher inflation

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth 1 ate of 2 0% (2013 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the
approved budget period for CGUSs operaung in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate s a conservative rate
and 1s considered to be lower than the long-terrm histonic growth rates of the underlying territonies in which the CGU
operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 5 B% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget perod faor CGUs operating

in emerging markets with high inflaion These growth rates are also below the fong-term historic growth rates in

these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the finanaal budgets for the inuval five-year perod were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sates growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment prionues within each CGU Key factors include the proporuon of revenue
expected to anse n emerging markets, the proportion of revenue expected to come from digital and services
businesses relative to tradironal pnnt-based businesses and the changing product mix as a resuft of product
nvestment The five year sales forecasts use average nominal growth rates between { 1% and 3 3% for mature
markets and between 8 3% and 15 7% for emerging markets with high inflation

Operating profits Operating profits are forecast based on lustoric experience of operating margins adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving Initiatives including the impact of the global restructuring

programme undertaken in 2013 and 2014

Cash conwersion Cash conversion s the rato of operaung cashflow to operauing profit. Management forecast cash
conversion rates based on tustonc expenence, adjusted for the impact of product investment priories and the stuft
to digreal and service based business

Sensitvities
The Group's impairment review is sensitive to a change n assumptions used most notably the discount rates and the

perpetuity growth rates Based on the Group s sensiivity analysis, a reasonably possible increase of @ 8% pts in the
discountrate or a decrease of | 0% ptin the perpetusty growth rate could cause an impairment in respect of Brazil
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12. {nvestments 10 joInt ventures and associates

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Mmemamimbons T 2044 P
Associates b 105 1,089
joint ventures o L L 33
Total .18 1,092
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
Al fguves w £ ovlhons o oo T T T o 0
Assoctates 54 56
Jont ventures i (3) (2)
Total 51 54
Investiment in associates
The Group has the following material associates
T T - o P piore | Gwmerdvy | Nawrcoi Mo sorcment
af business nrerest relition.np methad
Pengumn Random House Ltd UK/Global 47% Note 1 Equity”
Pengwn Random MHouse LLC us 47% Nate | Equity”™
UK 50% Note 2 Equiy™

The Economist Mewspaper Ltd

*MNone of the assocates has a quoted market price

Note | -On | july 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement between
Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade pubhishing companies, Penguin and Random House., with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The shareholder agreement
includes protection rights for Pearson as the minority shareholder including rights to dividends Management considers
ownership percentage, board composition and the additonal protective nghts, and exercises udgement to determine
that Pearson has significant influence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the power to direct the
relevant acuvities and therefore control

Note 2 - The Group has a 50% interest in The Economist Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world sleading
weekly business and current affan s magazines The Economist has a umque structure of “A”, "B” and Trustee shares,
which was established to ensure its Independence from proprietonal controt Pearson, as halder of the "B shares,
has never controlled the Economist by virtue of its shareholding or influence, and management assesses that it has

significant nfluence over the company
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{2, Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Investment in associates continued
The summansed financial infformation of the material associates ts detalled below

2004 i3 reated

T Thegen been
Al figures i £ mibions Random Mouse Econorust  Randoen Hoose Eranormst
Assets
Current assets 1,355 110 1.210 103
Non-current assets {429 {66 {382 163
Labiliues
Current liabilites (1,113} {190) {905) {190)
Non current habihties (424} (86) ___(15_5) (60)
Necisens T Tiae - am e
S TR " S AT
Profit from centinuing operaucns 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive (expense)/income ) - (tn 0 (}4)__“ . 9
Tomtcomreharmvencoms @ m m W
Dwidends receved from associate 95 21 43 24

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates, adjusted for fair
value and simdar adjustments The tax on Pengumn Random House LLC 1s settled by the partners For the purposes
of clear and conststent presentation, the tax has been shown in the associate ine items in the conselidated income
statement and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group's share of profic after tax consistendy for the Penguin

Random House associates

SSANISNE 4N0

FINVYHYOIYI4 UNO l

1¥dul 191308 UNo |
|

IINVNYIAOD




156 Pearson pic A izl cepon v and gacour s 26l

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12 Investments In jont ventures and associates continued

Investment in associates continued
A reconchanan of the summansed financial nformauon to the carrymng value of the material assoctates

1s shiown below

2014 2002 e stae 4
T e hegen
Alt figuros w £ mions RandomHousc  Economist PandomHowe  Econonist
Opening net assets 1,232 i6 - -
Exchange differences 52 - (68) -
Profit for the period 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive {expense)/income (Y 20} (34) 9
Drvidends, net of tax paid {100) (42} el 41)
Additions - - 1,359 -
Distributon from assocate in excess of carryng value - 4 e -
Reversal of distribution from associate in excess ofcarrying value - - - {4
Closmgretmems T T T T T e T T T ;s
Share of net assets 586 - 579 8
Gﬁ?_ @wn}l_ B 509 - 491 -
Corpraeveetaimis T N N

in 2013 the Group determined the farr value of the Penguin Random House venture for the purposes of accounting

for the transaction A valuation of the Penguin Random House ventures was determined during the negotation of

the transaction between Bertlesmann and Pearson Thss valuation of the business was calculated using the income
approach, discounting future cash flows to the present value Cash flow projections were prepared for both businesses
by country taking into account the fi ont and bacihst trends and extrapoiated using long terr growth rate assumptions
The cash flows were discounted using discount rates with sk premiums specific to each geographic region A discount
to the Group's share of the total value to reflect the Group's non-controfing minonity ownership was applied

The Group finalised its acquisitron accountng for Penguin Random House 2014 and an adjustment to the opening
position with respect to deferred tax and goodwill was made The overall carrying value of the associate n 2013
was unchanged however the additions and goodwill balances in the table above have been restated to reflect the
finat accounting

information on other individually immatenal associates is detailed befow

bR w0

Al figures in £ millons

Loss from conunuing operations (2) (N

Other comprehensive ncome - -

Total comprehensive expense (2) ()
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{2 Investments in joine ventures and associates continued

Transactions with matenal associates
The Group hasloans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest is calculated based on market rates.

The amount outstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) The loans are provided under a working
capital facility and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 31 Oecember 2014 was repaid inits entirety i

January 2045

The Group also has a current asset recewvable of £4tm (2013 £27m) from Penguin Random House arising from the
provision of services Included in other income {note 4} 1s £41m {2013 £28m) of service fees

Investment Iy joint ventures
information on joint ventures alf of which are indwidually immateral, 1s detailed below

Al figures i £ mithons ) 2014 2m3
Loss from continuing operations 3) (2)
Other comprehensive income X - ~ -
Toulcomprehensweexpense . _______._.® @
L3 _E_)et:en:gd income tax o L .
Alt figures n £ m thons 2014 2012
Defei red income tax assets 295 250
Deferred income tax habihuies 714 (612
Net deferred ncometax T d9)  (362)

Net deferred income tax

Substantially all of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and habilities may be offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current
INCOME tax assets aganst current mcome tax habdives and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority At3{ December 2014 the Group has unrecognised deferred ncome tax assets of £4m (2013 £4m)in
respect of UK losses, £14m (2043 £11m) in respect of US losses and approximately £44m (2043 £36m) in respect of
losses in other ternitories None of the unrecognised UK losses have expiry dates associated with them The US losses
relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periads of between five and 20 years

The recognimon of the deferred incorne tax assets 1s supported by management's forecasts of the future profitability
of the relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred income tax account is as follows

Al figures £ milhions Notes 2014 2043
At beginreng of year (362) (372)
Exchange differences (22) 9
fncome statement benefit 7 10 47
Acquisiaon through business combinabon 10 - (37}
Disposal thi ough busmess disposal 30 () -
Tax charge to other comprehensive mcome or equity (18) (35)
Transfer to/from curt ent tax (26) 25
Transfer to assets held for sale - i
. i T T T e o

At end of year

Included in the income staterment above for 2014 s a £ml charge (2013 £2m charge) refating to discontinued
operatons

|
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

13 Deferred mcome tax continued

The movementin deferred income tax assets and labiives during the year 15 as follows

Retiren vt
Trad g Peerirns henedit

A figures in £ mtions lnuses 2 aison obu Jatw Coher Totrd
Deferred income tax assets
A 1 January 2013 i8 45 47 119 229
Exchange differences - (h) (N 4) (&)
Acquisinion through business combination 21 - - - 21
Income statement {chat ge)/benefit (24) (5 25 22 18
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - - (36) - (36)
Transfer to current tax -- - - 25 25
Transfer from assets held for sale - - 7 6] -
Transfer to assets held for sale i o S M« l_)_
At 31 December 2013 15 39 42 154 250
Exchange differences ! 2 4 5 12
Acquisition through business combimnation 2 - - - 2
income statement benefit 0 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/(charge) 1o other compi ehensive income
or equity - - 10 {7) 3
TFransfer to current tax - - - (26) (26)
Disposal through busmessdsposal - oo W )
e Do 20— T TR T el
Other deferred income tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments, nventory and other
Provisions
T T a T T Geodmitand
Al figures n £ rullions angiles Omer Total
Deferred mcome tax habthties
At t January 2013 (475) (126} (601}
Exchange differences 13 2 IS
Acqusition through business combination (61) 3 (58)
Income statement (charge)/benefit (61} 920 29
Tax benefit to other comprehensive Income or equity - } i
Transfer 1o assets held for sale o - 2 2
At 3| December 2013 Y ' (28) (612)
Exchange differences (30) {4} (34)
Acquistion through business combination 2 - (2
Income statement benefit/(charge) i8 (63) (45)
Ta_x_@a_r_gg to other comprgtlel1srve ncome or equity - (L 20 (Z_Q
At 31 December 2014 - L _ __(5%8) (t16) (714)

Other deferred income tax hiabiities snclude temporary diferences i respect of depreaauon and royalty advances
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14 Classification of financiaf instruments

159

The accounung classification of each dass of the Group’s financial assets and financiat habilines, together with their

carrymg values and market values, is as follows

1014

T T T T T T Thwke | Amorusedeo

T Dervowves Dermatves T Tew Touw

Available  deersed held n hadgiog Ot Lozns and Other  curying market

Alifigures in £ milfions Notes  forsale  foroadwg  relavonships  hablites  recewables  llabihwes value value
investments in isted securitres 15 9 - - - - - T? 9_
Investments in unhsted securittes 15 45 - - - - 45 45
Cash and cash equivalents i7 - - ~ - 530 - 530 530
Marketable securities {6 - - - - - i6 16
Dervative financial instruments It - 6 {08 - - - (14 L4
Trade receivables 22 - - - - 589 - 289 289
Total financral assets ST '7:0“" T wgh" ﬁ?E)BWPWW - 1;@ o ‘—-——[763- —1.;63
Dervanve financial mstruments .~ (33) (@&} - - - (4 (74
Trade payables bZ - - - - - {329y (329) (329
Bank loans and overdrafts 18 - - - - {42} {(42) (42)
Borrowings due within one year i - - - - (30%)  (305) (319

Borrowings due after more than

one year 18 - - - - —~ (1 878) (1.878) (1.888)
Totalfirancel labiives  —(33)  (4l) - - (2554 (L628) (2652)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

14 Classification of financial mstruments conunued

e e hm e e m t am memea o mmmmmemn e ——

T T e 2017
. ~ e moweres
Devseisvere Elmrormives Tatal Tata

Avaitab e recmadheld wbede oy Gy Lon waud Otner carry g o ket
A fzupesn Lmliung Moty sl oo 1 adag  ruhnonsiyoe Pabhves  recewables fablutes i vatue
Investments i unlisted secunues
— continUINg Gperations 15 94 ~ - - - - 94 94
Cash and cash equivalents -
CONUINUING operatons 1 - - - - 729 - 729 719
Cash and cash equivalents
classified within assets held
for sale 2 - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marlketable securities 6 - - - - - 6 6
Dervatve financial instruments i - 4 20 - - - 124 124
Trade receivables — contunuing
operations 72 - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade receivables classified
wehnassesheldforsale - o ...z . B BB
Total financial assets o 4 W0 - lem - 18% 8%
Derwauve financial instruments o - {16) (32} T - - (48) {48)
Trade payables - continuing
operatiens # - - - - - (3tey (316} (316)
Trade payables classified within
habikittes held for sale - - - - - (" {1 {1
Banlk loans and overdrafts -
CONtNUING operauons 1 - - - - - 47 (47) (47}
Borrowings due within one year 8 - - - - - (508 (508) (514
Borrowings due after more than
ane yeal om - == - ~ (4671) (1.671) (1.683)
Total financial kabitrttes - _ . L) R €7 B - {2543) (2.591) (2,609)

Certam of the Group's dervative financial instruments are classified as held for trading erther as they do not meet the
hedge accounting criteria spectfied in 1AS 39 ‘Finanaial Instruments Recogniuon and Measurement’ or as the Group
has chosen not to seek hedge accounting for these instruments None of these derivatives are held for specutative
trading purposes Transactions in dervative financial instruments are only undertaken 1o manage risks ansing from
underlying business acimity, in accordance with the Group’s treasury policy as descnbed in note 19

The Group designates certamn qualifying dervative financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
(fair value hedges) Changes in the fay value of these denvattve financial nstruments are recarded in the Income
statement, together with any change n the fair value of the hedged hability artbutable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates cet tam of its borrowngs and denvauve financial nstruments as hedges of its mvestments
i foreign aperations (net nvestment hedges) Movements in the far value of these financral insoriments (to the extent

they are effecuve) are recognised in other comprehensive income

Nane of the Group's financial assets or habilities are designated at fair value through the income statement upon
initial recognition

Maore detail on the Group's accounting lor financial instruments is included in the Group's accounting policies
The Group's approach to managing rsics m relauon to financial nstruments is described nniote {9
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{5 QOdher financiat assets

Al figures m £ malbons 2014 2013
At beginning of year 94 3

Exchange differences 3 -
Acquisivon of ivestments 12 63
Disposal of mvesiments (58) -
/ T 54 94

At end of year _ 94

Other financial assets comprise isted secunties of £9m {2013 £nif) and unlisted securitres of £45m (2013 £94m)

I6 Dernwative financial mstruments

The Group's approach to the management of financial nisks is set out.in note 19 The Group's outstanding dervatve
financial nstruments are as foliows

T ’ L we e _ Wiz
Gross nononal G ossnonond

All figures in £ milhons amounts Agsers Liabriimies amounts. At Ty Liab ties,
interest rate derwatives —
in a far value hedge relanonship 1.607 84 (5} 1439 8! (32)
Interest rate derivatives — not in
a hedge relatonship 673 - ) 634 4 (i6)
Cross currency rate derivatives -
i a hedge relationship 889 24 (36) 220 39 -
Cross currency rate derivatives -
not in a hedge relationship___ ] A @) T T
:R_)EI o - i ~ 3620 4 {74) 2293 l2it - (48}
Analysed as expiring
In less than one year 200 24 (H 312 i3 -
Later than one year and not fater
than five years 1,386 67 (8) 1377 it -
Later than five years 2034 23__ (65} 604 - (_\4_8_}
Total ) L 3.620_ a4 749 22_9} 24 _(48)
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MNotes to the consolidated financial staternents continued

16 Denvative financial instruments continued

The carrying value of the above derivatve financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are deternwined
by using market data and the use of established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option

vatuauon models

At the end of 2014, the currency spht of the mark to-market vafues of rate derivauves, mcluding the exchange of
princpal on cross currency rate dervatives, was US dollar £(607)m, steriing £214m, euro £430m, Brazihan real £4m
and South African rand £nil {2013 US dollar £(151)m, stering £243m, euro £nil, Brazdhan real £nil and South Adrican

rand £{16)m})

The fixed interest rates on outstanding rate derivatve contracts at the end of 2014 range from { 10% to (4 48%
(2013 | (0% to 9 28%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR in US dollar, euro and steriing

The Group's portfoho of rate dertvatves 1s diversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
wransactions within the portfolio and the designation of certain derivatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk

of income statement volatility The sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in marlket rates 1s set outin note 19
Dervative financial assets and habiities subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

014 2003

Gross Gross  Ner derivative G os= Gress Nt dery stive

dervative dervitive assets! derivanve dervative avsess

Alt figures m £ milhons ABRETH b firies halilties arsels habdine ibhoes

Counterpartes in an asset position 94 (28) 66 122 (12 1o
Coumerparties 1n a liabhity position 20 (46) (26) 2 (36} (34)

Total as presented in the balance sheet {14 (74) 40 124 {48) 76

All of the Group's derivative financal instruments are subject to enforceable netung arrangements with indrvrdual
counterpartes, allowing net settlement in the event of default of either party Offset arrangements in respect of cash

balances are shown in nate [7

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives is managed, together with that from deposits and bank account bafances,
within credit limits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g market prices
for credit default swaps) to ensure that there 1s no significant risk to any one counterparty No single dervative
transaction had a market value (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the Group's
consolidated total equity

In accordance with 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments- Recognition and Measurement the Group has reviewed all afits

material contracis for embedded derwatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certam requirements, and has concluded that there are no material embedded dertvatives
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{7 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

AllRgures n {mikons T 2014 2013

Cash at bark and in hand 483 521

Shot t-term bank deposits _ 7 208

Cvfo;tmumg opéra_t—l—on—s_ ToTTTTmT T e s T T ey 729

Cash at bank and in hand dassified within assets held for sale - 36

e o 530 765

Shortterm bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2014 the currency sphit of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 18% (2013 28%), sterling 13%

(2013 18%), euro 3% (2013 5%), renmenbi 28% (2013 27%) and other 38% (2013 22%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate te thewr carrying value due to their short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

AllfgoresmLraons TTTTT T TTrm o T e 04 003

{ash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 530 729

Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale - 36

Bank overdrafts - continuing operations (i9) (25}
T T T T T o m T e T T T s 0

The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US doliars, sterling and euro, where both the company
and the bank have a legal right of offset

e o w04 23
Cfses Offser Mer offset Uffset Uffeet Netoffser
Allfigures i £ mithone RS5CT labifity  assec/uabuity Asset habe'ty  wsrer/laol ty
S dollars 267 (266) | 298 (299) (4
Sterlng 430 (427 3 1018 (1.027) )
Euro B 9 (8) [ 6 G
Tatal for contmuing operations as
5 @)

presented in the balance sheet

At the end of 2013, the Group had offset US dollar, sterhng and euro asset balances of £lm, £16m and £nif respectively
in respect of disconunued operauons

Offset arrangements in respect of denvatives are shown n note 16
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I8 Financial habnlimies — borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as foffows

Ah Figures 1 £ meons 2004 2013
Non-current

& 0% Steting bonds 2015 (namunal amount £300m) - 299
4 0% US doliar notes 2016 (nominal amount $350m) 23| 221
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 {nommal amount $550im) 390 375
4 625% LS dollar notes 2018 (naminal amount $300m) 210 202

} 875% Euro notes 202! {nominal amount €500m) 408 -
3 75% US dolfar notes 2022 {nominal amount $300m) 319 283
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 (nommal amount $500m;) 315 286
Bank loans and overdrafts 5 22
Finance lease habilinies 5 5
T ST ST )
Comvene T
Due within one year or on-demand

5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) - 248
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m) - 254
6 0% Sterling bonds 2045 {(nominal amount £300m) 300 -
Bank toans and overdrafts 37 25
Finance lease habilives ) 5 6
Towlborowngs s e
Included in the non-current bart owings above 1s £13m of accrued interest (2013 £9m) Included m the current
borrowangs above is £1m of accrued interest (2013 £4m)
The maturity of the Group's non-current borrawing s as follows
Alffigures n £ il rons - T A T . w013
Bewween one and two vears 239 303
Between two and five years 602 821
9\_@: five years B 1,042 569

TTTTTT T o T T T iees em
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18 Financial habihties — borrowings contunued

The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows

2044 2041

T eawe | Conymp | Muker | tangg | Marees
All figares i £ nvbians wncerest 1ace value vahue wilue Aalue
Banl loans and overdrafts n/a 42 42 47 47
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 588% - - 248 246
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 720% - - 254 262
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 627% 300 314 299 325
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 426% 231 233 221 223
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 380 397 375 376
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 210 205 202 195
1 B75% Euro notes 2024 204% 408 407 - -
3 75%US dollar notes 2022 394% 319 327 283 286
3 25% US doltar notes 2023 336% 315 314 286 273
Finance lease habilines n/a 0 i 0 I.l ) i

R e e e

The market values stated abave are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not avalabfe,
on the quoted market prices of comparable debt issued by other compantes The effective interest rates above relate
to the undei lying debt nstruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denorminated in the following currencies

Altfigar esn £ miliians 2014 2043
US dollar 1,431 1,645
Sterling 303 559
Euro 408 -
Other , 23 22
T T T T T s e
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Notes to the caonsolidated financial statements continued

[8 Fnancial liabthties — borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capaaty on ts committed borrowing faciies as at 31 December

A Pguresn £ milons 2014 2013

Floaung rate

— expiring within one year - -

- expiring beyond one year o 122 {057
o B '”" T T s

In addition to the above faciliues, there are a number of short-term facihiues that are utised in the normat course
of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured tn respect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset
revert 1o the lossor in the event of default

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obligations 1s as foflows

All figures w £ m hons B 204 2013
Finance lease habiliies — mimimum lease payments
Not later than one year 5 6
Later than one year and not later than two years 4
Later than two years and not lates than three years ! {
Later than three years and not later than four years | -
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Future finance charges on finance leases _ - -
Present value of finance lease habdiues R 10 I
The present value of finance lease habiiies 15 as follows
Ao fmlions T T T B 014 203
Mot tater than one year 5 6
Later than one year and not later than five years 5 5
Larer than five years - -
Ju L

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate theur fair value
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19 Financial nsk management

The Group's approach to the management of financat risks together with sensitvity analyses of s financal
mstruments is set out below

Treasuw y policy
The Group holds financiat nstruments for two principal purposes to finance its operavons and to manage the interest

rate and currency risks arising from its operations and 1ts sources of finance The Group finances its operations by a
mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper markets, and
Ionger-term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally in US dolfars, eurcs and stering,

at both floaung and fixed rates of interest, using dervauve finandal instruments ('denvatives'), where appropniate,

to generate the desit ed currency profile and mterest rate basis The derivatives used for thus purpose are principally
rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts The main risks arising
from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, hqudity and refinancing risk, counterparty risk and foreign
currency risk These nsks are managed by the chuef financial officer under policies approved by the board, whichare
summarised tn this Note All the treasury policies rematned unchanged throughout the year, except for revisions to

the Group's bank counterparty t sk imits and a clarificauon of the Group’s intention to maintain its credit raungs as

outlned below

The audit committee receives regular reports on the Group's treasury actwites, policies and procedures
The treasury department s not a profit centre and its activities are subject to regular internal audtt

Liquidity and refinancing sk management
The Group's objective 1s to secure conunuity of funding at a 1 easonable cost To do this it seeks to ar range committed

funding for a variety of maturities from a diversity of sources The Group's palicy objective 1s to mantain the weighted
average maturity of its core gross barrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final maturity of the faciiues
available to refinance them) to be between three and ten years At the end of 2014 the average maturity of gross
borrowings was 4 7 years (2013 4 2 years) of which bonds represented 97% (2013 97%) of these borrowings

The Group believes that ready access to differ eat funding markets also helps to reduce its iquidity nsk, and that
pubhshed credit raungs and published financial pohicies improve such access The long-term ratings are Baal from
Moady s and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term ratings are P2 and A2 respecuvely All of the Group's
credit ratings remained unchanged during the year, although i January 2014, Moody's changed the cutlook on ther
short-term and long-term ratungs from ‘Stable to ‘Negative’ The Group's policy is to strve to maintain a raong of
Baal/BBB+ over the long term The Group also uses a range of ratios to monitor and manage ts finances internally
These mclude interest cover, net debr to operaung profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group also mantamns
undrawn committed borrowing facilines At the end of 2014 the committed faciities amounted to $1.750m (£1,122m)

and their weighted average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate risk managernent
The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings is managed by bot rowing on a fixed rate bass

and by entering mto rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also ams to avord undue
exposure to a single interest rate setung Reflecting this objective, the Group has predonminandy swapped its fixed rate
bond issues to floaung rate at thew launch This creates a group of dervatives, under wiich the Group1s a vecever of

fixed rates and a payer of floating rates

The Group's policy objective has contnued to be to set a target proporuon of its forecast borrowings (taken at the
year end, with cash netted agamst floating t ate debr and before certain adjustments for {AS 39) 1o be hedged (1 e fixed
or capped at the year end} over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a mmimum that starts at 40%
and falls by 10% at each year end Acthe end of 2014 the fixed to floaung hedging ratio, on the above basis, was
approximately 38% 62% Steps will be taken in eary 2015 to bring the Group bacl into compliance with this policy
objecuve A simuitaneous 1% change on | January 2015 1n the Group's varable nterest rates in US dolfar and sterling,
raking mto account forecast seasonal debt, would have an £{im effect on profitbefore tax
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

19 Financial risk management cantinued

Interest rate risk rmanagement continued

The policy descnibed above creates a further group of denvatives under which the Group is a payer of fixed rates
and a receiver of floaung rates The Gr oup's accounting objective in 1 efation to its use of interest rate dervatives is

to mummise the impact on the Income statement of changes 1n the mar k-to-market vatue of its derivative portfolio

as a whole It uses duration cafculations to estimate the sensstivity of the derivatives to movements 1 market rates
The Group also identifies which derivatives ai e eligible for fair value hedge accounung (which reduces the ncome
statement impact of changes 1n the market value of a dervative) The Group then balances the total portfolie
between hedge-accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled segment is minimal

Financial counterpai ty risk management
Counterparty credit hmits, which take pubhshed creditrating and other factors into account, are set to cover the

Groups total aggregate exposure to a single financial institution The limits apphicable to published credit ratings bands
are approved by the ctief financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and hmits apphicable to
each financial nsttunon are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency nsk management

Although the Group is based i the UK, 1t has its most significant investment In overseas operations The most
significant currency for the Group is the US dollar The Group's policy on rouune transactional conversions between
currencies (for example, the collection of receivables, and the settlement of payables or interest) remains that these
should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majonity of the Group's operauons are domestic within
thewr country of operation No unrermitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company judges
it mappropriate to hedge non cash flow translatonal exposure with cash flow instruments  However the Group does
seel to create a natui al hedge of this exposure through its policy of aligning approximately Lhe cut rency Compostlion
of 1ts core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate dervauves) wich its forecast operating profit
before deprecation and amorusatton This policy awms to soften the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on
consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to cur rencies that account for more than 5%
of Group operating profit before deprecration and amorusation, which currently is only the US doltar The Group stlt
borrows small amounts i other curvencies, typically for seasonal working capital needs The Group policy does not
require exisung currency debt to be terminated to match declines in that currency’s share of Group operatng profit
before deprectation and amorusation In addimon, currencies that account for iess than 15% of Group operaung
profit before deprecration and amorusauon can be included in the above hedging process at the request of the

chieffinancial officer

indluded within year end net debt, the net borrowings/(cash) i the hedging currencies above (taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £2,005m and sterting £36m

Use of currency debt and currency derwvatves
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and denvative instruments to implement the above policy

fts intention is that gains/losses on the derivatves and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and meome Each quarter the value of hedging instruments is monitored against the assets in the relevant currency
and, whet e practical, a decisionis made whether 1o treat the debt or derwvative as a netinvestment hedge
{permitung foresgn exchange movements onit to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of [AS 39
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1% Financial nisk management conunued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impace of derivauves
The folfowmng tables analyse the Group's sout ces of funding and the impact of denivatives on the Group's

debt instruments

The Groupss net debt position is set out below

- h 2014 003

Alfguesm Cmdions
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
Marketable securines 16 6
Dervanve finanaal instruments 40 76
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (42) (47)
Bonds (2.173) {2.168)
Finance lease habilities (10 ()
Contmmmgoperavons T T T T T ey (14is)
- 36

Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held for sale

(1639) _ (1379)

Netdebt .
The split of net debt between fixed and floating rate, stated after the mpact of rate derivatives, 1s as follows
Atfgmes o mbans T TTTTIT T T T T T T T e s
Fixed rate 597 612
Floating rate 1.042 767
Total 1,639 1,379

Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate derwauves, analysed by currency are as foltows

2014 2043

All figures m £ m flons
US dollar 20%% 1,849
Sterling 104 339
Other 22 38
T_o_t; “—_Nm_ o ---——‘- ) - T T ":_.---. o 2.22? ----- 2ﬂ22§:

As at 3| December 2014 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the borrowings
re-price is as follows

Less than Onecto More that
All figures in £ mulbons one year five year s fiveye s Total
Re piiang profile of borrowings 342 842 .04 21235
Effect of 1 ate dervatives f.254 (225) {1.029) -

Total T T ‘ 1,59 617 2 2235
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{9 Fmancrat sk management continued

The maturity of contracted cash flows assoctated with the Group's financal liabihues are as follows

o 2014
Ab higuresn £ miions T ee Other Tor
Not later than one year 398 160 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years 126 - - (126
Total - 2,401 160 99 2660
Ah-alysed a-s TTTTTT T mm T e e
Bonds 1711 3i8 439 2,468
Rate dervatves —inflows 379 {656) (537 (1.572)
Rate det ivauves -- outflows 893 444 98 1435
Trade pa)(ables L 176 54 . 9‘2___~ ___339_
Tow I TR )
T T
Al figuie. m £ milions use GEP Orer Tot!
Not fater than one year 434 316 113 863
L ater than one year and not later than five years 1,000 106 - t.106
Later than five years 648 - - 648
Total ] T e a3 2617
Knalysed as o I T _
Bonds 1918 604 - 2,522
Rate derivauves — inflows {350) (248} - (598)
Rate dervatives - outflows 359 ! 6 376
Trade payables 155 65 97 3{7
o R T i %

All cash flow projecuons shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on afloating rate are
calculated using nterest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this 1s not possible floaung rates are based
onnterest rates prevaikng at 31 December i the relevant year All dervative amounts are shown gross although the
Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revalving credit faciliies and cormmercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity date
of the relevant facility with interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and ncluding the date of maturity

of the faclity
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i9 Financal nsk management continued

Financial instruments — fawr value measurement
The following table provides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured su bsequently toimitial

recognition at fair value grouped into levels [ 10 3, based on the degree to which the fair value s observable

Levef | farvalue measurements are those denved from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identicdl assets
or habiues

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs, other than quoted prices included within level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {as prices) or indwectly (derved from prices), and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those det ved from valuation techniques that mclude inputs for the asset or hability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

2014 2003
All figures o £ milhons Level § Level 2 Level3 Toral Level | level 2 Leve' 3 Tota'
Financial assets at faw value
Derwauve financial assets - 114 - 114 - 124 - 124
Marketable securiues - 16 - 16 - 6 - 6
Available for sate financial assets
Investments m listed securiues - 9 - 9 - - ~ —
Investments in unhisted securities - - 45 45 - 94 94
Financial labidities at far value
Dervatve financal babboes = 0N - 09 - 4§ - (8
Towl R T - W

The following table analyses the movements i level 3 fair value measurements

S53NISNE 4N0O E

) . 2014 2013

lvewmens | Other  Inwsunens Other

v unhsted financal vy visted financral

Alf figures in £ nulloni secunes habrites 5 CUDTES fabities
Atbeguining of year 94 - 31 (68)

Exchange differences 6 - - 9

Additions - 63 -
Fair value movements - - - {8}

Disposals {58) - - 67
At end of year 45 - 94 -

The farr value of the mvestments in unlisted secunties 1s deter mined by reference to the financial performance of the

underlying asset and amounts realised on the sale of similar assets
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

{9 Financiat risk management continued

Financial instruments — sensitvity analysts
As at 31 December 2014 the sensitvity of the carrying value of the Group’s financial instruments to fluctuatons
i interestrates and exchange rates s as follows

fmpictof 1% Impactof 1% Impaecof F0%  hmprctof 16%
Carrying ncPease 1 decrensein  strenpthemng weakening in

Al figures i £ mullions vahie  nteroscrates  seerestrwes w seerlmg sterling
Investments mn isted securities 9 - - {!) |
Investments in unhsted secunties 45 - - (4) 5
Cash and cash equivatents 530 - -- (67) 82
Marietable secunties i6 - - - -
Dervauve financial instruments 40 (66) 85 16 (i9)
Bonds {2,173} 71 84) {170) 208
Crther borrowings (52) - - 4 @
Other net financal assets 660 - - “(53) . 64
Total fmancal meramenss R R R )

The table shows the sensitiviues of the far values of each class of financial instruments to an isolated change in
ether interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ comprises trade assets less
v ade habibues

The sensttiviies of derivative instruments are calculated using established esumauon techniques such as discounted
cash How and opuien valuauon models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest rates,
these points on the yreld curve were adjusted to 0% A large pr